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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors?

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun

Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
Mr. PAN Deyuan

Independent non-executive Directors?

Mr. ZHU Lin
Mr. YU Miao
Ms. LU Xin® (Appointed on 10 April 2025)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. BAI Kun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun

1. Ms. ZHANG Nan has resigned as an Executive Director with
effect from 8 January 2025 as she would like to devote more
time to the investment development business of the Group.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 8 January 2025.

2. Ms. ZHANG Feiyan has resigned as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 10 April 2025 as she wished
to devote more time to her personal commitments. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
April 2025.

& Ms. LU Xin has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director with effect from 10 April 2025. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
April 2025.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. ZHU Lin (Chairman)
Mr. YU Miao
Ms. LU Xin* (Appointed on 10 April 2025)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. YU Miao (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Lin
Ms. LU Xin® (Appointed on 10 April 2025)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. GE Yi (Chairman)
Mr. ZHU Lin
Ms. LU Xin® (Appointed on 10 April 2025)

Upon the resignation of Ms. ZHANG Feiyan, her vacancy in
the Audit Committee has been filled by Ms. LU Xin. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 10
April 2025.

Upon the resignation of Ms. ZHANG Feiyan, her vacancy in
the Remuneration Committee has been filled by Ms. LU Xin.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 April 2025.

Upon the resignation of Ms. ZHANG Feiyan, her vacancy in
the Nomination Committee has been filled by Ms. LU Xin. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 10 April 2025.
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REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 472

2nd Floor, Harbour Place
103 South Church Street
George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1106
Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE IN THE PRC

Building No. 10

109 Jinghaisanlu

Beijing Economic-Technological Development Area
The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31st Floor

Tower Two

Times Square

1 Matheson Street
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Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

International Corporation Services Ltd.
P.O. Box 472

2nd Floor, Harbour Place
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Cayman lIslands
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

As to Hong Kong law:

Eric Chow & Co.

In Association with Commerce & Finance Law Offices
3401, Alexandra House

18 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
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Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1986

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank (Dongguang Branch)
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INVESTOR ENQUIRIES
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Financial Highlights
FIBHE

2024 2023
ZE-mEF —Eo=F
RMB’ 000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBEFTT
(Audited) (Audited)
For the year ended 31 December BE+-HA=+t—HLEE (RER) (gEZ)
REVENUE Ik &= 2,156,955 2,065,474
GROSS PROFIT EN 215,161 318,636
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FA(EBE)wF (1,486) 45,193
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: FEAE (E518), & F
Owners of the parent [SYNCIEZ 2= DN (21,098) 29,061
(Loss)/Earnings per Share attributable to HATEBERESA
ordinary equity holders of the parent: FELEARR (E518), BF
AR¥RMB ARBRMB
— Basic and diluted — BEARNEE (0.02) T 0.037T

For the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,157.0 million, representing an
increase of approximately RMB91.5 million or approximately 4.4%
as compared with that in the same period of 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, gross profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB215.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB103.4 million or approximately
32.5% as compared with that in the same period of 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, net loss of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1.5 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB46.7 million or approximately
103.3% as compared with the net profit of approximately RMB45.2
million for the same period of 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, basic and diluted loss
per Share attributable to ordinary equity owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB0.02, representing a decrease of
approximately RMBO0.05 or approximately 166.7% as compared
with the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity owners of the parent of approximately RMB0.03 for
the same period of 2023.

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
RMBO0.025 per ordinary Share for the year ended 31 December
2024, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM. Assuming
the final dividend is approved at the AGM, together with the
interim dividend of RMBO0.005 per ordinary Share and the special
dividend of RMB0.025 per ordinary Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2024, the dividends in aggregate for the year
ended 31 December 2024 will amount to RMB0.055 per ordinary
Share.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

T EIEGE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t+-BL%E

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-NE —T-=f —T--F —T-—F —ZT_TF
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETLT ARETT AREFTT ARETR
Operating results - Summary REEE-HE
Revenue Wz 2,156,955 2,065,474 2122318 1,781,106  1,275274
Gross profit EF 215,161 318,636 568,453 540,296 445,335
(Loss)/Profit for the year FN(EER),/&5F (1,486) 45,193 254,232 227,238 144,599
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: ek (B518),/ %7 -
Owners of the parent SREEEA (21,098) 29,061 242,035 226,239 144,875
Balance sheet - Summary BEBEXR -HE
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,945,108 1,986,172 2,007,329 1,655,987 1,695,556
Current assets MENEE 1,562,341 1,467,524 1,187,910 912,494 647,532
Total assets LEBE 3,507,449 3453696  3,195239 2568481 2,343,088
Current liabilities nEaE 1,200,012 1,140,162 1,034,468 637,073 597,606
Non-current liabilities FnEaE 354,382 258,703 60,812 39,982 66,190
Net assets EEFHE 1,953,055 2,054,831 2,099,959 1,891,426 1,679,292
Financial ratio B LE &
Gross profit margin EN = 10.0% 15.4% 26.8% 30.3% 34.9%
Net profit margin g B -0.1% 2.2% 12.0% 12.8% 11.3%
Return on equity(® RA R RO -0.1% 2.2% 12.7% 12.7% 8.4%
Current ratio® MENLL K@ 1.30 1.29 1.15 1.43 1.08
Net debt to equity ratio® EEBBLEO 10.7% 15.4% 14.3% 16.7% 20.8%
Inventory turnover days® FEREXRHY 52 58 62 64 98
Trade and notes receivables B S5 RYGRER
turnover days® EREEAEREO 143 122 81 52 71
Trade and bills payables BHENFER
turnover days® NS EERS G 80 88 67 54 100
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Notes:

Return on equity is derived by dividing net (loss)/profit by total
equity, where total equity is the average beginning and ending
balances of total equity for the given period.

Current ratio is derived by dividing current assets by current
liabilities at the end of a given period.

Net debt to equity ratio is calculated as dividing interest —
bearing loans and other financial liabilities at the end of the
period by the total equity.

Inventory turnover days for a certain period is derived by
dividing the average inventory (the arithmetic mean of the
opening and closing balance of inventory of a given period)
by cost of sales and multiplying by the number of days in the
relevant period.

Trade and notes receivables turnover days for a certain period
is derived by dividing the average trade and notes receivables
(the arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of
trade and notes receivables of a given period) by revenue and
multiplying by the number of days in the relevant period.

Trade and bills payables turnover days for a certain period is
derived by dividing the average trade and bills payables (the
arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of trade
and bills payables of a given period) by cost of sales and
multiplying by the number of days in the relevant period.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | hereby report the results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

In 2024, domestic and international economic development
presented a complicated situation. The domestic economy
continued to move steadily towards high-quality development,
while the global economy recovered slowly amid the interweaving
of slowing inflation, easing monetary policy, geopolitical
competition and trade protectionism. Facing changes in the
domestic and foreign markets, we upheld the concept of
diversified development by closely following the development
opportunities of the new energy industry to gradually expand our
market share in the battery materials segment, while giving full
play to our profound advantages accumulated over the years in
traditional business segments to actively respond to the short-
term challenges faced by relevant segments, so as to strive to
safeguard the sustainable, stable and healthy development of the
Group.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, under the complex economic situation where
opportunities and challenges coexisted, the Group achieved
overall revenue of approximately RMB2,157.0 million (2023:
approximately RMB2,065.5 million), representing an increase of
approximately RMB91.5 million as compared with that in the same
period in 2023.

In 2024, the Group recorded mixed performance in various
business segments. Among them, the pigment intermediates and
new materials segment continued to develop steadily, with its
market influence and profitability further consolidated, and the
sales volume and revenue both increased as compared with the
same period in 2023; the battery materials segment experienced
a significant increase in sales volume due to the positive
development in market demand and the periodic supply-demand
imbalance, but the profitability needed further improvement.

Chairman’s Report
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As affected by the decline in gross profit of dye and agricultural
chemical intermediate segment products as compared with that
in the same period of 2023 as a result of the decrease in the
average unit selling price and the changes in the sales proportion
of different products, in 2024, the gross profit of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB215.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 32.5% or approximately RMB103.4
million as compared with that in the same period of 2023. The
net loss amounted to approximately RMB1.5 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 103.3% or approximately RMB46.7
million as compared with the net profit of approximately RMB45.2
million for the same period of 2023.

FOCUS ON INVESTMENT IN RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT, AND CONTINUE THE RESEARCH
AND DEVELOPMENT OF NEW PROCESSES AND
NEW PRODUCTS

Through continuous investment in research and development, we
strive to enhance the Group’s technological innovation capabilities
and core technology reserve. On the basis of consolidating the
market competitiveness of our existing products, we actively
expand into new areas of product research and development,
gradually build a diversified product layout, and thus improve the
Group’s overall competitiveness within the industry.

In 2024, we continued to optimise the production process for iron
phosphate products to promote the industry recognition of product
quality. We actively participated in the field of battery recycling,
with the trial process and product verification of recycling
lithium iron phosphate resources basically completed. The
implementation of new technology will reduce costs effectively.
We continued to promote the research and development of new
lithium-ion manganese iron phosphate and sodium-ion battery
materials to expand the business scope in the new energy
sector. In addition, we continued to improve the process of new
material polymerised monomer BPDA and completed the capacity
enhancement and process optimisation, with our products
gradually beginning to contribute to revenue.

In 2024, we continued to optimise and improve the production
processes and product quality of the Group’s traditional business
segments of dye, pigment and agricultural chemical intermediates
products, aiming to reduce costs and increase efficiency, while
ensuring that the technical level of our products always maintains
an industry-leading position.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8%RERHE AR A 7
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CAPITAL MARKET EXPANSION

In 2024, in order to diversify the shareholder structure and
promote the corporate profile and reputation of Tsaker
Technology, Tsaker Hong Kong completed the transfer of
approximately 3.76% equity interest in Tsaker Technology
to three independent investors, including Changzhou Xinjin
Ruiying Venture Capital, at an aggregate consideration of
RMB39,975,197.36. We continued to facilitate the transfer of the
listing of Tsaker Technology to the BSE, so as to further enhance
the Group’s popularity in the capital market and broaden its
financing channels, thereby facilitating the long-term and stable
development of the Group.

OUTLOOK AND DEVELOPMENT

Amidst lingering challenges, the horizon of opportunity emerges.
Facing the complex and volatile market environment in 2025, we
will adhere to the strategy of seeking progress while maintaining
stability and actively respond to the short-term changes in the
market. We will maintain a sound financial strategy and make
evaluation of and decision on fixed asset investment projects in
a more prudent way. We will continue to focus on research and
development, and continue to reserve new products and new
processes to forge our core competitiveness and promote the
Group’s sustainable development.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude
to our Shareholders, customers and business partners for their
support and trust in the management of the Group, and to the
management team and all staff members for their unwavering
teamwork and dedication over the past year to drive performance
for the Group and create value for the Shareholders.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
GE Yi
20 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DA

BUSINESS REVIEW e JE)
Operating segment results REDHEE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_Z-_NE+—A=+—HLEE
Dye and Pigment
agricultural intermediates
Battery chemical and new
materials intermediates materials Total
BXEm hER
EtharR hER SERuEe A%
Revenue (RMB'000) Wz (ARBETFT) 753,960 948,568 454,427 2,156,955
Cost of sales (RMB'000) HEKRE (AEHKETFT) 829,854 833,789 278,151 1,941,794
Sales volume (tonnes) HEHE (15) 78,224 77,783 12,966 168,973
Gross profit margin FEF= -10.1% 12.1% 38.8% 10.0%
Average unit selling price BRI FIIEE
(RMB/tonne) (ARHT, M) 9,638 12,195 35,048 12,765
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HILEFE
Dye and Pigment
agricultural intermediates
Battery chemical and new
materials intermediates materials Total
FE R EaE
RELER g
BIAE PR KRR ast
Revenue (RMB'000) Wz (AEETFT) 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Cost of sales (RMB'000) HEKRAR (AREEKTT) 571,307 941,353 234,178 1,746,838
Sales volume (tonnes) HEHE (1) 44,700 78,416 11,613 134,729
Gross profit margin FEH = -14.6% 20.9% 37.9% 15.4%
Average unit selling price BAUFHERE
(RMB/tonne) (AE#T, WE) 11,155 15,174 32,460 15,331

The Group is mainly engaged in the production and sales of AREFFEHRETBMWME 2R EEZE(|E D HARE
products such as battery materials, dye and agricultural chemical £& - EERFPREEEFIVMAEZTEEROEENIBNE -
intermediates, pigment intermediates and new materials.

12  TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & H4 BRI AR AT



Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, there were no material changes in the
main operations of the Group. The traditional business segments
continued to enjoy a prominent position in the market, and revenue
from the top five largest customers accounted for approximately
43.7% (2023: approximately 37.0%) of the Group’s revenue for the
year.

The Group has a well-established sales network for its products,
which covers areas including Asia, Europe, North America and
South America. During the Review Year, by regional distribution,
revenue derived from Chinese Mainland accounted for
approximately 84.7% (2023: approximately 82.2%) of the Group’s
total revenue, and export revenue accounted for approximately
15.3% (2023: approximately 17.8%) of the Group's total revenue.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

During the Review Year, the total revenue of the Group increased
by approximately 4.4% to approximately RMB2,157.0 million
(2023: approximately RMB2,065.5 million) as compared with that
in the same period of 2023. The increase in revenue was mainly
due to the year-on-year increase in the sales volume of iron
phosphate, the major product of the Group’s battery materials
segment during the Review Year.

During the Review Year, due to the decrease in the average
unit selling price of the Group’s dye and agricultural chemical
intermediate products as compared with that in the same
period of 2023 as a result of the overall market volatility and the
changes in sales proportion of products at various price range,
the Group’s revenue and gross profit of the dye and agricultural
chemical intermediates segment decreased as compared with
that in the same period of 2023, which in turn had a significant
adverse impact on the Group’s net profit. During the Review
Year, the gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately
32.5% to approximately RMB215.2 million (2023: approximately
RMB318.6 million) as compared with that in the same period of
2023. The overall gross profit margin of the Group decreased
to approximately 10.0% in 2024 from approximately 15.4% in
2023. During the Review Year, the Group recorded a net loss of
approximately RMB1.5 million (2023: net profit of approximately
RMB45.2 million); net loss margin of approximately 0.1% (2023:
net profit margin of approximately 2.2%); and basic loss per share
of approximately RMB0.02 (2023: basic earnings per share of
approximately RMB0.03).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Battery materials — accounting for approximately 35.0%
(2023: approximately 24.1%) of the Group’s total revenue

The Group is one of the major iron phosphate producers in China.
Iron phosphate is mainly used in the production of lithium iron
phosphate, which is the mainstream cathode material for the
production of power lithium batteries and energy storage lithium
batteries.

During the Review Year, as market demand from the new energy
vehicle and electrochemical energy storage industries maintained
a steady growth and the quality of the iron phosphate products
of the Group has been positively recognised by the industry, the
sales volume of the Group’s iron phosphate, a product of the
Group’s battery materials segment, increased significantly. The
Group maintained close cooperation with lithium iron phosphate
manufacturers such as Yibin Tianyuan Lithium Battery New
Material Co., Ltd.* (EERREEFHMBRAF]) and Dangsheng
Shudao (Panzhihua) New Material Co., Limited* (& Ft &8 (B&7E)
MR ARAR).

During the Review Year,
complex and volatile market dynamics. Influenced by fluctuations

the iron phosphate market showed

in raw material prices and the imbalance between supply and
iron phosphate suppliers
were generally under pressure and the market price of the
products decreased as compared with that in the same period of
2023. As a result of the combined effect of the increased sales
volume and the declined market price of iron phosphate products,
the revenue of the battery materials segment of the Group
increased by approximately 51.2% to approximately RMB754.0
million (2023: approximately RMB498.6 million) as compared with
that in the same period of 2023, accounting for approximately
35.0% (2023: approximately 24.1%) of the Group’s total revenue.

demand in stages and other factors,

the Group continued to optimize
and improved procurement and
the continuous expansion
of production scale diluted fixed costs, resulting in a significant
decrease in the average unit cost of the Group’s iron phosphate
products during the Review Year. The gross profit of this
segment was approximately RMB-75.9 million (2023: gross
and the gross profit
margin increased by approximately 4.5 percentage points to
approximately -10.1% (2023: approximately -14.6%).

During the Review Year,
production processes,
production management. Meanwhile,

profit of approximately RMB-72.7 million),
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Dye and agricultural chemical intermediates — accounting
for approximately 44.0% (2023: approximately 57.6%) of the
Group’s total revenue

The Group is the world’s largest manufacturer of DSD Acid.
DSD Acid is mainly used in the production of optical brightening
agents, and its end applications include brightening of paper and
detergents, and brightening elements of bleach for textile.

The Group is one of the world’'s three largest mononitrotoluene
manufacturers. PNT, ONT and MNT are collectively referred to as
mononitrotoluene. PNT is the major raw material for the production
of DSD Acid. By producing its own mononitrotoluene, the Group
is able to stabilise the upstream supply of raw materials. ONT and
OT are major raw materials for the production of herbicides as
agricultural chemicals.

During the Review Year, driven by the overall market volatility and
the changes in sales proportion of products at various price range,
the average unit selling price of the Group’s dye intermediate
products decreased, leading to a decrease of approximately
19.7% in the revenue of dye intermediate products of the Group to
approximately RMB424.8 million (2023: approximately RMB529.1
million) as compared with that in the same period of 2023,
accounting for approximately 19.7% (2023: approximately 25.6%)
of the Group’s total revenue.

During the Review Year, the sales volume and average unit selling
price of the agricultural chemical intermediate products of the
Group decreased as compared with that in the same period in
2023, leading to a decrease in the revenue of the agricultural
chemical intermediate products of the Group by approximately
20.7% to approximately RMB523.8 million as compared with
that in the same period of 2023 (2023: approximately RMB660.7
million), accounting for approximately 24.3% (2023: approximately
32.0%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, the total revenue of this segment
decreased by approximately RMB241.3 million or approximately
20.3% to approximately RMB948.6 million (2023: approximately
RMB1,189.9 million) as compared with that in the same period of
2023, accounting for approximately 44.0% (2023: approximately
57.6%) of the Group’s total revenue.

During the Review Year, as the decrease in the average unit
selling price of products in this segment exceeded the decrease
in the average unit cost, the overall gross profit of this segment
decreased by approximately 53.8% to approximately RMB114.8
million (2023: approximately RMB248.5 million), and the gross
profit margin decreased by approximately 8.8 percentage points
to approximately 12.1% (2023: approximately 20.9%).

Pigment intermediates and new materials — accounting for
approximately 21.0% (2023: approximately 18.3%) of the
Group’s total revenue

The Group is the world’s largest manufacturer and distributor of
the high-performance pigment intermediate DMSS. The Group is
also a main manufacturer of DMAS, a food additive intermediate,
and DIPS, a high-performance pigment intermediate, in the world.
The above high-performance intermediate products are mainly
used in the production of end products such as printing inks, food
additives, automobile paints and coatings. BPDA, a new product
of the Group, is an important monomer for the production of new
material polyimide.

During the Review Year, the pigment intermediates and new
materials segment developed steadily, with sales volume
increasing compared to that in the same period of 2023. Driven
by the increase in both sales volume and the average unit selling
price of the products, the revenue of this segment increased by
approximately 20.5% as compared with that in the same period
of 2023 to approximately RMB454.4 million (2023: approximately
RMB377.0 million), accounting for approximately 21.0% (2023:
approximately 18.3%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Review Year, the profitability of this segment steadily
improved. The total gross profit of this segment increased
by approximately 23.5% to approximately RMB176.3 million
(20283: approximately RMB142.8 million), and the gross profit
margin increased by approximately 0.9 percentage points to
approximately 38.8% (2023: approximately 37.9%).

EXPORT

During the Review Year, the export revenue of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB329.6 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB38.7 million or approximately
10.5% as compared with the export revenue of approximately
RMB368.3 million in the same period of 2023. The decrease in
export revenue of the Group was mainly due to the decrease in
export sales volume and average unit selling price of the Group’s
dye and agricultural chemical intermediate products during the
Review Year as compared with that in the same period of 2023.

During the Review Year, the export revenue of the Group
accounted for approximately 15.3% (2023: approximately 17.8%)
of the Group'’s total revenue.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group has always regarded research and development
and technological innovation as the fundamental drivers for the
Group’s development. We have continuously carried out research
and development of new products, improved and enhanced the
production process and product quality of existing products,
and enhanced the overall competitiveness of our products in the
market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2024, we continuously optimised our production process of
iron phosphate products for battery materials, which led to a
continuous improvement in the quality level of the products in our
existing production line. During the Review Year, the trial process
of recycling lithium iron phosphate resources and product
verification were basically completed. The implementation of the
new technology is expected to further reduce the production cost
of iron phosphate. We have continuously carried out research
and development of new lithium manganese iron phosphate and
sodium-ion battery materials to seize market opportunities and
expand our business portfolio of products. Besides, we have also
continuously optimised our production process and completed
our capacity enhancement and process optimisation for the new
material polymerised monomer BPDA, which gradually started to
contribute to the Group’s revenue.

In 2024, we continuously improved and enhanced the production
process and product quality of our traditional intermediate
products to consolidate our technological advantages, cut costs
and increase efficiency on an ongoing basis. During the Review
Year, we completed the research project of continuous tandem
esterification of DMSS products, which deepened the advantages
of energy saving and efficiency enhancement; and completed
the research project of nitrotoluene hydrogasification process,
which reduced the energy consumption during the production
of agricultural intermediate products and further lowered the
production cost. Additionally, we deeply optimised the production
process for DSD acid, which shortened the process reaction time
and led to a substantial reduction in energy consumption, thereby
strengthening our technological and cost advantages in the
industry while improving product quality at the same time.

Adhering to the belief that technology is our core competence,
we will continue to invest in research and development and make
unremitting efforts to maintain the competitive edge of our existing
products in the market and actively explore new business growth
opportunities and direction.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2024, China's economy steadily advanced toward high-
quality development through policy guidance and innovation-
driven strategies, continuing to inject momentum into global
economic growth. However, external technological restrictions,
tariff pressures, as well as the restructuring of the global industrial
chain also presented heightened challenges to China’s economic
development. Meanwhile, the global economy showed a slow
recovery, with inflationary pressures easing, trade gradually
picking up. Nevertheless, amid the interplay of geopolitical
competition, debt concerns, and trade protectionism risks, the
global economic recovery will become increasingly complex and
multifaceted.

In 2024, the penetration rate of new energy vehicles in China
and the market demand for electrochemical energy storage
continued to break through, and the power battery recycling
industry also entered a stage of large-scale expansion. However,
while China’s new energy industry chain is booming, it is also
facing pressures from various aspects such as periodic supply
and demand imbalance and intense market competition. During
the Review Year, although the market demand in the battery
materials industry continued to grow, the prices of the two core
raw materials of lithium iron phosphate, namely lithium carbonate
and iron phosphate, remained at a low level. During the Review
Year, the sales volume of the iron phosphate products of the
Group increased significantly, while its average unit selling
price still remained at a low level but was slightly higher than
the industry average. During the Review Year, battery materials
segment completed capacity optimisation by expanding the
production capacity of its current iron phosphate production line
in Dongying Factory from 50,000 tonnes/year to 70,000 tonnes/
year, and, together with the current iron phosphate production
line with capacity of 30,000 tonnes/year in Cangzhou Factory,
the Group’s total production capacity of iron phosphate products
reached 100,000 tonnes/year. During the Review Year, the
capacity utilisation rate of the Group’s iron phosphate production
lines remained at a relatively high level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2024, the decrease in sales volume and average unit selling
price of the Group’s dye and agricultural chemical intermediate
products caused great pressure on the overall profitability of the
Group. The Group will actively respond to the changes in the
supply and demand pattern in the domestic and foreign markets
to promptly adjust our pricing strategy flexibly, continue to
strengthen our customer service capabilities, optimize production
processes of the products, and improve product quality to
consolidate our competitive edge in the dye and agricultural
chemical intermediates segment.

In 2024, the Group’s pigment intermediates and new materials
segment demonstrated further improvement in market influence
and profitability, with sales volume and revenue growing further as
compared to the same period of 2023. New material polymerised
monomer BPDA products were introduced to the market and
received recognition from customers, gradually contributing to
the Group’s revenue. Meanwhile, we continued to make progress
regarding the proposed transfer of listing of Tsaker Technology
to the BSE (the “Proposed BSE Listing”). In order to diversify
the shareholder structure of Tsaker Technology and improve
its corporate image and reputation, on 25 November 2024,
Tsaker Hong Kong entered into share transfer agreements with
Changzhou Xinjin Ruiying Venture Capital* (E/ME&HAEK),
Wuxi Xingaodi Advanced Industry Investment Fund Partnership
(Limited Partnership)* (& F it a B RAEEREESCABLE (AR
4%)) and Zhongtai Securities Co., Ltd.* (FREHRDER D F)
(collectively, the “Purchasers”), pursuant to which Tsaker Hong
Kong disposed of an aggregate of approximately 3.76% equity
interest in Tsaker Technology to the Purchasers at an aggregate
consideration of RMB39,975,197.36 (the “2024 Disposals”). As
of the end of the Review Year, the transactions under the share
transfer agreement had been completed. The Company will make
further announcement(s) on the Proposed BSE Listing as and
when appropriate in accordance with the relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking ahead, amid the complex and everchanging market
environment, the Group will continue to adopt positive and
sound development strategies, steadfastly increase investment
in technology research and development, and comprehensively
improve safe production and management standard, striving to
achieve breakthroughs in the technical aspects of products in
various segments. The Group will fully leverage its significant
advantages in traditional business segments accumulated over
the years and proactively respond to the short-term challenges
in the relevant segments. In view of the tremendous development
opportunities in the new energy sector, the Group will be keen to
capture any opportunities arising from the changes in the industry,
continue to enhance its core competitiveness in the new energy
sector, and relentlessly pursue the sustainable, stable and healthy
development of the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

In 2024, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB2,157.0 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB91.5 million or approximately 4.4% as compared with that
of approximately RMB2,065.5 million in 2023. Its gross profit
amounted to approximately RMB215.2 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB103.4 million or approximately
32.5% as compared with that of approximately RMB318.6
million in 2023.
approximately 10.0%,
2023. The decrease in gross profit and gross profit margin was
mainly due to the impact of market fluctuation and changes in
the sales proportion of products at various price range within the
Group’s dyes and agricultural chemical intermediate products

In 2024, the Group’s gross profit margin was
whereas it was approximately 15.4% in

during the Review Year, leading to a decline in the average unit
selling price as compared to the same period in 2023.

NET LOSS AND NET LOSS MARGIN

In 2024, the net loss of the Group was approximately RMB1.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB46.7
million or approximately 103.3% as compared with the net
profit of approximately RMB45.2 million in 2023. In 2024, the
Group recorded net loss margin of approximately 0.1%, while it
recorded net profit margin of approximately 2.2% in 2023. The
Group recorded a net loss during the Review Year mainly due to
the decrease in gross profit of the dye and agricultural chemical
intermediates segment of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

In 2024, the selling and distribution expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB25.8 million, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB18.4 million as compared with that
of approximately RMB44.2 million in 2023. The decrease in selling
and distribution expenses was mainly due to the fact that during
the Review Year, (i) the Group implemented stringent expense
control, resulting in a decrease in certain expenses of sales as
compared with that in the same period of 2023; and (ii) the sales
volume of the Group’s export products decreased, resulting in
a decrease in freight cost and commissions related to export
business as compared with that in the same period in 2023.

In 2024, the selling and distribution expenses of the Group
accounted for approximately 1.2% (2023: approximately 2.1%) of
its total revenue.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

In 2024, the administrative expenses of the Group were
approximately RMB158.2 million, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB20.1 million as compared with that of
approximately RMB178.3 million in 2023. The decrease in
administrative expenses was mainly due to (i) the decrease in
research and development expenses of the Group during the
Review Year due to the change in the stages of the research
and development projects; and (ii) the decrease in expenses on
consultation and other services during the Review Year, as the
Group intensified its efforts on cost control.

In 2024, the administrative expenses of the Group accounted
for approximately 7.3% (2023: approximately 8.6%) of its total
revenue.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In 2024, the Group did not record any impairment losses on
property, plants and equipment (2023: approximately RMB14.0
million) or any impairment losses on intangible assets (2023: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCE COSTS

In 2024, the finance costs of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB38.3 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB5.3 million as compared with that of approximately RMB33.0
million in 2023. The increase in finance costs was mainly due to
the grant of repurchase rights to investors upon the introduction
of the first round of independent investors to Shandong TNM
Group in March and April 2023 and the transfer of partial interest
in Tsaker Technology held by Tsaker Hong Kong in June 2023,
under which the relevant repurchase obligations were recognised
as financial liabilities with interest to be accrued, resulting in
a longer interest accrual period for the above interest-bearing
financial liabilities during the Review Year as compared with the
same period in 2023. For details, please refer to the notes to the
consolidated statement of changes in equity set out in this annual
report.

EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES), NET

In 2024, the exchange gains of the Group amounted to
approximately RMBO0.4 million, whereas it recorded the exchange
losses of approximately RMB5.0 million in 2023, which was mainly
attributable to the fluctuation in the exchange rate of RMB against
USD.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China are generally
subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of 25%. Tsaker
Technology enjoys the enterprise income tax at a preferential
rate of 15% due to its possession of a high and new technology
enterprise certificate. The subsidiary of the Company in Hong
Kong is subject to the two-tiered tax rates regime, i.e., the first
HK$2.0 million of assessable profits earned will be taxed at a
rate of 8.25%, which is half of the current Hong Kong profits
tax rate, and the remaining assessable profits will continue to
be taxed at a rate of 16.5%. The subsidiary of the Company in
Singapore is generally subject to the Singapore Enterprise Income
Tax at a rate of 17.0%. In 2024, the income tax expense of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB1.9 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB12.5 million as compared with
that of approximately RMB14.4 million in 2023. The decrease in
income tax expense was mainly due to the decrease in the profit
before tax during the Review Year as compared with 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CASH FLOWS

In 2024, the net cash inflows from operating activities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB173.9 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMB127.7 million as compared with
that of approximately RMB46.2 million in 2023, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in the Group’s overall sales revenue
and the improvement in operating cash flow brought by the
increase in sales collection during the Review Year.

In 2024, the net cash outflows used in investing activities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB31.6 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB102.4 million as compared with
that of approximately RMB134.0 million in 2023, which was mainly
due to the release of the bank deposit guarantee during the
Review Year which were originally pledged in 2023 to pay for the
bills payable for the construction of Shandong TNM'’s production
line.

In 2024, the Group’s net cash outflows used in financing activities
amounted to approximately RMB162.5 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB348.2 million as compared
with the net cash inflows generated from financing activities
of approximately RMB185.7 million in 2023, which was mainly
due to (i) the completion of the introduction of the first round of
independent investors to Shandong TNM Group in 2023, while
no similar financing occurred during the Review Year; (ii) the
decrease in proceeds from transfer of partial interest in Tsaker
Technology held by Tsaker Hong Kong during the Review Year
as compared with that in the same period of 2023; and (iii) the
Group’s further optimization of its debt structure during the
Review Year, resulting in a decrease in the balance of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings at the end of the Review Year
as compared with the end of 2023. For details, please refer to
the Company’s announcements dated 25 November 2024 and 4
December 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

In 2024, the daily working capital of the Group was primarily
derived from cash flows from operations. As of 31 December
2024, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB266.8 million, of which approximately RMB227.2 million
was denominated in RMB and approximately RMB39.6 million
was denominated in other currencies (USD, HKD and SGD)
(2023: approximately RMB287.4 million, of which approximately
RMB258.7 million was denominated in RMB and approximately
RMB28.7 million was denominated in other currencies (USD, HKD
and SGD)). As of 31 December 2024, the Group had restricted
cash of approximately RMBO0.1 million, which was denominated
in RMB (2023: approximately RMB70.6 million, which was
denominated in RMB).

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings of approximately RMB208.4 million with
an interest rate of 2.95%-8.32% per annum, which were all
denominated in RMB (2023: approximately RMB317.1 million
with an interest rate of 2.8%-9.22% per annum, which were all
denominated in RMB), of which (i) approximately RMB206.6 million
shall be repayable within one year and approximately RMB1.8
million shall be repayable in the second year (2023: approximately
RMB299.1 million shall be repayable within one year,
approximately RMB12.3 million shall be repayable in the second
year, and approximately RMB5.7 million shall be repayable in the
third to fifth years (inclusive)); and (ii) all bore fixed interest rates
(2023: all bore fixed interest rates).

In 2024, the Group did not use any risk hedging instrument or
have any borrowing or hedge in its foreign currency investment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position for the year ended 31 December 2024.
To manage the liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's gearing ratio (calculated as
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings at the end of the year
divided by total equity) was approximately 10.7% as compared
with approximately 15.4% as at 31 December 2023.

CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the total current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB1,562.3 million (2023:
approximately RMB1,467.5 million),
of inventories of approximately RMB273.1 million (2023:
approximately RMB285.3 million),
notes receivable of approximately RMB974.2 million (2023:
approximately RMB742.0 million), prepayments and other
receivables of approximately RMB47.2 million (2023:
approximately RMB69.3 million), cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB266.8 million (2023: approximately RMB287.4
million) and restricted cash of approximately RMBO.1 million
(2023: approximately RMB70.6 million).

primarily consisting

trade receivables and

INVENTORIES

Inventories of the Group mainly consisted of raw materials, work-
in-progress and finished products. In 2024, the inventory turnover
days decreased by 6 days from 58 days in 2023 to 52 days. The
inventory turnover days remained relatively stable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND NOTES RECEIVABLE
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Trade receivables Z 5 e GRIE 283,864 342,512
Notes receivable W =% 690,380 399,501
974,244 742,013

As at 31 December 2024, the trade receivables and notes
receivable of the Group increased by approximately RMB232.2
million as compared with that in 2023.

The turnover days for trade receivables and notes receivable
increased to 143 days for 2024 from 122 days for 2023, which was
mainly due to (i) the increase in the Group’s sales to customers
with longer credit period in the battery materials segment; and
(ii) the significant increase in bank acceptance bills held by the
Group at the end of the Review Year.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2024, the prepayments and other receivables
of the Group decreased by approximately RMB22.1 million from
approximately RMB69.3 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2023 to approximately RMB47.2 million in aggregate, which was
mainly due to the decrease in part of the prepayments to suppliers
for the purchase of raw materials and energy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the total current liabilities of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB1,200.0 million (2023:
approximately RMB1,140.2 million),
and bills payables of approximately RMB387.0 million (2023:

primarily consisting of trade

approximately RMB472.6 million), other payables and accruals of
approximately RMB584.6 million (2023: approximately RMB277.6
million) and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB206.6 million (2023: approximately RMB299.1
million).

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The turnover days for trade and bills payables remained relatively
stable at 80 days and 88 days for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023, respectively.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2024, other payables and accruals of the
Group increased by approximately RMB307.0 million from
approximately RMB277.6 million in aggregate as at 31 December
2023 to approximately RMB584.6 million in aggregate, which was
mainly due to the increase in the endorsed notes receivable which
was not derecognised as at the end of the Review Year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB228.9 million (2023: property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and trade receivables amounted
to approximately RMB284.6 million) were pledged to secure bank
loans and other borrowings granted to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Except for the 2024 Disposals of partial interest in Tsaker
Technology by Tsaker Hong Kong during the Review Year as
disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, or significant
investment of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have other plans for material investments or
capital assets acquisition as at 31 December 2024 and the date
of this annual report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in the exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of
the Group is mainly related to its operating activities. In view of
the certain scale of export business of the Company, the Group’s
operations may be affected by the future fluctuation in exchange
rates. The Group is closely monitoring the impact of fluctuation
in currency exchange rates on the foreign exchange risk of the
Group.

The Group currently does not have any hedging policy for foreign
currencies in place. The Board will remain alert to any relevant
risks and, if necessary, consider to hedge any material potential
foreign exchange risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group has established human resources policies and systems
with a view to achieving effective management in all aspects and
building a learning-oriented organisation by providing motivational
rewards through a proper reward system and offering employees
various training programs including internal/external training and
public courses.

The remuneration package offered to the employees (including the
Directors) was in line with their duties and the prevailing market
terms. Staff benefits, including bonus, training schemes, pension
fund, medical coverage, provident funds, etc., were also provided
to the employees of the Group.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 2,134 (2023: 2,058)
employees.

During the Review Year, the total staff costs of the Group
(including salaries, bonuses, social insurances and provident
funds) amounted to approximately RMB232.0 million (2023:
approximately RMB217.1 million).

The Group did not have any share option scheme for the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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1.1

1.2

1.3

Environment, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THE REPORT
Purpose

The Company is pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Report for 2024, which
aims to explain our policies, initiatives and effectiveness in
promoting sustainable development to internal and external
stakeholders.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environment, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(‘ESG Code”), and comply with the “comply or explain”
provisions contained in the ESG Code, except for those
provisions that the Company believes are not applicable
to its business (explanations are explained in the
corresponding chapters).

Reporting Scope

This report covers the Company and its subsidiaries
(Tsaker Huayu, Tsaker Dongao, Shandong TNM, Cangzhou
Tsaker Lithium Energy, Tsaker Technology), and the
coverage period is from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024 (“Reporting Period”).
governance has been set out in the annual report in
accordance with Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.

Information on corporate

Report topic

In order to express the corporate value and development
strategy of the Company, the theme of this year's
ESG report is “Actively exploring the path of green
transformation and accelerating the promotion of
sustainable development.”
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Actively exploring the path of green transformation

In 2024, the global economy faced multiple challenges,
including the acceleration of energy transition, geopolitical
volatility, and the strengthening of green trade barriers, as
it struggled to recover. Guided by the goal of achieving
the “dual carbon goals,” we have deeply integrated
ESG governance into strategic decision-making and
operational systems. Through green technology innovation,
collaborative efforts along the industrial chain, and global
compliance layout, we are committed to achieving a
harmonious balance between environmental benefits, social
responsibility, and financial performance. The Company
actively responded to national policies, advocated for
environmental protection and sustainable development,
and emphasized resource conservation, environmental
friendliness, and ecological balance. During the Reporting
Period, the Company focused on exploring pathways
for green transformation and fulfilled its environmental
commitments through concrete actions. By implementing
innovative measures, upgrading technologies, and
improving management practices, we minimized energy
consumption and waste emissions during production. At
the same time, we actively promoted energy conservation,
emissions reduction, and resource recycling efforts. Our
efforts have yielded results. During the Reporting Period,
Shandong TNM was honoured with the titles of “Specialised
and New Little Giant” and “Dongying Green Factory”.

Accelerating Sustainable Development

In the face of the complex and ever-changing international
economic and trade environment, the Company will
continue to deepen the “spiral integration” of ESG and
business, deeply integrate technological innovation into the
ESG governance system, and promote the upgrading of
development paradigm with green technology revolution.
By accelerating the commercialization of green technology
and strengthening governance synergy, we will transform
sustainable development into a key driving force for high-
quality corporate growth. We firmly believe that only by
breaking green barriers through technological innovation
and fostering global consensus through responsible
leadership can we achieve enduring success amidst the
wave of the global energy revolution.
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1.4

1.5

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Reporting Standard

This report follows the four reporting principles of the ESG
Code of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Materiality: We regularly conduct stakeholder engagement
and materiality assessments to identify ESG issues material
to the Group's business operation.

Quantitative: The data presented in this report have been
carefully collected, and the environmental and social key
performance indicators (“Key Performance Indicators”)
have been disclosed in this report. Criteria, methods,
references and conversion factors used to calculate key
performance indicators are stated where appropriate.

Balance: Disclose relevant performance in a transparent
manner, impartially and balancedly.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, disclosures, data
collection and calculation methods have been consistent
over the years to facilitate comparisons over time.

Company Sustainable Development Governance

Our philosophy is to “Build a Better World with Green
Technology”, and to create long-term and sustainable
value for all stakeholders. Adhering to the core value, we
have adopted a strictly effective sustainable development
governance structure to ensure the implementation
of sustainable development runs through all levels of
the Company. The Company has established the ESG
Committee prior to the start of the 2020 reporting period
and established the sustainable development team in 2023
to assist the Company in managing its ESG-related issues.
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Governance Framework

Board oversight of ESG matters

The Board plays a major role in overseeing the Company’s
ESG matters. In 2024, the Board, management, and
employees responsible for ESG matters ensured the
establishment of an appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and internal control system. The Board
also formulated the Company’s annual ESG management
guidelines, strategies, priorities, and objectives; reviewed
the Company’'s performance periodically against ESG-
related targets; and approved the disclosure of information
in the Company’'s ESG report. The Board is responsible
for assessing the impact of ESG risks on the Company’s
operations and formulating corresponding ESG policies to
address these risks. Through the supervision of the Board,
it ensures that management and employees responsible
for ESG matters are provided with the necessary tools and
resources to effectively oversee ESG-related matters.

The board of directors’ ESG management methods and
strategies for major ESG-related matters

In order to deeply understand the opinions and
expectations of different stakeholders on ESG matters,
the Company conducts materiality assessments every
year. The Company ensures that it uses various platforms
and communication channels to engage, listen and
respond to its key stakeholders. Through comprehensive
communication with stakeholders, the Company is able
to understand the expectations and concerns of its
stakeholders. The feedback received enables the Company
to make more informed decisions and better assess and
manage the impact of such business decisions.

The Board

The Board, supported by the ESG Committee and the
sustainable development team, would be responsible for
all sustainability strategies, management, performance,
and reporting related to the Company. The Board also
regularly reviews the Company’s sustainable development
direction, goals and progress, and jointly review the risks
and opportunities for its sustainable development.
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ESG Committee

The main duties and responsibilities of the ESG Committee
are as follows:

o to identify related issues that have a significant
impact on the Company’s operations and/or the
interests of other important stakeholders in relation
to environmental, social and governance aspects;

° to provide guidance for and review the Company’s
ESG vision, goals and strategies, and make
recommendations to the Board for approval of
relevant environmental, social and governance
initiatives;

. to monitor and review emerging ESG trends and
issues, provide guidance for the development
of the Company’s ESG vision based on relevant
circumstances, and provide advisory opinions on
management of the current and emerging issues
that affect the Company’s ESG;

° to review and adopt risk assessment of the
Company’s impact on health, safety, environment
and society;

. to set the Company’s ESG goals, indicators, key

performance indicators and measures, monitor the
implementation of relevant measures, and evaluate
the effectiveness of relevant measures;

° to adopt and update the policies on production
safety, environmental protection, social
responsibility management and corporate
governance of the Company when necessary;

° to assist the Board in preparing the annual
environmental, social and governance report in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Listing Rules and the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Code for its consideration,
approval and disclosure;
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o to review and monitor the Company’s ESG policies
and practices to ensure compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

o to review and evaluate the performance and
terms of reference of the committee to ensure that
the committee operate at optimal efficacy and
recommend changes that it deems appropriate for
the approval of the Board;

° other matters authorized by the Board related to
health, safety, environment, social responsibility and
corporate governance.

On 20 March 2025, Mr. GE Yi, the Chairman of the Board,
was appointed as the Chairman of the ESG Committee
to comprehensively plan and oversee ESG work. Under
the leadership of Mr. GE Yi, the Company will further
strengthen its strategic leadership role ulteriorly, enhance
core competitiveness, improve the management of
major investments, and refine the strategic planning and
investment decision-making processes. These efforts
are designed to improve the Company’s performance in
ESG areas, further boosting its core competitiveness and
sustainable development capabilities.

Stakeholder Engagement and Communication
Channels

Stakeholder engagement is a core part of the Company’s
sustainable development work. We communicate with
stakeholders through multiple channels to actively
understand their expectations and requirements for the
our social responsibility. We attach great importance to
the opinions of stakeholders, incorporate their concerns
and requirements into the Company’s social responsibility
issues, and actively respond with practical actions to strive
for the common growth of stakeholders.

We focus on establishing a regular communication
mechanism with stakeholders and have established online
and offline communication channels. It promptly explains
the Company’s sustainable development strategic plan
and performance to stakeholders, consults all parties for
their opinions and requirements, analyses and develops
sustainability plans.
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Expectations

HEEER

BRI - 4 ERERERE

Main Communication Channels

FRRBERE

Shareholder or investor

BRI EE

Government or regulatory
authorities

BT BB B0

Employee

(=1

e Protect shareholders’ rights and
interests
IRIEA R M 2

e Compliance operation and
management
BRKEHER

e Information disclosure
EERE

e Return on investment
& & 615

e | egal and compliance regulation
FERNRAREE

e Tax liability
M E

e Social contributions
HEERE

e Business and economic
development
FEEBER

e Safe operation
ZREE

e Protect employees’ rights and
interests
RIS 8 TR B

e Comprehensive communication
meohanisms

0 B

° Occupanonal safety and health
BERHEE

e Employee care and welfare
BTEE LB

e Equal employment opportunities and
diversity development

EERE RS T(LER

e Shareholders meeting

BRAE

e Announcement communications
(interim reports, annual reports,
circulars and announcements)
AEBA (RERE - F3 - BEF
nE)

e Company/Stock Exchange website

NIV B35kl

e Meeting
&
e Compliance report
BRWE
e |nspect on the spot
Riswa
e Attend government meetings or
seminars
2HEPNgENANE
e Submit documents

RSt

e FElectronic communications

e
e Staff meeting
BT KR
e (Occupational safety training
B 27

e Seminars and exercise training
W g KEDE
e Performance appraisal

BREZ
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Expectations

RIR - 4 ERERERE

Main Communication Channels

MEEES HEEER TEBBRE
Customers e |ong term business relationship e Daily communication and contact
s REAEB IR H % R mE A%

Local community
=ik )

Industry Association

XREe

Suppliers
HEn

e Performance and product safety
FREERLSE

e Product quality
EmEE

* |nventory management
FEEE

e Compliance emissions
AR

e Save resources
BB IR

e Community involvement
R

e Charitable projects
N#IEE

e Comply with laws and regulations
BFARER
e Integrity management

MERE

e Product quality
EmEE

e Fair play
ATHF

e Long term business relationship
REIEBHIE
e Product quality inspection

EmEEESR

e Corporate website
1248k
e Social media
AR
e Customer satisfaction survey

EPRBERAE

e |mprove environmental management
TEREER

e Promote energy conservation
HEHEREIRENA)

e Volunteer activity
ERREE

e Charitable activities
NS

e Access
A

e Seminar
Harg

e Annual meeting

Fg

e Supplier evaluation
HrEm il
e Field trips
B ER
e Daily communication and contact

Adh 253
kN
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Importance Assessment

The Company continuously reviews the relevance of
ESG issues to our business and stakeholders, so as to
formulate comprehensive ESG management and strategies
to achieve informed decisions. We implement a four-step
materiality assessment methodology to identify and assess
material ESG issues in our business operations.

1. Identify

With reference to peer benchmarking results, ESG
issues considered to be material to the Company
are identified.

2. Prioritize

Conduct regular online stakeholder surveys
to collect feedback. Based on the importance
to stakeholders and the Company’s business
development, integrate peer
benchmarking results and stakeholder engagement
activities to determine the overall level of importance
of various ESG issues.

review and

3. Verify

The Board further reviews and verifies the results of
the above steps.

4. Review

Conduct an annual review of ESG issues to confirm
their relevance and importance to the Company’s
strategic business development.
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Important environmental issues Important social issues

HEERRE

REBEREE

RIR - 4 ERERERE

Important governance issues
ERERRE

A Air pollutant emissions
ZESRT R B

B Comply with environmental
laws and regulations

NARBABERER

J

K

C Emission of greenhouse gases L

REREE PR

D Wastewater discharge and
management
YRR AN E I

E General waste disposal

—REEYRIE

F Hazardous waste disposal

BEEEEMEE

G Material usage efficiency
RHE B 2

H Efficient use of resources
BUFAER

I Use renewable resources

RARBLEER

M

Business ethics and integrity
A EEERAE
Comply with local social laws
and regulations

HAE R ERNERER

Occupational health and safety

BEREMNLE
Employment related matters

BEEREE

Diversity and equal
opportunities
ZlbMTEEfe
Development and training
EEyss=r

Social participation

nHegsR

Salary and employee benefits
R E TR

uy)

Anti-corruption

R&EE

S Supply chain management
HEREER

T Business expansion
EBER

U Supplier evaluation and
selection
HER AT Mok

V  Product safety and quality
management
EmRrREEER

W Establish a sustainable
development framework and
strategy
| AR B RIERM KR

X Purchasing method
REH R

Y Customer privacy

BEFEL

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8%RERHE AR A 7



Environment, Social and Governance Report

243

=
E3

5]

Material Topics
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Impact on Tsaker New Energy
Contact Details B AR

If you have any comments or suggestions regarding this
report or the Company, please contact the corresponding

person of ESG Committee at the address below:

Building No. 10, 109 Jinghaisanlu, Beijing Economic

Technological Development Area, the PRC

Contact person of ESG Committee: ZOU Yahui

Telephone: (86) 010-56532886
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K = BR1095E Pt 105512
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Strict production management

The Company is committed to providing sustainable
products and services, and we also require our suppliers
to uphold the same core values. Therefore, in the process
of supply chain management, product quality management
and customer service, we not only fulfill the standard of
strict quality management, but also incorporate sustainable
elements into all aspects. In the procurement of raw
materials and selection of suppliers, green products and
partners with sustainable development awareness are
prioritized throughout the selection process. We have been
working closely with our suppliers by adopting a two-way
and constructive communication to promote suppliers’
continuous improvement and reduce green risk in the
supply chain.

Appropriate Supply Management

The Company cooperates with suppliers who are devoted
to excellence, environmental protection and business
ethics, and expects them to emphasize environmental
and social responsibility. We continue to improve the
management mechanism of the material supply chain and
have formulated several management measures such as
“Measures for Introducing Raw Material Suppliers” and
“Raw Material Procurement Management System” to strictly
control the internal procurement process.

In order to ensure the quality of purchased materials and
supply stability, standardize the procurement method,
and simultaneously achieve cost reduction, enhance
supplier interaction, and achieve a win-win situation, we
have developed a series of procurement and supplier
management system:

° Market research and/or site visits are conducted to
identify an initial list of shortlisted suppliers. Before
cooperating with new suppliers, the Company
conducts rigorous inspections and supplier
qualification assessments to ensure that they
meet its standards in terms of quality and safety,
occupational health and training and anti-corruption.
Suppliers with leading technical conditions, good
corporate reputation and outstanding business
systems would have priority.
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For new suppliers, approval and selection are made
at any time, and the relevant departments would
conduct a scoring process to assess the progress,
quality, after-sales service, service attitude,
capability and continuity of their supply/service.
The Company would assist those suppliers with
lower scores by providing feedbacks and waiting
for improvement and re-assessment. The Company
conducts performance monitoring and evaluation
to ensure that all suppliers on the list remain
qualified. Suppliers who have failed the Company’s
assessment are required to promptly adopt
corrective and/or remedial measures; otherwise the
unqualified suppliers will be suspended or removed
from its approved supplier list.

Site visits to our suppliers’ production locations are
conducted on annual basis in order to precisely
monitor the sustainable performance of our
suppliers. The visits primarily assess suppliers’
performance from an ESG perspective and allow
the suppliers to take appropriate follow-ups.
We are expected to maintain close contact with
our suppliers and jointly practice the concept of
sustainable development.

All purchased materials coming into the factory are
subject to strict examination organized by quality
control departments guided by the Company
restricted documents. Only qualified materials can
proceed into the warehousing procedures, while
unqualified materials are replaced or returned.

In order to strengthen our control over our
suppliers’ social responsibility, we have established
a “Supplier Code of Conduct”, which sets out
requirements for all categories of direct and indirect
suppliers we work with in terms of labor, ethics,
health, safety, environment and quality standards.
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We emphasize the control of environmental and social risks
of our upstream and downstream suppliers, continuously
pay attention to the fulfillment of our suppliers’ performance
in labor, safety and environmental protection, etc. We
encourage suppliers to strictly follow procedures to ensure
quality management meets the required standards. We
actively promote alignment of our suppliers’ sustainability
vision with ours and adopt a good sustainability approach.
The suppliers of the Company demonstrate strong
commitments to good ESG practices covering issues such
as environmental sustainability, health and safety, and
ethical conduct.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company had
a total of 1,265 local raw material suppliers, representing
an increase of 255 suppliers as compared with the same
period in 2023, with the sources of increase mainly being
Shandong TNM and Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy
base. The data of raw material suppliers by region is listed
below:

RIR - 4 ERERERE

BRERE IHHEEAERRE R SRRAN
B BEMIAERAESTIERZE - RE
REZTHNETER  BHERERE
SRR URERETEEEENENRER
SK o REAR HE B (4 FE R R H P AR AT — BN AT
BERBASURARFOAFERRTSH -
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BEARERR - REHE R R E HE
#1,265%K - L —T = R HEE HN255
R EINRRERRIURE RV EFAM
FREBREEM - iR B0 W EM R ER
BT

Number of Suppliers

HEEEE
Category Rl 2024 2023
Local PiNS: 1 1,265 1,010
Overseas RSB 0 0
2.2  Quality control 22 HEEEE

The Company emphasizes product quality and ensures
it through strict management measures. We follow the
ISO9001:2015 standard by regularly inspecting and
maintaining our facilities, controlling key environmental
factors, as well as monitoring and improving the production
process concurrently. These measures ensure that we
provide high-quality products and services, earn the
trust of our customers, and establish a foundation for
sustainable development.

During the Reporting Period, the certifications of quality
management system for Tsaker Huayu, Tsaker Technology,
Tsaker Dongao and Shandong TNM have been renewed,
and Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy has also obtained
the quality management system certification.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company and its
subsidiaries received a total of 18 awards and certifications

as listed below:

Production Base
S EEM

Name of Corporate Award

HEREELH

BRI - 4 ERERERE

EARBERA - REIREMBARREST

SI18TREEIA Ko iR+

Awarding Organization

R

Tsaker New Energy
R HTREIR

Tsaker Huayu
MEER

Tsaker Technology

FERH

China Top 100 Fine Chemicals

hEFAETAR

Top 100 Companies in Special Chemical
Product Sales Revenue
ERCEEREEHEEWRARI100K

Top 500 Petroleum and Chemical
Companies in Sales Revenue
AmAE TR ERARS005K

Innovation Award of Hebei Province
Industry-University-Research
Cooperation

AL E ERH A FRIF R

Demonstration Enterprise for
Technological Innovation in China
Petroleum and Chemical Industry

PEIARAE TIT R RIF R e E %

Hebei Province Top 100 Private
Enterprises for Invention Patents
b e REREERAERN 10058 B

The First Hebei Brand Enterprise
HiEbmhR

Innovation Award of Hebei Province
Industry-University-Research

Cooperation

b E ERH A (ERIFT R

China National Chemical Industry
Information Association, National
Fine Chemical Raw Materials and
Intermediates Industry Association
Group

PR TERESHE
HRhEEgTERedE

2EBALTR

China Chemical Enterprise Management
Association
FE(CThXEREDGS

China Chemical Enterprise Management
Association
RE(CThEEREDS

Hebei Province Industry-University-
Research Cooperation Promotion
Association

LR ESHAERES

Technology and Equipment Department
of China Petroleum and Chemical
Industry Federation

R ELAH A B2 TR & SRR B R A 0

Federation of Industry and Commerce of
Hebei Province
b TR RS

Hebei Administration for Marketing
Regulation
AN EEEER

Hebei Province Industry-University-
Research Cooperation Promotion
Association

Mt EESHAERES
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Name of Corporate Award

EREEM

RIR - 4 ERERERE

Awarding Organization

REHE

Shandong TNM
L BRF R

Tsaker Dongao

FERR

»

Specialized and New “Little Giant
HREHINEA]

The Third Batch of “Shandong’s Good
Product” Brand

F=H[FmILR ] dig

Advanced Collective of Digital Economy

DIE

Br BT R

F

[§

Green Factory of Dongying City

REMERE T

The Third Prize of Excellent Case of
Dongying Smart City
REMBENMEFRA =55

Recognized Enterprise Technology
Center of Shandong Province

R R E bR

Shandong Province Single Champion
Enterprises

IWREBHEEELE

Shandong Province High-end Brand
Cultivation Enterprises

WRESHMEEHBEELE
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Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology
TEMERLER

Shandong Administration for Market
Regulation
IWREATIBEEERR

Dongying Municipal People’s
Government

REMARBUA

Dongying Municipal Bureau of Industry
and Information Technology
REMIITEMEERE

Dongying Big Data Bureau

REMABER

Shandong Provincial Development and
Reform Committee

WREERRMNELZE S

Industry and Information Technology
Department of Shandong Province
and Shandong Federation of Industrial
Economics

IWERETEMERCBEMLUERS TELR

ik AN o
EEN==

Administration for Market Regulation of
Shandong Province
IWREATSEEEER
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RIE  #HERERRE

Production Base Name of Corporate Award Awarding Organization

EEEN HEREELR HRHAE

Cangzhou Tsaker Technology SME of Hebei Province Science and Technology Department of
Lithium Energy Hebei Province
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Innovation Award of Hebei Province Industry-  Hebei Province Industry-University-

University-Research Cooperation Research Cooperation Promotion
Association
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2.3 Product Stewardship

Adhering to the service philosophy of “customer-centric,”
the Company continuously strengthens the construction
of customer service system across all stages, including
pre-sales, in-sales, and after-sales. By standardizing
management processes and improving service quality, the
Company ensures the protection of customer rights.

o The sales department investigates the situation
related to the product that the customer complains
about in detail, understands the reason for the
customer’s complaint, confirms the customer’s
complaint request, assists the customer in solving
the difficult issues or provides the necessary
references, and conveys the results of the process

promptly.

° When sales staff receive feedback from customers
reflecting product abnormalities, the abnormalities
in the specific circumstances and customer
requirements would be immediately identified, and
the relevant text records combined with abnormal
samples would be delivered to the person in the
sales department who is responsible for handling,
while the sales department will reflect the received
customer problems through the mail sent to the
quality control department and forward to the
general manager’s office simultaneously.

o The quality control department coordinates with
the relevant departments to trace and analyze the
reasons, draw up processing countermeasures,
and submit the correlated results to the sales
department.

° After receiving the proposed process
countermeasures, the responsible staff of the sales
department would communicate and negotiate with
the customer to reach a scientific and appropriate
solution and implement it. The process results
should be recorded.

° To avoid repetition of mistakes, we also share
complaints that have been addressed in the past
as case studies to raise the awareness of other
staff. Topics regarding improving production and
inspecting procedures as well as corresponding
countermeasures would be discussed as well.
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During the Reporting Period, the Company was not
notified of any recall of products due to safety and quality
concerns.

The Company attaches importance to the trust and
support of its customers and is committed to providing
quality services to meet their needs. We conduct regular
satisfaction surveys and continue to optimize its products
and services to enhance customer experience. The
Company attaches great importance to ensuring customer
satisfaction with the products and services provided.
Quality control measures coupled with the systems
developed by each department ensure compliance and
accountability for product liability. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not receive any dissatisfaction
complaints. However,
step up its efforts in innovation and services to improve
product quality. We are customer-focused, actively fulfill
its corporate social responsibility and promote sustainable
development of the industry.

our Company would continue to

Intellectual Property Management

The Company strictly observes the Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China, Patent Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Trademark Law of the People’s Republic
of China, Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China as well as other relevant laws and
regulations. In addition, all the patents, trademarks and
copyrights have been applied to the competent government
units of intellectual property rights for the corresponding
right certificates. In the scenario where third-party patents
or works are involved, the transfer contracts of the patents
or writings are signed with the third party.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Company owned
a total of 114 pieces of proprietary intellectual property
rights. Comparing with the previous reporting period, the
proprietary intellectual property rights owned increased 28
pieces.
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Customer Privacy Protection

The Company is committed to protecting the data privacy
of all stakeholders. For example, we have clarified
that confidentiality agreements must be signed when
negotiating with suppliers, customers or partners in order
to fully protect the interests of all parties. In addition, in
order to prevent leakage of customer data, the Company
has issued clear guidelines to all employees regarding the
collection and handling of customers’ personal or business
data to ensure the security of private data.

Business Integrity
Anti-Corruption

The Company recognizes that honesty, integrity and
fairness are essential core values in our business
operations. All employees are required to strictly comply
with the “Anti-fraud Management System” established
by the Company, which clearly states our zero-tolerance
principle against bribery and embezzlement. We
conduct regular internal audits to identify internal control
deficiencies and take remedial actions accordingly. We are
committed to establishing and maintaining a transparent,
fair and clean business environment to ensure that all
business activities comply with laws and regulations which
reflects our strong belief in integrity and ethics. Business
integrity is the core pillar of sustainable development
for enterprises. Through the anti-corruption system that
integrates system improvement, process optimization
and cultural cultivation, we have constructed an integrity
ecosystem with full participation. During the Reporting
Period, we achieved zero cases of corruption and 100%
compliance audit coverage.

During the Reporting Period, there were no legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Company
and its employees.
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Whistle-blowing Procedures

The Company encourages employees to report misconduct
such as embezzlement, bribery, extortion, money
laundering or fraud. The Company has established a
compliance organizational system with checks and
balances, clarified the powers and responsibilities of
the Board of Directors and Shareholders and added a
compliance-related organization. We have improved the
compliance system, with the articles of association of the
Company as the core and anti-misconduct compliance as
the focus.

We have established a whistleblowing mechanism
according to the “Whistle-blowing Policy” and investigate
the whistleblowing information and report it to the
management and relevant governmental authorities. In
the process of investigation, we promise to take sufficient
confidentiality measures to protect the identity of the
whistleblower. Once an act of corruption is confirmed,
the employee involved would be dismissed immediately.
In addition, we will continue to review and improve our
internal control system and anti-corruption system to
prevent the occurrence of corrupt practices. The Company
has not detected any cases of corruption during the
Reporting Period.
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Anti-Corruption Training

The Company provides seminars and trainings related
to fraud, money laundering and anti-corruption to our
directors and employees in accordance with the “Anti-
Corruption Policy”, including both internal and online
trainings. These trainings are aimed at strengthening
employees’ anti-corruption awareness, ensuring their
understanding of and compliance with the Company’s
anti-corruption policy, and providing the necessary tools
and knowledge for them to identify and prevent corrupt
practices. The anti-corruption training covers compliance
requirements, conflict of interest statements and case
studies. Through case studies, employees can gain an in-
depth understanding of the characteristics and risks of
various embezzlement and fraudulent behaviours so that
they can better ensure honesty, integrity and fair play of
business activities, and commit to establishing, maintaining
and reviewing the anti-bribery policies. In addition, training
on conflict-of-interest declarations helps employees identify
potential conflicts of interest and provide solutions to
ensure that the Company’s interests are maximized and
integrity is maintained. Through these training activities,
the overall objective is to arouse employees’ awareness
of anti-corruption and to foster an honest and fair working
atmosphere. During the Reporting Period, the Company
provided anti-fraud education and training to every new
employee.

The laws and regulations we comply with include but not
limited to the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong
Kong, etc.

Advertising and Labelling

Due to the Company’'s business nature, our business
activities related to advertising and labelling matters are
relatively limited.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8%RERHE AR A 7

2.7

RIR - HERERRE

REFEI
AREARBEIRESHE) REEMEB TiRH A
HEF - ABENRESHEMT S REN - 8
AR RIEG - BB EEMBRET
MRESEH - ERMM T HEIETRAR
REGBER - WM T A H K
AIMPBEEBTTR - REFBINATRE
TERENXR  NEHRBHMETFRET
H e BRRMDN - EIAURATREE
B MERGFIT RV AN AR - (B i
BREHEHETHE  BERRFHT
WAREEY #RFRERRBBBOR © It
Sh - MEFRBAFI AN E TRRIEE
Rz @2 - WIREMBARTTER - AR A A
NI FRAE KBS #E - BBELEEIE
B EERERENRERR  BE—EW
EMAFOTERE - EAREHARN - QA
BEAMARE TETRESRHEE -

BABROEZRZEZRBRENRR(FE
ARKAMBRRNE) - F&CH LR RG]

%o

EERER

EREARLHME  RIERES REZ®
EEMEEEHERD -



Environment, Social and Governance Report

SAFE AND ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY WORK
ENVIRONMENT

The Company has always considered the health and
safety of its employees as a top priority. To achieve this
goal, we have set up dedicated safety and environmental
protection departments (“S&E Department”) in each of the
company, which are assigned the difficult task of ensuring
that the production process is in compliance with local
regulations. As the core organization for internal safety and
environmental protection management within the enterprise,
the S&E Department is primarily responsible for integrating
national laws and regulations, industry standards, and
the actual conditions of the enterprise to formulate a
comprehensive, specific and practical set of safety and
environmental protection rules and regulations, ensuring
that all enterprise activities are carried out in compliance
with safety and environmental protection requirements.
The S&E Department regularly organizes various safety
and environmental protection training activities to enhance
employees’ safety and environmental protection awareness
and skill level. The trainings include safety operation
procedures, emergency response measures, environmental
protection knowledge, etc. The S&E Department is
responsible for conducting comprehensive investigation
and assessment of various safety and environmental
protection risks within and outside of the Company, and
formulating corresponding management measures and
emergency plans. At the same time, it performs dynamic
monitoring of hidden risks to ensure their effective control.
The S&E Department collects, organizes and analyses
relevant monitoring data, identifies existing problems
and hidden risks through data analysis, and proposes
improvement measures.

The establishment of the S&E Department not only
strengthens the communication and exchange of regulatory
knowledge among various departments, but also effectively
reduces the potential environmental impact and risk
generated during employees’ activities. This not only helps
to improve production efficiency and quality, but also
fully demonstrates the Company’s concern and protection
toward employees and the environment. By strengthening
safety management and environmental protection
measures, the Company actively fulfils its corporate social
responsibility and ensures its sustainable development and
the harmonious progress of the society.
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Safety Management

Production safety is the bedrock of a chemical enterprise,
the lifeblood of its development and the prerequisite for all
its endeavors. The Company adheres to the principle of
“safety first, prevention first” and is committed to creating a
safe working environment for its employees. The Company
strictly observes the occupational health and safety
policy, provides resources and training, emphasizes on
occupational health and safety in the production process,
continuously reduces the risk of employees, equipment and
environment. In addition, the Company also places relevant
safety guidelines at prominent positions in different working
areas to remind our employees to pay attention to safety,
so as to avoid the risk of collision, tension and confusion.

Establishment of occupational health and safety
management system

The Company implements and enforces national laws,
regulations, policies and standards on safety and
occupational disease prevention and control, such as The
Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, The
Fire Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, The
Law of the People's Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases and the Measures for
Supervision and Administration of Occupational Health
Monitoring in Employing Units. In accordance with the
requirements of 1ISO45001 Occupational Health and Safety
Management System and Work Safety Standardization,
the Company has established a strict safety management
system, strengthened the management of occupational
disease prevention and control, improved the standard
of prevention and control of occupational diseases,
effectively safeguarded the occupational health and safety
of the workers in the course of their work, and achieved
the occupational health and safety objectives set by the
Company which promote the economic development of the
enterprise.
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We have continued to build a professional safety
management team and have been strengthening the
systematization and standardization of safety management
while promoting the certification of ISO45001 occupational
health and safety management system in each company.
As at the end of this Reporting Period, Tsaker Huayu,
Tsaker Technology, Tsaker Dongao, Shandong TNM
and Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy obtained their
certification of occupational health and safety management
systems, respectively. Among them, during the Reporting
Period, the occupational health and safety management
system certifications of Tsaker Huayu, Tsaker Technology
and Tsaker Dongao have been extended, while Cangzhou
Tsaker Lithium Energy and Shandong TNM have obtained
the occupational health and safety management system
certification in the previous reporting period.

Safeguarding Occupational Health

The Company pays attention to the occupational
health of its employees, and continues to promote the
establishment of the ISO45001 occupational health and
safety management system in strict accordance with The
Occupational Disease Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and The Provisions on
Supervision and Management of Occupational Hygiene
in Workplaces and other relevant national laws and
regulations. We provide supervision and management
of occupational health and safety for employees before,
during and after work, adopt various preventive and
disposal measures, and build up employees’ awareness
of occupational safety through the promotion of corporate
safety culture, which ultimately create a healthy and safe
workplace environment for our employees. During the
Reporting Period, no incidents of damage to personnel
health caused by occupational hazards were detected.
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Occupational Hazard Protection Measures

The Company commissions a qualified occupational health
technical service organization to test the occupational
disease hazards at the production site on annual basis
to ensure that the working environment is in compliance
with the national standards. Each company conducts pre-
employment occupational health training and regular
occupational health training for workers during their
employment, aiming to popularize occupational health
knowledge. The Company urges workers to comply with
laws, regulations, rules and operating procedures related
to occupational disease prevention, and regularly carries
out safety inspections and hidden risks investigations,
with timely rectifications made. In addition, the Company
actively implements regular maintenance and repair work
on its equipment to ensure safe and stable operation,
thereby comprehensively preventing operational risks.
Each company optimizes their working environment by
adopting engineering and technical measures such as
ventilation and cooling for high-temperature positions, dust
removal devices for dusty workplaces, and fume hoods for
laboratory chemical-using positions. In addition, we adopt
several measures including installing noise elimination
devices, installing additional soundproof booths, promoting
the automation and upgrading of equipment, and reducing
noise sources in order to lower the noise level in the
workplaces. In addition to distributing materials such as
noise-proof earplugs to employees, the “noise rotation
system” is also implemented to reduce single exposure
time of employees. During the Reporting Period, a series
of solutions to optimize the working environment for
employees have been applied in multiple areas.
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Use and Storage of Hazardous Chemicals

The Company has established a strict safety management
system for loading, unloading, transportation, use and
storage of hazardous chemicals. The production bases
with dangerous chemical storage are in compliance with
the corresponding standards and regulations as well as
the requirements of the national “Fire protection code
for the engineering design of fine chemical enterprise”.
Specialized safety education and training are provided
to personnel involved in the use of hazardous chemicals.
Labour protection equipment is distributed according to
the hazardous properties of the hazardous chemicals,
and employees are urged to use the equipment correctly.
During the Reporting Period, the Company also provided
regular training on chemical management to its employees,
which reduced the risks arising from improper operations.

Strengthening safety awareness

The Company regularly organizes safety awareness
training for its employees, and carries out special activities
such as training on the five quality tools and training on the
Work Safety Law, which further enhances the employees’
awareness of their self-safety responsibilities through full
participation. In addition, our Company carries out activities
such as online safety training and education seminar, as
well as all-employee reflection activity regarding past safety
accident warning. Moreover, the Company continues to
issue internal newspapers to publicize newly promulgated
laws and regulations, safety accident warnings, safety
knowledge, etc. It conducts occupational health publicity to
educate employees about occupational disease prevention
and treatment, as well as occupational hygiene knowledge,
through internal push, on-site billboards, plant slogans,
brochures, and other online and offline methods in order
to strengthen their safety awareness and comprehensively
promote the construction of the enterprise’s safety culture.
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During the Reporting Period, we organized regular
production safety and occupational health training before
and during employment to strengthen the safety awareness
of our employees. The Company organized 26 times
of safety training with a total duration of 117 hours for
employees. In addition, every employee at least received
20 hours of safety training. Besides, we organized another
264 times of pre-employee safety training sessions, with an
average training duration of 72 hours.

Safety Production Training (Tsaker Huayu)
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Equipped with safety facilities

To ensure the personal safety of our employees, the
Company has adopted a series of strict and effective
measures. We have installed all kinds of accident
prevention and control facilities, including alarm
systems for pressure, temperature, liquid level and
other parameters, as well as detection systems for
combustible gas, hazardous gas and oxygen, in order
to comprehensively enhance the capability of safety
protection. Meanwhile, in order to ensure the safe
operation of machinery and equipment, the equipment
maintenance department carries out at least one inspection
and rectification work toward the safety protection devices
every month, while also reporting the relevant situation to
the S&E Department on time for the purpose of keeping
records. Through these disciplined and standardized
safeguard measures, we are able to ensure the personal
safety of our employees. During the Reporting Period,
Tsaker Dongao carried out production system overhaul
and launched solving hidden safety danger projects.
Besides, Tsaker Technology also carried out production
system overhaul projects. Tsaker Huayu completed the
class A warehouse construction project, while Tsaker
Technology completed the upgrade of the hydrogen power
distribution room. Through the production system overhaul
and safety hazard management project, we thoroughly
overhauled and updated our production equipment to
ensure that it complied with the latest safety standards
and requirements. We have taken immediate and effective
corrective measures for the identified safety hazards to
ensure that no safety risks arise in the production process
due to environment or equipment.
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3.2

Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Company has installed fire prevention, fire
extinguishing and emergency escape facilities at all
production bases. These facilities include the installation
of firewalls, the equipping of fire extinguishers and the
planning of escape routes. The Company strictly enforces
the production safety responsibility system and clarifies
safety management responsibilities at all levels. During the
Reporting Period, the Group carried out 444 inspections of
hidden safety hazards and identified 2,053 hidden hazards,
all of which have been completed and rectified. Authorities,
including the emergency management departments, law
enforcement brigades and environmental law enforcement
departments of different provinces, cities, ports and
districts operated a total of 132 inspections toward the
Group, 876 items were identified, 100 percent of proposed
issues have been rectified. With our comprehensive safety
measures, the Company did not have any work-related
fatalities during the Reporting Period, achieving the safety
goal of zero work-related fatalities in the last three years
(covering the Reporting Period). The lost workdays due to
work-related injuries of the Company were 1,175 days in
total during the Reporting Period.

Environmental Protection

The Company strictly abides by The Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, Air
Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Water Pollution Prevention and Control
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes, and other relevant
national laws and regulations. Wastewater, waste gas and
solid waste generated in the course of production and
operation activities of each company are reasonably and
effectively disposed of according to the national and local
environmental protection requirements.

The Company actively responds to the national concept of
green development, and it is our continuous goal to persist
and promote the sustainable development. Under this
guidance, we are constantly striving to optimize resource
allocation, enhance cost-effectiveness and strengthen
energy conservation. We have implemented a number of
green measures designed to demonstrate our long-term
commitment to environmental protection.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Management System Development

The Company continuously promotes the certification
application across its production base to improve the level
of environmental management. We continue to promote
cleaner production and successfully achieve cleaner
production and pollution reduction through process
optimization, equipment upgrading, waste recycling,
etc.; we continue to promote ISO14001 environmental
management system certification. Through the introduction
of external professional counseling organizations, we
cultivate the awareness of environmental protection among
all employees, implement environmental improvement and
upgrade, and continually improve the enterprise’s ability
of environmental management. We continue to promote
ISO50001 energy management system certification.
Following the system management requirements, a
complete and effective energy management system
has been established within the Company, i.e., energy
saving monitoring, energy auditing, energy efficiency
benchmarking, energy saving assessment and other
activities have been systematized and professionalized to
fulfil the social responsibility. At the end of the Reporting
Period, Tsaker Huayu, Tsaker Technology, Tsaker Dongao,
Shandong TNM and Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy
obtained certificates of environmental management
system certification and energy management system
certification. More specifically, during the Reporting
Period, the environmental management system and energy
management system certificates of Tsaker Huayu, Tsaker
Technology and Tsaker Dongao have been renewed, while
Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy and Shandong TNM
have obtained the environmental management system
certification and energy management system certification.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Environmental Policy

In order to further strengthen the environmental
performance management of business operations, the
Company has obtained the 1SO14001:2015 environmental
management system, and according to this international
standard, each subsidiary formulated the Environmental
Protection Management System based on their own actual
conditions. This system elaborates on the Company’s
relevant policies and measures to promote sustainable
development:

° Carrying out environmental impact assessment and
applying for emission permits in strict accordance
with the requirements of national environmental
protection standards, installing online monitoring
equipment according to the requirements set out
in the environmental impact assessment report
and emission permits. Upon the occurrence of
data anomalies, immediately organizing relevant
personnel to analyze the anomalies and actively
maintaining rectifications.

. Strengthening environmental protection training
for Company employees, enhancing environmental
protection awareness, and improving the technology
level of environmental protection.

o Strengthening the detecting, monitoring and
implementation of supervision and management of
environmental factors, establishing a risk prevention
system for environmental factors, and improving
the ability to prevent and deal with sudden
environmental pollution incidents.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

° Following the principles of impartiality, fairness,
convenience, and timeliness to disclose corporate
environmental information.

o Disciplining the persons responsible for
environmental pollution accidents, and setting
up environmental protection target responsibility
assessment.

Climate change and energy

The Company actively responds to the national energy
conservation and emission reduction policies and closely
monitors the national climate change related policies and
dynamic development trends. Our Company proactively
identifies climate change risks and opportunities,
formulates significant measures on mitigation, adaptation
and resistance to climate change, and regularly reviews the
Company’s progress and annual performance in achieving
energy conservation and carbon reduction. Climate change
will bring various risks to the Company’s businesses and
operations. Apart from physical risks such as extreme
weather and water shortages, it will also affect assets
and employees. Climate change also brings opportunities
to promote the Company’s innovation in production
technology and process to assist enterprises in developing
a low-carbon economy. Our company will remain
committed to the development of a low-carbon economy,
and unswervingly follow the high-quality development path
of prioritizing eco-environmental conservation and pursuing
green, low-carbon development based on the national 14th
Five-Year Plan and the long-term goal of 2035.

The Board and ESG Committee take climate change
very seriously through discussing the issue and making
recommendations to address the risks and opportunities of
climate change at an early stage.
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Risk Types
ERER

Risk Descriptions

BB

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Potential Impacts

BERE

RIS -

Financial impact assessment

B2 i

HERERAERE

Response actions

RHTH

Physical risks
EEmk

Increased frequency and
magnitude of extreme weather
and natural disasters such
as typhoons, floods, and
droughts

BE K ZESFERRAR
EREREEERRRERE

Bl

e

.

When facing the increased chances 1°

of extreme weather events, this
could lead to disruption of the raw
materials supply chain which results
in the need to increase the number of
days of raw materials and products
storage. At the same time, extreme
weather could lead to the damage

of our factories and equipment, as 2~

well as the loss of raw materials or
products. The disruption of roads
leads to difficulties in raw materials
or products transportation, and it may
also lead to power outages or water

shutdowns, affecting the production of 3~

our products.

AHEAREEHRLNLERRS - T

BYRMBHEEDE  IFENRY 4

B EmeRORE FE - BEXR
THEFRERALR  RHAERR
X BRTHEBRMAZEREER
& IR eRuAREIRKNER ¥
SERMLE-
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Increase in the number of days
of raw materials and products
storage, requiring expansion or
additional rental of warehouses,
resulting in increased costs;
ENEMH  ERREOXE B
ERBYEIMEERE  BEUK
i

Blockage of raw materials
or product transportation
process, resulting in increased
transportation costs;
RiHIZEREHARRE 8Y
BREREM:

Damage to equipment, resulting
in a loss of asset valug;
RERSEREEENR:

Loss of raw materials or
products, resulting in an
increase in operating costs and
a decrease in profit.
FHHSEREX  SHEEME
i MEHD «

1+ According to the degree of
shortage of materials and
water, changing the production
sequence, or initiating the
production reduction measures;
KIERH - KRR HEEE
IBF - SEBRER

2 Establishing an energy anomalies
emergency response team,
and developing corresponding
“energy anomalies emergency
plan guidelines” as well
as emergency operating
procedures, responding
accordingly to energy supply
abnormalities (including water,
electricity, coal, gasoline, natural
gas, etc. which are required
during production and business
activities);
RUgRERES M - #IE(
REFERRREGER) RE
SEXRE UREHERME
E(REEERERDMENK
R AR RRRE)RRH
&

3+ Purchasing disaster insurance
for the factory to minimize the
impact of financial shocks;
BREAERE B UHENE
L2 ¥

4~ Developing emergency response
mechanism and regular risk
assessment, increasing the
proportion of local procurement
to reduce the risk of production
stoppage due to logistics
disruption.
byl d Tillabateds 25l
TE RETRELD - BER
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Risk Types
ERER

Risk Descriptions

BB

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Potential Impacts

BERE

Financial impact assessment

B2 i

RIE #HERER

wE

Response actions

RHTH

Transition risks

g1Ek

Opportunities
BB

Climate-related policies

REEERR

Resource utilization efficiency

Yl

China's dual carbon commitment 1-

and related policies and regulations
would drive industrial carbon
reduction targets and actions. In
this context, enterprises will be

subject to carbon emission reduction 2+

quota management, and carbon
trading will be required when the
Company exceeds the emission
threshold. Additionally,
will also be imposed. All these could
cause our energy costs to rise,
affecting production and product
competitiveness.
TEEREERRERR AR SR
RRERRTE - ERERT HhkE

TARHHERER  HRELNELF
EMHRRR S - TeRaBRER - &
e EREl %ﬁ&$mtﬂ'%
EEERERRE

By improving the efficiency of 1-

production processes, machines and
logistics, as well as applying process
improvement concurrently to improve
product yields, it ultimately reduces

medium - and long-term operating 2°

costs, contributes to the circular
economy, and enhances brand power.
BRREFAEERE ESRERDROK
2 TEYERAERRE  REPRY
BENA PHEREE RAGES -

carbon tax 3°

Increase in operating expenses 1°

due to purchase of carbon
emission allowances;
BERGNEREHEEERE
il

Increase in operating expenses
due to payment of non-
compliance fees;
SIERBREHERERLM:
Increase in depreciation,
amortization of equipment and
increase in operating costs due
to structural adjustments on the

production side. 28

REEREBLDEMENRAT
ERRBRAN - SEpALN -

Improvement of energy use 1°

efficiency and reduction of
operating costs;
mfﬁﬁﬁfhﬂ HEEER
pi

Increase in brand power and 2°

[evenue.

RIENRT - ElEm -

In the scenario of meeting local
limit, coordinating production
downtime, maximizing the
production and satisfying
limitation of the target; at the
same time, prejudging the
situation of power limitation,
coordinating the production plan
of each plant by the Company;
ERREHRET BAFKEE
BE ZAREHRREEERE
B ARBHRENZ  2AR
ERTREEHS:

Arranging Energy Use and
Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Status and Performance Review
on annual basis;
EREREREREAZRERN
HREENEY :

Introducing energy saving and
emission reduction project;
LA E N
Continuously increase the
proportion of green energy.

ARABELRAL -

Reducing raw material
consumption through the product
process improvement;
BREMIBYE  RERMEA
i

Expanding the reuse of non-
hazardous waste resources.

BAEELERNARENA -
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RIR - 4 ERERERE

Risk Types Risk Descriptions Potential Impacts Financial impact assessment Response actions

BREY el BEY agis2 S a8

Opportunities ~ Application of Recycle Energy  With the rapidly declining cost of 1~ Improvement of energy use Actively developing renewable energy
HE BERRER decentralized clean energy and efficiency and reduction of projects and continuously expanding

increased energy reserve capacity,
we can expand the use of renewable
energy at a lower cost, thereby

reducing annual energy costs as well 2

as medium - and long-term operating
costs and increasing sustainable
brand recognition.
BEDHBRRRNRTRATE - &
RREEENRS  BAAAMAEEORA
BATBERRNER  KMBEEFEL:
BREARPRELERE - REMAT
RENTAE -

operating costs;
EREARERA - BRIELEN pressure of the Company's energy

i

project scale can alleviate the cost

transformation.

Increase in brand power and FEHFEARLEFETUFEEAEE

revenue.

B MRER R RELNNARS -

i fi - SR -

The Company is located in North China. With climate
change, the incidence and severity of extreme weather and
natural disasters such as heatwaves, intense precipitation
blizzard and sand storms are expected to increase. When
facing the increased chances of extreme weather events,
this could lead to disruption of the materials supply chain
which may result in the need to increase the number of
days of raw materials and products storage. At the same
time, extreme weather could lead to the damage of our
factories and equipment, the loss of materials or products.
The disruption of roads leads to difficulties in raw materials
and products transportation, and it may also lead to power
outages or water shutdowns, affecting the production of
our products.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

The Company has always adhered to the principle of
environmental friendliness, strictly complied with all
laws and regulations, and set up a number of internal
initiatives to achieve carbon and pollution reduction.
During the Reporting Period, the Company continued to
make various improvements to reduce carbon emissions.
We optimized its real-time energy monitoring system,
including five networking systems for water, electricity,
coal, steam and natural gas, to forecast the trend of energy
consumption, improve the efficiency of energy distribution
and utilization, gradually increase energy efficiency in
production while reducing electricity consumption, thereby
reducing greenhouse gas emissions. The Company set
up a sustainable development team, responsible for the
study and research the “dual-carbon” policy and the
“greenhouse gas” policy. The sustainability team actively
communicates and cooperates with professional technical
organizations and industry experts to explore how to better
promote the “dual carbon” and “carbon compliance” work
inside the enterprises. Through the study, the sustainability
team stayed updated on relevant national policies, while
also carrying out carbon emission accounting and report
preparation.

Management of Air Pollutant Emissions

The major sources of the Company’s air pollutant emission
are the coal from Tsaker Huayu Plants, natural gas in each
production plant, the incinerators that handle hazardous
waste and fuel usage for transportation. The air pollutants
emitted mainly include nitrogen oxide (“NOx”), sulfur
oxide (“SOx”), and Particulate Matters. The Company
pays great attention to the impact caused by atmospheric
pollutants generated during production on the surrounding
environment and the health of our employees.
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The Company has formulated coal procurement guidelines
to reduce the negative impact of air pollutants, stipulating
the procurement of low-sulfur and relatively clean coal
as fuel of boilers to lower the sulfur oxide emission. Up
to 90% of air pollutants has been removed from emitted
smoke by the denitrification, desulfurization and dust
removal facilities in each production unit. To fulfil the
Company’s commitment to air quality, the factory is
equipped with online monitoring equipment to ensure that
the air pollutants emitted comply with the national emission
standards.

The Company actively promotes green production and
is committed to incorporating clean energy into the
production process. It focuses on developing and adopting
efficient gas pollutant treatment and comprehensive
resource utilization technologies, such as using high-
efficiency electrostatic precipitators for boiler flue gas
dedusting, developing new efficient desulfurization
and denitrification processes for power plants, and
implementing measures such as combined heat and power
generation. During the Reporting Period, the Company
pursued a number of research and development projects
to reduce the generation of exhaust gases and waste in
the production process. For example, Tsaker Dongao
completed the tail gas treatment transformation project,
using the natural gas boilers as the backup treatment
facilities for tail gas treatment during the overhaul of the
incinerators. Tsaker Dongao also carried out a project on
the renovation of the incinerators tail gas treatment, which
resolved the problem that the tail gas of the incinerators
could not be processed during the period of incinerator
shutdown, thereby reducing the emission of exhaust waste
gases. Tsaker Dongao completed the research project on
nitrotoluene hydro-vaporization process, replaced heat
exchangers of the hydrotreating reactor and carried out
upgrade and transformation. The heating medium was
changed from heat transfer oil to steam, which reduced
exhaust gas emissions.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

During the Reporting Period, the Company has continued
to work toward its air emission target to reduce air
pollutant emissions intensity (by formula: various air
pollutant emissions data usage/Million RMB Revenue). The
Company strives to reduce the emissions generated in
the production process, and continues to explore feasible
emission reduction measures by upgrading equipment and
optimizing technology to continuously reduce impacts on
the environment.

BRI - 4 ERERERE

MARERA - QB EE KA LA RS
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Air Pollutant Emissions BER B 2024 2023
NOx emissions (tonnes) A&y (H8) 24.48 23.90
NOx emissions intensity (NOx emissions/  @E/cWHERZE (BELWEER

M’ RMB Revenue) BEARERAN) 0.011 0.012
SOx emissions (tonnes) wmE by () 15.63 14.43
SOx emissions intensity (SOx emissions/ BREMEEREE (FRatmiin,/

M’ RMB Revenue) BEAREEA) 0.007 0.007
Particulate Matter emissions (tonnes) FER ) (W) 5.86 5.24
Particulate Matter emissions intensity BRI EE (B YER

(Particulate Matter emissions/ AEARKERA)

M’ RMB Revenue)' 0.0027 0.0025

1 Due to the increase in total annual production, the
production process and exhaust gas treatment time
increased, resulting in an increase in air pollutant
emissions. The air pollutant emissions intensity slightly
increased as the increase in emissions exceeded the
growth in revenue.
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Improving Energy Efficiency and Reducing Carbon
Emissions

The Company’s carbon emissions mainly come from
electricity, natural gas, coal, gasoline, and purchased
steam consumption. During the Reporting Period, we
continued to work toward our goal of reducing the energy
usage intensity (by formula: energy usage/Million RMB
revenue).

The Company strictly complies with The Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Conservation, The Law of the
People's Republic of China on the Promotion of Cleaner
Production and other relevant national laws and regulations
in its production and operation, implements systematic
management of energy, and promotes ISO50001 energy
management system certification. We have also formulated
an internal “Energy Management System” to standardize
energy management and encourage energy-saving work,
in order to cooperate with the national energy work policy
and reduce carbon emissions. This policy comprehensively
stipulates the division of responsibilities, principles, and
specific operations during energy management:

° Clarify the specific responsibilities of relevant
departments and positions in energy conservation
and relevant assessment management, so as to
improve the work efficiency of energy management.

. Define energy data reporting process, measurement
tool management measures, and energy technology
file management system to accurately provide
testing-related energy consumption data, make
informed arrangements in a timely manner and carry
out energy-saving and emission-reduction work
based on data analysis results

° Formulate relevant operation and management
manuals for the main energy equipment to ensure
safe, economical and efficient operation of the
equipment, and achieve energy conservation while
meeting the production needs.

° Formulate subdivided energy management systems
according to the nature of each production
workshop.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

° Clarify the energy assessment and management
system and formulates reward and punishment
rules, analyze various consumption indicators
on a regular basis to encourage energy-using
departments to effectively control internal
consumption. Individuals and departments that
consume energy exceeding the predetermined
level are subject to appropriate penalties and are
required to make timely rectification. Individuals with
outstanding achievements in energy conservation
would be commended and rewarded.

° Enhance the introduction of new technologies and
equipment to improve the energy efficiency ratio
during production.

In respect of our production bases, we have completed
technological modifications such as ultra-low emission
for our workshops to effectively reduce the emission of
exhaust and greenhouse gases. We regularly inspect
our production facilities and repair any damage as soon
as it is detected, in order to reduce energy consumption
and improve efficiency. In addition, in order to achieve
efficient use of electricity, the Company has formulated
guidelines on electricity consumption management to guide
employees to adopt energy-saving measures in their daily
work.

The Company also incorporates sustainable elements
into its daily operations to have more comprehensive
environmental protection practices in the workplace.
Adhering to the concept of “green, energy saving, and
environmental protection”, the Group has increased its
investment in building a new full featured technology
research and development centre and office building,
which has improved the ability of research and
development and the office environment, and has also
increased the intensity of natural lighting and reduced
office electricity consumption.
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The Company conducted several retrofitting projects
to reduce energy consumption in the Reporting Period,
including:

o Shandong TNM implemented a project to improve
the quality of iron phosphate products by optimizing
the raw material structure of the existing projects
within the plant and enhancing product quality and
stability, with production capacity increasing from
50,000 tonnes/year to 70,000 tonnes/year;

o Tsaker Dongao completed the research project
on the hydro-vaporization process of nitrotoluene,
replacing and upgrading heat exchangers, and
changing the heating medium from heat transfer oil
to steam;

o Tsaker Technology completed the renovation of the
three-reactor interconnected project, improving the
utilization rate of raw materials;

° Tsaker Technology's BPDA polyimide monomer
optimization project streamlined the continuous
pilot production process for the chlorination of the
main raw material BPDA, optimizing the method for
forming anhydride;

. Tsaker Huayu’'s salt precipitation energy-saving
renovation project adjusted and optimized the
production cooling water system, adding a
production reaction heat recovery device and a
waste heat recovery device;

° Tsaker Huayu's production waste heat recovery and
utilization project implemented the recovery of waste
heat for heating and the reutilization of waste heat,
thereby optimizing the low-pressure steam heating
system and adjusting the production process.
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BRI - 4 ERERERE

The use of electrical and steam energy can be reduced by BBERENRCE - ATAREE HE A
retrofitting the equipment mentioned above. TREVER o
Energy Consumption BEIR 2 A 2024 2023
Electricity consumption (MWh) B (JKEE) 163,821 124,024
Coal consumption (tonnes) Bk (W) 50,728 58,001
Energy consumption of coal (MWh) B (JKELR ) 335,286 388,570
Natural gas consumption (‘000 m?) RKAR (FILFHAK) 10,224 11,297
Energy consumption of natural gas (MWh) RAR (KEEF) 110,640 122 252
Energy consumption of steam (MWh) Z=R (JRELEE) 339,529 409,942
Gasoline (tonnes) YR (W8) 3.9 4.4
Gasoline (MWh) U (JEFLRS) 47.17 53.00
Total energy consumption (MWh) f‘ﬁéﬁ)ﬂé (JEFLBF) 1,086,105 1,044,841
Total energy intensity aReREE JRRE

(MWh/M’ RMB revenue) E%/\EMH&/\) 503 506
Comprehensive energy consumption per BN EMREEER

unit product (tonnes standard coal/tonnes) (WEAZ2ERE WE) 0.46 0.54
GHG Emissions BEREHER 2024 2023
Direct GHG emission (tCO,e) EEAREREN(M-atKkEE) 123,820 122,391
Direct GHG emission intensity (direct GHG  EBEEAZEREHNEZE (BEELERE

emission/M’ RMB revenue) B BEBARBIA) 57 59
Indirect GHG emission (tCO,e) HEAEREBER(E_EtikEE) 167,724 179,251
Indirect GHG emission intensity (indirect HEAEREHENEE (MEAERE

GHG emission/M’ RMB revenue) R B8 ARBIRA) 78 87
Total GHG emission (tCO,e) wREREHER (M_EtmE= 291,544 301,642
GHG emission intensity (total GHG emission/ BEREHNEE (BBEREHR,

M’ RMB revenue) AEARBIA) 135 146

Water Saving and Wastewater Treatment

BT KR KR IR

The Company’s production and operation activities are
closely related to water resources. In terms of water usage,
we approach the issue from two perspectives which are
reducing and recycling. The sustainability department
continuously monitoring and managing water performance,
and regularly assessing and evaluating water consumption
per unit of product. We have set a target for water
efficiency, which is to reduce water consumption intensity
(the formula is: water consumption/million RMB revenue).

RNAVEELLEHEKERZIHERE o K
BREAAE - BMKFRE R EERT A
MAEZEF A FEEENMEFEHKE
RESETEERER  THHENERA
7J<31E%TE:HEW&%V BMARRAKREEE
TER EEEZRREAKERE (EAR
V= ﬁ%%/ﬁ%]\iﬁ“ﬁl?\) °
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. To make better use of water resources, we
have formulated strict water use guidelines and
implemented them in various operating sites in order
to effectively use water resources. Relevant water
saving measures are as follows:

Optimize the water-saving process. By upgrading
the circulating water system, optimizing equipment
and processes, and implementing management
measures to improve process, water consumption is
reduced. The key processes of the main products
in the Company’s core business segments have all
achieved zero discharge of water.

° Strengthen internal management, establish and
improve various water management systems
and water assessments, resolutely put an end to
running, wasting, dripping, and leaking, and strictly
implement water-saving systems and measures.

. Do a good job in water recycling, starting from
every link, and constantly exploring new ways to
save water. For example, replace the fillers, nozzles,
water distributors for the cool water tower and so
on.

o Increase publicity. Through the Company’s
internal newspaper, training, and other forms of
activities, improving the business quality and water
conservation awareness of all employees, so that
water conservation has become a conscious action
of all employees.

° Strengthen rainwater diversion. Collect rainwater
in the separate zones of factory and use it for
landscaping, process production or recycling after
treatment respectively.

Since water is mainly provided by the relevant government
departments, so the Company did not encounter any
problems with water supply during the Reporting Period.

RIR - 4 ERERERE
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MH o

Water Consumption Ji:P3 2024 2023
Water consumption (m?) k= (L FHK) 1,238,340 1,415,417
Water intensity FKEE

(water consumption/M’ RMB revenue) (EKAE BEARERAN) 573 685
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The two major types of waste waters discharged by the
Company are industrial sewage and domestic wastewater.
As a responsible manufacturer, we place great importance
on the environmental impacts caused by wastewater
discharge. The Company has set up wastewater treatment
facilities and obtained wastewater discharge permits
recognized by the local government. In addition, we
installed online monitoring equipment in accordance
with the requirements of the discharge permits to ensure
that the wastewater discharged meets local and national
discharge standards.

To effectively manage water resources, we have set
a target to reduce wastewater discharge intensity (by
formula: wastewater discharge/Million RMB revenue). The
Company shall monitor the emission intensity annually and
illustrate the performance.

BRI - 4 ERERERE

NEBRHBEKEEZ D BT ERKMERS
Ke BFERBEENEES - +OERME
BESKASRMNREZE - RPIDKRZL
757K BE B 8% 1 A B 15 3 77 BT 38 AT B BB 7K B
MEFAIRE - WIRPSFRFAERRRRAERE
AR - HERBEIMBEKER M T MBI R B
TRIRZE

REAREEKER  HFIFTL T REEEK
BEmEENE R (HARAR - BAkHERE
BEARBKAN) - ARS8 FEREHN
ERE  UHASFHRR -

Wastewater BBk 2024 2023
Wastewater quantity (m?) BEKE (IL77K) 686,618 660,772
Wastewater intensity BEKEE

(wastewater quantity/M' RMB revenue) (BERkE / BBAREKRA) 318 320

Waste Management

The Company regulates and supervises the operational
requirements for the generation, collection, storage and
disposal of solid waste through the formulation of relevant
standards, such as the “Management Standards for
Hazardous Solid Waste” and the “Management Standards
for General Industrial Solid Waste”. In this way, we ensure
that solid waste generated by each plant is disposed of in
a reasonable and compliant manner.

RV ETE

ARBEBHE(ERECERNEERFTE)
(RIZXBEEEERE)SHBRE  RE
EEEREEYEL WK BFF KBS
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We continuously improve the use efficiency of resources,
endeavor to reduce waste from source, increase the
recycling of general waste and handle hazardous waste
properly. The waste incurred from the Company are mainly
industrial waste, hazardous waste and domestic waste
during the production process.

Hazardous Waste

As a chemical manufacturer, the Company inevitably
produces hazardous wastes during operation and
production, such as industrial waste oil and sludge. The
Company develops a hazardous waste management
system and complies with all applicable laws and
regulations. We adopt a rigorous management to ensure
the aforementioned wastes are safely treated and the risk
of leakage is diminished. At the same time, we strengthen
the training for personnel related to hazardous waste,
stipulate labor protection standards for relevant posts, and
carry out internal supervisions regularly.

The Company has divided designated areas in each of
its factories and set up warehouses specifically for the
storage of hazardous waste. We have set up different
labels for these areas according to the types of hazardous
waste for purposes including separate collection, take
measures against seepage and rain to prevent leakage and
contamination of hazardous waste as well as to safeguard
the safety of our employees. We entrust qualified third-party
contractors and hazardous waste treatment companies to
carry out the collection and treatment of hazardous waste.
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Non-hazardous Waste

During the operation, we have produced non-hazardous
wastes such as general waste, food waste, office
wastepaper, packaging boxes, scrap iron, coal cinder,
waste plastic and waste trays. In response to the
national policy, the Company has implemented waste
separation within the company to reduce waste generation
at source and gather recyclable materials including
paper, wood, metal and plastic. During the Reporting
Period, we endeavoured to guide its employees utilizing
resources efficiently and strengthen waste management.
The implementation of non-hazardous waste recycling
measures has achieved remarkable results, which have
nearly 100% recycling rate. The Company shall seek for
feasible waste reduction and recycling solutions constantly
and take the responsibility of environmental protection as
an enterprise. In addition, the production workshop used
durable supporting tools for products transportation to
reduce damage consumption and waste generation. The
following is the waste produced for this Reporting Period:

BRI - 4 ERERERE

BEBERY

FEZBIET  RMELNEZERNERE
HEENR  REBS WMAEESRK B8K
2 BE - RE - BERNEERE - RE
ERIREE  BHERRANBERTERY
D NBRBERIBEREVNEL  AHK
R AN EBMBEHEETOWR - KRE
H BMBORSIZEETIERER - AN
BEEMER - BENEZTERYEKIEE
MRFEZE - DU EREF100% « RAKEE
RRAITRBEMRW T R - AECERER
BOEME - I AEEMERAMANE
BRmATETA - AR EIERRMEEYE
4o ATRAREHTEEYERE

Waste BEZEY) 2024 2023
Hazardous waste produced (tonnes) EEANAEEEY () 1,001 574
Hazardous waste intensity per unit product EMEERELBEZEZY ()2

(tonnes)? 0.0050 0.0037
Non-hazardous waste produced (tonnes) EELNEEEEY (1) 7,721 8,994
Non-hazardous waste intensity per BWEMEEEEEEY (W)

unit product (tonnes) 0.039 0.058
Non-hazardous waste recycled (tonnes) BRIk rEEEEEY) (W) 7,564 8,930
Non-hazardous waste recycled percentage HEZEREZE YUY 98% 99%
Hazardous waste disposal intensity BEBEREYEES

(waste disposal/M' RMB Revenue)® (EEWEBE BEARERA)S 0.46 0.20
Non-hazardous waste disposal intensity BEEEVREETE

(waste disposal/M' RMB Revenue)* (BEENZEBEE BEEARERA) 0.07 0.03
2 In 2024, the Company’s production of hazardous waste 2 —ECNFERRELAEEEEYNER

products increased, and the proportion of this part of
the total production increased, resulting in an increase
in hazardous waste intensity per unit product.

3 The hazardous waste disposal intensity in 2024
increased slightly due to an increase in production
and the increase in total hazardous waste disposal
outpacing the increase in revenue.

4 The non-hazardous waste disposal intensity in 2024
increased slightly due to an increase in the volume
of solid waste and the non-recyclable nature of solid
waste, with the increase in non-hazardous waste
disposal outpacing the increase in revenue.
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Packaging Materials

The Company emphasizes the use of product packaging
that is environmentally friendly and has good safety
performance. In addition to meeting the requirements
of our customers and the industry, we also emphasize
the robustness of packaging materials. Adopting
environmentally friendly packaging materials with strong
safety performance can effectively minimize the impact on
the environment and human health, while robust packaging
materials can effectively prevent the leakage of chemicals.
In order to meet these critical requirements, we are
constantly looking for different packaging materials.

RIR - 4 ERERERE

BEME

RABEREARRRFNLE2RARFNE
mBE BT REBEMEANERI &
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HMZ2RERIFOBEM B A A BOR D
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e

Packaging Material aEMR 2024 2023
Total packaging material (tonnes) BREMEEE (1) 4,157 3,290
Per unit volume of packaging materials BREMBEMN(RE

(total volume of packaging materials/ (BEVRBE E2)°

output)® 0.021 0.019
Amount of recycled and el K B AR B EE (88)

reused package material (tonnes) 2,080 230
Recycled and reused percentage B EEIAE S 50.04% 7%
5 The output of battery materials segment increased in 5 T NFEEMMAIRBESIL M - Z

2024, and the packaging materials of this product were
heavier, resulting in a slight increase in the per unit
volume of packaging materials.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

PEOPLE-ORIENTED AND TAKING SOCIALLY
RESPONSIBLE PROACTIVELY

Recruiting and cultivating talents
Employee’s Welfare Protection

The Company strictly abides by all national laws and
regulations, including but not limited to The Labor Law of
the People’'s Republic of China and The Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China. Based on these
laws and regulations, we formulates internal rules and
regulations on employment, such as the Employee
Handbook and the Standards for General Principles of
Human Resource Management, to ensure the protection of
employees’ rights and interests.

Recruitment and dismissal

The Company strictly regulates the procedures related
to recruitment and dismissal. Upon appointment, each
employee is required to sign an employment contract,
which clearly defines the rights, responsibilities and
obligations (including salary, working hours, benefits
and holidays, etc.) of the laborer and the employer. All
employees have the right to terminate the employment
relationship with the Company. The conclusion,
modification, rescission and termination of the relevant
employment contracts are in strict compliance with the
relevant laws and policies. We have formulated clear
termination criteria and dismissal procedures to protect the
rights and interests of employees by not dismissing them
casually.

4,

4.1
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Compensation and Welfare

We have built a competitive and fair compensation and
benefit system based on the position and ability of the
employees. We conduct regular salary surveys and
adjust the salary bandwidth based on the survey results
and competitive positioning in order to motivate and
retain talented employees. We implement a fair, open
and impartial evaluation and reward mechanism, and
gradually create a team competition atmosphere through
differentiated reward mechanisms to stimulate the potential
and continuous improvement of employees. We have
formulated standards such as the “Operational Standards
for Positional Salary Management” and “Operational
Standards for Positional Evaluation and Management”, and
provided employees with a comprehensive salary system
and promotion opportunities.

Prohibition of child and forced labor

We comply with the Labor Law of the People's Republic
of China, Regulations Prohibiting the Use of Child Labor
and other laws and regulations. We require employees
to provide relevant identification documents when
joining the Group, and apply this requirement to the
Company’s suppliers. The Company has also put in place
appropriate remedial procedures and measures to stop the
employment of child laborers and report them to the local
labor authorities once they are found to be employed, and
to conduct health checks on them to ensure that they are
not physically or mentally harmed. They are encouraged
to return to school, and we are also willing to accept the
children’s adult relatives to substitute their positions in
order to help relieve the financial pressure on their families.
All of the Company’s employees meet the minimum working
age requirements set by national laws and regulations.
At the same time, we respect our employees’ willingness
to work and prohibit forced labor. During the Reporting
Period, the Company was not aware of any cases involving
child labor or forced labor.
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Equality and Anti-Discrimination

We promote equality and anti-discrimination. All employees
are not discriminated against on the basis of gender,
race, ethnicity, nationality, color, religious beliefs,
disability status and marital status, etc., during the
processes including hiring, pay, promotion, disciplinary
action, termination, and retirement. In our Employee
Ethics Handbook, we strictly prohibit the Company’s
employees from engaging in any form of harassment

TR R 5747

HFRETS  REER  FAEEITRAMN
A Bk Rk B BE - REED
BEARR BRRREREZMERRER - 8
C AR RIE R
KE - HMEBTCERFMI®  BER
A8 TH M AETEMEANRBENER -
BREEEIHESEESSINFEENY
e AT REFHEBIBR

and discrimination against others, and ensure that every
employee is respected and treated with dignity. The

following is an overview of our employees:

Number of Employees®

ERR - FM B

% of Employees

EEAS EEBES L

Employee Category EEER 2024 2023 2024 2023
By gender biogids ey

Male 5 1,500 1,415 1% 71%

Female z 607 584 29% 29%
By employment type EREEENE S

Management EIE 129 117 6% 6%

Senior FECUR 177 170 8% 8%

Junior MF/BETL 1,801 1,712 86% 86%
By age BFERE D

18-30 years old 18-30%% 363 322 17% 16%

31-50 years old 31-50%% 1,458 1,421 69% 71%

51 years old and above 51553 A L 286 256 14% 13%
By geographical region RiEE D

Beijing bl 6 3 0% 0%

Hebei e 1,768 1,710 84% 86%

Heilongjiang REET 14 15 1% 1%

Henan A 5 4 0% 0%

Anhui = 3 1 0% 0%

Shandong IR 304 247 14% 12%

Others EAth 14 20 1% 1%
Total BAEL 2,107 1,999
6 The employment data has included the production sites 6 EBEIRR BIEEEEN -

only.
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Apart from recruiting talents through a fair and impartial
talent recruitment and promotion mechanism, the Company
spares no effort to retain talents. To reward employees
for their dedication to the Company and enhance their
sense of belonging, we offer our employees competitive
remuneration package and welfare, including overtime pay,
five insurances and one housing fund, holiday benefits,
education allowances, certificate allowances, seniority
allowances and various vacations. To fully mobilize
employees’ enthusiasm, the Group also has a complete
incentive plan to reward outstanding employees and
teams. Through the various HR management channels, the
Company strives to keep the turnover rate at a lower level.

RIR - 4 ERERERE

BT BRBAFRENHREGEZERAATI
REERBAATEINTERS o HIRM
ARSI N0 HMMER - BEMEE BT
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Turnover rate’ mk =T 2024 2023
Total turnover rate RPN 9% 1%
By gender RIERIE D

Male s 7% 12%

Female 8 2% 8%
By age BFERE D

18-30 years old 18-307% 22% 32%

31-50 years old 31-50%% 7% 6%

51 years old and above 515504 E 5% 11%
By geographical region e E D

Mainland China HR B A 9% 11%

Hong Kong or other region BB SCE MR 0% 0%
7 The employment data has included the production sites 7 EEHBRIABFEEERM -

only.

Supporting employee development

We emphasize the development and cultivation of
talents, and adhere to the employment principle that a
suitable employee need to be outstanding on both moral
integrity and practical ability, while the Company shall
hire people based on merit. At the same time, we respect
the characteristics of each employee and provide them
with diverse career development paths and endeavor to
establish a career platform conducive to the development
of their abilities. We have also established performance
bonus and incentive schemes to recognize and encourage
employees at all levels who have made outstanding
contributions to the Company’s business.
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The complete training process of the Company is as
follows:

o The HR department is responsible for conducting
regular surveys on the training needs of each
business department, understanding the training
needs, and formulating the corresponding annual,
quarterly and monthly training plans according to
the Company’s requirements.

° After obtaining the training needs, the Company
would find and assist the corresponding internal/
external lecturers in improving training materials,
building a training course system based on the
characteristics of the Company and business, and
formulating specific training plans.

° Employees participate in training and share it
internally, as well as compile training materials and
formulate operable plans that can transform theory
into relevant skills.

o Investigation and assessment of training effects
would be conducted in a timely manner to
continuously improve training work, which would
then be archived.

We adhere to the principle of “demand-based training”,
which sets up different training themes according to
functional departments, personnel management processes
and employee levels, as well as formulates corresponding
training objectives, content and performance evaluation
indicators according to different needs.

BRI - 4 ERERERE
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Overall Training Bz 2024 2023
Topics B 26 34
Total hours of topics BRI 117 209
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Average Training Time % of employees trained

FHZIRE FIEEE S

Category =Rz 2024 2023 2024 2023
By gender =M RIE D

Male 5 17 25 74 76

Female g4 15 21 26 24
By employment type RERERE S

Management EIR[E 13 12 5 3

Senior TE MR 12 29 14 11

Junior MFBET 38 23 81 86

4.2 Building a Harmonious Working Environment 42 BENBIERS

The Company is people-oriented and is committed to NEIBFUAABEANES  HORABEIA
creating a good and harmonious working environment for E-RR AR TIERE - DA NsR A RIEE
employees, so as to strengthen the Company’s cohesion Bh RBeIEdX EMBRRE2EnE2
and improve work efficiency. We organized a significant SEENAER B T AT REREMNIE
amount of team building activities to strengthen the bond B WHRBERKBRENE IRRGT
between employees, provide healthy working conditions, Az o

and provide timely care for employees who need special
care.

84  TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & #ias BRI AR A 7



Team Building Activities

Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

BRI

Annual summary commendation and
cultural performance activity

FREABRYEXEER

The 18th employee sports games

EtN\ERTIEDS

Employee Skills Competition

BTHREEAE
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Environment, Social and Governance Report

Employees’ Welfare

In order to fully implement the principle of “common
prosperity, starting from the employees around you”,
and in line with the principle of using the Company’s
funding to put greater efforts into benefiting the families of
workers in difficulty, the Company’s labor union continued
to extend its work on the basis of the work in 2023, and
accomplished the following work during the Reporting
Period:

° Collaborating with the Municipal Central Hospital,
carrying out the “Love in May, Gratitude to Parents”
Health Care Circuit.

° Conducting physical examination activities for
employees to comprehensively monitor and manage
their health.

° Organizing activities for Safety Production Month,
during which four safety-related activities were
organized.

. Organizing 339 employees to participate in a

one-day mutual assistance program, providing
assistance to over 30 employees in need.

° Organizing an employee sports event to strengthen
corporate cohesion and enrich employees’ lives.

. Organizing the Employee Skills Company
Competition to assess employees’ skill levels,
enhance their production innovation capabilities,
develop new productive forces, and promote high-
quality development of the Company.

° Organizing a cultural performance, showcasing the

Company’s culture and corporate image, enhancing
its social responsibility and influence.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8%RERHE AR A 7

RIR - 4 ERERERE

BRI

REAEREEIHRER  HHEBITMH
EINEERR  REQRLE  EANE
EERHBBIRENRY AR IEE_ZF
“-FETEER L BTFRELH  ®E
HRZERIAT IE

« BATHLERMRIEEEABS
QB | EREMERLED -

. FMERETREE  BETIWREERE
TEEMEREMER -

. MRZEAEALY  R2EEAR
RABLEEEREED -

. HAS3BBI2MBIER—AR
18 HHRREH T305%% -

. ERRIEDR  HROCEEEN
SEBTEF -

. BPARBIKERE  mBRETIR
BekF - BT HEAIFAEN - &
RAWELEN HBEEXESLER

B o

. BRNEER - RTAFXEMEE
g RRbENHEEEMTE
5 o



Environment, Social and Governance Report

CARING FOR COMMUNITY AND TAKE SOCIAL 5.
RESPONSIBILITY

We actively participate in public welfare donations and
contribute to local community development. During the
Reporting Period, Tsaker Dongao and Shandong TNM
donated funds with total amount of RMB50,000 to the Love
Education Foundation of Hekou District, Dongying City. The
funds were used to support impoverished yet dedicated
teachers, reward outstanding primary and secondary
school students, assist high-performing students from
underprivileged backgrounds, and help underfunded
schools improve their operating conditions.

STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING CODE 6.
CONTENT INDEX

Aspect KPI Description

=4 BRENEE Wl

SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT

AR

A1: EMISSIONS

EBEA1 : BBy

A1l General (a) The policies; and

Disclosure (a) BXR: &

—R = (b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

(b) BFHBTABEATENH@EEE
KGR OIEE RS -
Al 1 The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.
PR TE SR M AR B EUE -
Al.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect

(Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BHiE (BE) kg (8BE2) R=RE
P E (CAMEETE) Rk (WER) 2 E (A
EE2EN - BERGETE) -

BRI - 4 ERERERE

e BELEEE

BMER2ENRBE  AHEREREBD
g E$ﬁmﬁm FERRMUREEN
MHAREMAODBEELHEESRRE
ARBSET ARKDEMHENERH
fh - REEFT)NBELE  EPRREFNE
RE4L  KFEEFBERAEMEBREEFR
B o

BMRX(RE  HERER
=5l

Statement/Section

By EH

EspAD

(a) 3.2 Environmental Protection;

(a) 3.2IRBIRE

(b) The Company complied with
relevant laws and regulations, and
no significant non-compliance was
noticed during the Reporting Period.

(b) WMEHARRRRETHBENEERR
Bl WREBREEERERSEM -

3.2 Environmental Protection

3.2 RGR#E

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 IRIFRE
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Aspect
Em

KPI
CE e vt d
A1.3

Al6

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

i pud

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FREEAEEEMHESE (EETE) & (1@
R EE (WABESEL - §IERETHE) -
Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FESEEFEEYASE (UABETE) &k (1E
R)ZE (WASEESEN - BEREAH)
Description of emissions target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

HMPTAT L EERE B R R REIIELE AR
PERER Y 228K -

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

MM ERIEAE R EEEEYNE - R
FRETSZEVRRE B 1R R AE DS L B R ATEREX
Cokag i

A2: USE OF RESOURCES
BEA2 : EREM

A2

General
Disclosure

—RBEE

A2.1

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.
BREAEIR (BREEER - K REMERMEL)
IR -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit
of production volume, per facility).
RERESMEER, SEEER (1S
Room) e (ATRETREAE) REE
(WABESBM - BERBETE)

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED Z&E#SREHIER AT

RIR - 4 ERERERE

Statement/Section

B EH

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 BRI RE

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 BIGRE

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 IRIFRE

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 IRIFR#E

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 BRIER#E

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 RIFRE



Aspect
Em

KPI
CE e vt d
A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

i pud

Water consumption in total and intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BREKERERE (WABESEM - BIER
MEtE) o

Description of energy use efficiency
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

HAFET R RERAM R A ERAERE
L B R EREE P 5

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
HISKBGE AR E R B AR S - AR
I AR B IR R AEREL B AR
50k i

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,
with reference to per unit produced.

X mrAaEMENEE (AAE) &
(WER) BEEEMIEE -

A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

EBHA3 : BRERRRER

A3

General
Disclosure

—RBE

A3.1

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.
BIRBEITAHRRERARAABERERERTE
BB ©

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

M EBEDHRBERANERNEAZE
MERBRERBRTENTE -

BRI - 4 ERERERE

Statement/Section

B EH

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 BRI RE

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 RIFRE

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 IRIFRE

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 IRIFIRE

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 BRI RE

3.2 Environmental Protection
3.2 IRIFRE
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Environment, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBE

Aspect KPI Description Statement/Section
Em BAREMESR #Hd B EH

A4: CLIMATE CHANGE
BEAAL : RIRE{L

A4 General Policies on identification and mitigation of 3.2 Environmental Protection
Disclosure significant climate-related issues which 3.2 BRI RE
—IR 5= have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.
BRIREHE R R HBTAEETE
Eﬁékﬂﬂﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬂrﬁﬂz R e
Ad.1 Description of the significant climate- 3.2 Environmental Protection

related issues which have impacted, and 3.2 IRIER#
those which may impact, the issuer, and

the actions taken to manage them.

BB RSHBETAELETENER
RIEEEE - REHTH -

SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL

B.ig
B1: EMPLOYMENT
EEB1 : EfE
B1 General (a) The policies; and (a) 4.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents;
Disclosure (a) BEXR: R (a) 4.13|1BEBFAA
—IR 5= (b) Compliance with relevant laws and  (b) The Company complied with
regulations that have a significant relevant laws and regulations, and
impact on the issuer. no significant non-compliance was

noticed during the Reporting Period.
(b) BEIFHBTAREAZENEMEZE (b)) WEPAERQRETHEANEZER
KGR GIEE RS Bl WREBRIAESRERSEM -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment 4.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents

type (for example, full — or part time), age 4.1 3| BEHAA

group and geographical region.

ZIER - EREAE (N2 BEERE) - Fitd

Bl Rt [ B 5 i) B AR B

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age 4.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents
group and geographical region. 41 S| EEBEAS
TR - FERARIRMEE S BEERKL
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Aspect
Em

B2

KPI

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description

MEEMER

B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
EBEB2 : REHZSE

General
Disclosure

—RFEE

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

(a) The policies; and

(a) BXE: Rk

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

(b) EIFHBITAFEATENEMER
KRG E R

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

occurred in each of the past three years

including the Reporting Period.

BEZF (BREERFE)BFRITHROA

X -

Lost days due to work injury.

FATHGRATIERH -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

M PTRA B R RERZ 215 - LANE
BT RERTTE -

B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
EEB3 : #ERIEI

B3

General
Disclosure

—RRE

B3.1

B3.2

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training
activities.
BRRHEE BT LIERE M AMHE R R
UK o HEEFIEE

The percentage of employees trained
by gender and employee category

(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
ZURIREERAN (W RERE PRE
BE)IINRIEEEDL ©

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee

category.
RUERIRESENE S - 8REETHZI
MR8 o

BRI - 4 ERERERE

Statement/Section

By EH

3.1
3.1

3.1
3.1

3.1
3.1

41
41

41
41

41
41

3.1 Safety Management;
SIREERE
The Company complied with
relevant laws and regulations, and
no significant non-compliance was
noticed during the Reporting Period.
HEBAARDRESFHEBENER KR
Bl - WREBRAES REREM -
Safety Management

ZEER

Safety Management
REER
Safety Management
REER

Recruiting and cultivating talents
SIEEEAA

Recruiting and cultivating talents

SIEBF/AS

Recruiting and cultivating talents

SIEEEAS
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Aspect KPI Description
Em BAREMESR #Hd

B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
EEB4 : & TXA|

B4 General (a) The policies; and
Disclosure (a) BER: K&
—IR 5= (b) Compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

(b) EIFHBITAFEATENEMER
KRG E R
B4.1 Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.
iR aT IS E Bl e AR R B T o
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
A B BE AR BN R B RR B B 15 T ERER
BB o
B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
[EEBS : HEHEEE

B5 General Policies on managing environmental and
Disclosure social risks of the supply chain.
—RFE ERHERNRE I ERBBR -
B5. 1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region.
iR ESNHERHRE -
B5.2 Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, and corresponding
implementation and monitoring method.
A EWIERHEENEN  mERTER
BHNHEREE URBERITRERR
% e

B5.3 Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
A BB EEGERANRERLS
B EVE R - SARABRAIT REER A -

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8%RERHE AR A 7

RIR - 4 ERERERE

Statement/Section

By EH

4.1
41

41
41

2.1
2.1

2.1
2.1

2.1
2.1

2.1
2.1

4.1 Recruiting and cultivating talents;
415|FEBAFANT
The Company complied with
relevant laws and regulations, and
no significant non-compliance was
noticed during the Reporting Period.
HEBAARDRESFHEBENER KR
Bl - WREBRAES REREM -
Recruiting and cultivating talents

SIEEEAS

Recruiting and cultivating talents
SIEEAAL

Strict Production Management
BIREEEER

Strict Production Management
BRMEEERE

Strict Production Management
BIRREEER

Strict Production Management
BIREEEER



Aspect KPI
=g BEREVER
B5.4

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description
i pud
Description of practices used to promote

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and

how they are implemented and monitored.

it EREEERRRES RRRERRR
BB - ARABENITRERTE -

B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

[BHEB6 : EmMER

B6 General
Disclosure

—RRE

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

(a) The policies; and

(a) BE: &k

( Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

O
-

(b) EIFHBITAFEATENEMER
KRB E R o
Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EEHEEXEMBEBTRER
mARKN A DL
Number of products and service-related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.
BREANE R KRBRFHRE AR ES S
% e
Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.
it B MR A B E B RIED -
Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
M EERTBREREMEKET -
Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
it E B & ERHRIE RALBBUR -
HITRERETE -

FEf2ERIEAR

LA R 88

BRI - 4 ERERERE

Statement/Section

B EH

2.1 Strict Production Management
21 BEHNEEER

(a) 2.2 Quality Control and 2.3 Product
Stewardship;

(a) 2 2EEEEK2IEREM:

(b) The Company complied with
relevant laws and regulations, and
no significant non-compliance was
noticed during the Reporting Period.

(b) WMEHARRRRETHBENEERR
Bl WREBRAES RERSEM -

2.3 Product Stewardship

23EMAME

2.3 Product Stewardship
23 EMEE

2.4 Intellectual Property Management
2.4 MBEREERE

2.3 Product Stewardship
23 EmEE

2.5 Customer Privacy Protection
2.5 BPRIRE
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Aspect KPI
=] BRERIES
B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION
EBEB7 : RES
B7 General
Disclosure
—IR 5=
B7.1
B7.2
B7.3

Environment, Social and Governance Report

Description
i

(a) The policies; and

(a) BXE: Rk

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

(b) EIFHBITAFEATENEMER
KRB E RS o
Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during
the Reporting Period and the outcomes of
the cases.
RERBAHEITALHEER DI EELE
WESHFARMTNEE LFRER
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
P E e R BB - A NRABREERIT R
BERTE »
Description of anti-corruption training

provided to directors and staff.
HmMEERE ITRENRESHEI -

B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
EEBS8 : HERE

B8

General
Disclosure

—RBEE

B8.1

B8.2

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BN RSERTREEMEHRFZEM
BREXBIHDSEELRFIRAEE -
Focus areas of contribution (e.g.
education, environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
HAEREE (WHE  BRNEH  BIF
kR b BE) o

Resources contributed (e.g. money or

time) to the focus area.
EEISEMBAER (MEEREH) -

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8%RERHE AR A 7

RIR - 4 ERERERE

Statement/Section

By EH

(a) 2.6 Business Integrity;

(a) 2.6RRBYEE

(b) The Company complied with
relevant laws and regulations, and
no significant non-compliance was
noticed during the Reporting Period.

(b) WMEHARRRETHBENEERA
Bl - WREBRAES REREM -

2.6 Business Integrity

2.6 BRLE

2.6 Business Integrity
2.6 BRBRHE

2.6 Business Integrity
2.6 BRRHEE

5 Giving Back to Community And Taking
Social Responsibility
5REEHE  EEHERME

5 Giving Back to Community And Taking
Social Responsibility
5REEMHE  BEEHERME

5 Giving Back to Community And Taking
Social Responsibility
5 REME  EEHEEE



Directors and Senior Management

As at the date of this annual report, the biographical details of the
Directors and senior management are as follows:

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. GE Yi (former name: GE Yuanyuan), aged 43, is an
executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman
of our Company, responsible for overall business strategy and
major business decisions of our Group. Mr. GE is also the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and the ESG Committee.
Mr. GE joined us in February 2007 and was promoted to vice-
president and president in December 2011 and August 2012,
respectively.

Mr. GE obtained a master's degree in International Business
Management from Middlesex University in the United Kingdom in
February 2007 and completed studies in chemical engineering
from Tianjin University in the PRC in July 2004.

The discloseable interests of Mr. GE in the Shares and underlying
Shares under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
under the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

Mr. BAI Kun, aged 48, is an executive Director, the Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company, being
responsible for the financial operations and management of the
Group. Mr. BAI has been an executive Director since 25 August
2016. Mr. BAI joined the Group in September 2014 as the Chief
Financial Officer, and was appointed as a joint company secretary
on 11 December 2020. Mr. BAI has been the sole company
secretary of the Company and was appointed as an Authorized
Representative and Process Agent of the Company on 15
December 2023. Mr. BAI is also the sole director of Tsaker Hong
Kong. He has been a director of Tsaker Technology (shares of
which are quoted on NEEQ, stock code: 873772) since November
2022, and an independent non-executive director of Archosaur
Games Inc., a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 9990) from September 2021 to August 2024. Mr. BAI has
extensive experience in accounting and financial management.
His work experience includes acting as manager for the Tianjin
branch of PricewaterhouseCoopers (& KEH XL ERTHE
RAFIREDFT) from September 2002 to February 2010 and the
financial controller of Tianjin Walkman Biomaterial Co., Ltd. from
February 2010 to August 2014.

EENSREEE

RAFHOAY  EFENEREEENEENT :

2=

HITES
RREE(EHB  Rtw) @ 4358 BARAH
WITEE THRAEHREIE BEAEEEEE
BRBREEBERRE - XKETENABRBZESR
ESGZEE€THE - XEAR-EZT+E-AMAKR
DR DR ZE——FFT_ARZZTE—Z—FN
PEZH ARG LB

REERZZZ+HF A REREENANZES
FRETHERRELSG  YR-_ETOFLATK
HERERBCBITIRMEE o

XAERE D RAARKRO T HEEREES AR K
BIEXVEBGEX BT RBECREHNAFRIESTE
BETEZTRRHTHRABRKD - HERN RE
RETHANEZIAR] 6 -

HEXE 485 BARRWTES HRVKE
RATWE BEASENVBEERERE - B
ERZE-—ARFENAZTHIAREFNTES - B
EERZT—MFNAAMAREER  EEEFETH
B HZTZTF+_A+—HBE  REHELF
WE - B-TET-_=F+_A+HAK ALEET
RRRE—REIME  WEZEALARABBRERE
MEZBFREA AERENAREEENKE—F
FoFET_F+— ARETERRE (ERH
MNEEQENE - RGO - 873772)WES - 5=
EC—FAARE T _NE )N\ AETEERYE
RABIMBYIERNITESE - ZARMEERMM LT (IR
MR 9990) - AAAHEBELENSH AU BKE
BER  HIERBREE_TT _FHLAE-T—
SEZAEEEENERRGTMEBAERRA]
RKEPFKBRARZZE—ZEF_AZE-FT—HEFN
AEERETMBESEMMEER AT EBE
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. BAI obtained a bachelor's degree in Technoeconomics
in July 1999 from Tianjin University and a master's degree in
Technoeconomics and Management from Tianjin University in
March 2002. Mr. BAI has been a member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since June 2010.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent, aged 70, has been a non-
executive Director since April 2015. He is responsible for
providing advice on corporate governance and internal control
matters. He had been the chairman of the board of directors of
Clover Leaf Capital Corp. (a Canadian capital pool company listed
on the TSX Ventures Exchange in Canada, stock code: CLVR.P)
from March 2022 to October 2023. He has also been a member
of the advisory board of Ocean Equity Partners Fund L.P. (the
entity which controls Wider Pacific) since September 2012. Mr.
FONTAINE serves as an executive director and vice-chairman of
the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity Association
from 2012 to August 2024. In 2000, he founded Investel Asia, a
venture capital and private equity firm and served as its managing
director from January 2004 to December 2006. He was the chief
executive officer of Newcom LLC from January 2007 to September
2008. Prior to joining our Group in April 2015, Mr. FONTAINE
served various positions within the BCE Inc. group, the largest
communications company in Canada, including Bell Canada, Bell
Ardis and Tata Cellular, for approximately 16 years of his career.
Mr. FONTAINE has also been acting as a non-executive director
of D&G Technology Holding Company Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1301) since August 2016
and as an independent director of China Lending Corporation,
a company listed on NASDAQ (ticker: CLDC) from July 2016 to
December 2017.

Mr. FONTAINE obtained a bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Sherbrooke in Canada in
June 1979. He has been a member of the Order of Engineers of
Québec since January 1980.

FONTAINE in the Shares and
underlying Shares under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” under the Directors’ Report of this annual report.

The discloseable interests of Mr.
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EERGREEE

BEER - NAANFELARKERERE M E
B8 YR-ZFZ_F=-ARREREBNEK

MEERERBLEN -8 T —FFX AL A
RERTEEMEFMHEEE
FHITES

FONTAINE Alain Vincent%t4% ' 7053 ' E-Z
—hFEMAREFRIFRTES BEARBEELRR
AT EEREER BT -_—_F=ZAKE_
T-=%F+F - %¥EEClover Leaf Capital Corp.
(—FERINZEATSX Ventures Exchange EFEYAN
EREXRERTF - BROHNRK : CLVRP)WEFEE
F e BZE—ZF N A AOcean Equity Partners
Fund L.P.(#E#lWider PacificHEE) BEZEE
BXE - FONTAINEEAER - T——FF T P4
NAEABERXERILEREHBEBERARMNINT
EEREERE - BFRZZTZTZFE|ZInvestel Asia
(BAIERAERERAYE ST F—AZ=
TERNFT_ABRAESHALEE - FER 22T+

F—Az2_FZT ) N\FLAENewcom LLCITHA
H -RZZE—RAFMHAMALREEF - FONTAINE

EEREEELEPHI6EENERZANBA
AAIBCE Inc..2E (8 #EBell Canada - Bell Ardis
KTata Cellular) T Z @A - E/\:%ﬁ—ﬁi)\
A#  FONTAINESL EETEEREEBRERA

RIFRITES A QA REBSH LN (foﬁﬁvﬁ
1301) BB - ZE—XR"FtLtAE-_T—+tF+=

A FONTAINELA A ETHFBREREBRNBLE
£ ZLEEMEITER T (R HRE - CLDC) °

FONTAINEXZ AR —NEtNFEASNAESNEX
University of SherbrookeZ 28 TIZE+ BT o i
B—AN\ZF— A ARt 7 T2AN% 2 (Order of
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. PAN Deyuan, aged 44, has been a non-executive Director
since November 2022. He is responsible for providing advice
on the Group’s strategic planning and investment and financing
strategy matters. He has over 15 years of experience in
investment management, computer science and technology. Since
January 2022, Mr. PAN has been a director of Sanya Xuancai
Private Equity Venture Capital Fund Management Co., Ltd. (=2
HUABAIEIREESEEARAR) (“Sanya Xuancai’) where he
engages in the decision-making process of the board of directors,
as well as daily operation and management of Sanya Xuancai.
Since December 2020, he has been a director of Fujian Guoguang
Xinye Sci-tec Co., Ltd. (FBEBFERFEBRMHER AR (“Fujian
Guoguang Xinye”), a subsidiary of Fujian Guoguang Electronic
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. ({82BIXEFRHIZERAA)
(“Fujian Guoguang Electronic”), where he is responsible for
considering the annual operation plan of Fujian Guoguang Xinye
and major issues such as investment plans. Since April 2005, he
has been a director of Fujian Guoguang Electronic, where he is
responsible for considering the annual operation plan of Fujian
Guoguang Electronic and major issues such as investment plans.

Mr. PAN graduated with major in computer science and
technology from Wuhan University (B2X2) in the People’s
Republic of China in July 2004.

The discloseable interests of Mr. PAN in the Shares and
underlying Shares under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” under the Directors’ Report of this annual report.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHU Lin (former name: ZHU Xiaolin), aged 51, has been
an independent non-executive Director since March 2015,
being responsible for overseeing the management of our Group
independently. Mr. ZHU is the chairman of the Audit Committee,
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Mr. ZHU is also a partner of Beijing
Legendhouse CPAs (It BEEEETAIEAT) and a director of
Beijing Run Qin Consulting Co., Ltd. (At FE&EAERRAF).
Since October 2020, Mr. ZHU has been serving as a director of
Jiangsu Changshu Automotive Trim Group Co., Ltd. (IL&#HFE R
HhEEE R H AR A7), formerly known as Changshu Automotive
Trim Co., Ltd. (E#AMABAMHFRNDERAF]), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603035). Since
June 2020, Mr. ZHU has been serving as an independent non-
executive director of Archosaur Games Inc. (1HEEIREER A F)), a
company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 9990). Since
May 2024, Mr. ZHU has been serving as an independent non-
executive director of Qunabox Group Limited (BHEEER A7),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0917). From
November 2020 to August 2022, Mr. ZHU was an independent
non-executive director of Sino-Ocean Service Holding Limited (&
FRISIER AR AR]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 6677). Mr. ZHU was a non-executive director of
Beijing Chexun Internet Company Limited (It REFEBLEGHDH
fR/AF]), a company whose shares are quoted on the NEEQ in the
PRC, from July 2016 to April 2021. Prior to joining our Group in
March 2015, Mr. ZHU was a senior manager at the mergers and
acquisitions department of PricewaterhouseCoopers Consulting
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (Beijing Branch) (L ZExEHZACRINERA
A)3t =5 A A]) from October 2003 to November 2005.

Mr. ZHU obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Overseas Financial
Accounting (T 2B B2 EHF{) from Central Institute
of Finance and Banking (currently known as Central University
of Finance and Economics) in the PRC in June 1995. Mr. ZHU
has been a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since February 2000.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. YU Miao, aged 48, has been an independent non-executive
Director since March 2015, being responsible for overseeing the
management of our Group independently. Mr. YU is also a partner
of Global Law Office. Mr. YU is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, and a member of the Audit Committee. Mr. YU has
been a non-executive director of Beijing Chexun Internet Company
Limited (JLREEHEARND AR AT, a company whose shares
are quoted on the NEEQ in the PRC, from July 2016 to April
2021. Prior to joining our Group in March 2015, Mr. YU was a
partner of Global Law Office from March 2006 to June 2010, and
subsequently a partner of Norton Rose (Asia) LLP from June 2010
to June 2011. Mr. YU returned to Global Law Office as a partner
in July 2011 and has been a partner there since then.

Mr. YU obtained a postgraduate diploma in International Law from
The University of Nottingham in the United Kingdom in December
2001, and a bachelor’s degree in Economic Law from Heilongjiang
University in the PRC in July 1999. Mr. YU was qualified as a
lawyer in the PRC in March 2000.

Ms. LU Xin, aged 45, has been an independent non-executive
Director since April 2025, being responsible for overseeing the
management of our Group independently. Ms. LU is a member
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Ms. LU has over 20 years of
experience in financial accounting. Since July 2021, Ms. LU
has been the chief financial officer of Shanghai Qianzhi Care
Products Co., Ltd. (E/8THZEERARERAR]), responsible for
the company’s general strategy formulation, financial strategic
planning, investment and mergers and acquisitions. From
September 2019 to July 2021 and from July 2008 to August 2019,
she served as the chief financial officer for Mainland China and
Taiwan region of Dentsply Sirona Dental (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (&
THAFEEFRER(EE)BRAT) (formerly known as Sirona
Dental Trading (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (FI#EFRIRERE (LE)
ABR2A7]) and Dentsply Dental (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (BEEMF (K
#E)EMRAA]) respectively, responsible for the corporate finance,
internal control and fund management in Mainland China and
Taiwan region. From June 2005 to June 2008, she served as a
financial supervisor of Motorola Solutions (China) Co., Ltd. (E£
RENZG(PE)BMRAF]) (formerly known as Motorola (China)
Electronics Co., Ltd. (BEFEZEN(FE)EFHRAF)), responsible
for financial analysis, cost accounting and project management.
From August 2002 to June 2005, she worked as a senior auditor
of the Tianjin Branch of PricewaterhouseCoopers (ZEKEFRRZ
SRR R AT AR AR X E 5 FT), responsible for the audit of financial
and accounting statements, consultation on accounting policy and
taxation.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. LU graduated from Tianjin University of Finance and
Economics (KEBEKE) (formerly known as Tianjin Institute of
Finance and Economics (RZEHI 482 8t)) with a bachelor’'s degree
in economics in July 2002, and obtained a master's degree in
business administration from Nankai University (FEFHAZ) in June
2010. She was admitted as a Fellow of the Institute of Public
Accountants of Australia and a Fellow of the Institute of Financial
Accountants of the United Kingdom.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GE Yi is an executive Director, the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chairman of our Company. For details about Mr. GE’s
background, see “Directors” under this section.

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of our Company. For details about Mr.
BAI's background, see “Directors” under this section.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. BAI Kun is an executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary of our Company. For details about Mr.
BAI's background, see “Directors” under this section.
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The Board hereby announces the Directors’ Report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND LISTING

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 29 October 2014. The Shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange since 3 July 2015.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
products such as battery materials, dye and agricultural chemical
intermediates, pigment intermediates and new materials. Analysis
on the principal business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 172 and 173 of this annual
report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the declaration of a final dividend of
RMBO0.025 per ordinary Share for the year ended 31 December
2024, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the AGM. Assuming
the final dividend is approved at the AGM, together with the
interim dividend of RMB0.005 per ordinary Share and a special
dividend of RMBO0.025 per ordinary share for the six months
ended 30 June 2024, the dividends in aggregate for the year
ended 31 December 2024 will amount to RMB0.055 per ordinary
Share (for the year ended 31 December 2023: RMBO0.067 per
ordinary Share). The dividend is expected to be paid on 24 June
2025 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company (the “Register of Members”) on 26 May
2025.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company did not
hold any treasury shares or repurchased shares subject to
cancellation. Based on the total number of shares of the Company
of 970,918,000 shares as of the date of this annual report,
the total amount of final dividend amounted to approximately
RMB24,273,000.

As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this annual report, no
Shareholders has agreed to waive or waived any dividends.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 12 to 17 of this annual report for details.

Environmental Policy and Performance

We focus on environmental, health and safety protection. As a
manufacturer of battery materials, dye intermediates, agricultural
chemical intermediates, pigment intermediates and new materials,
we have developed production processes that comply with all
applicable national and local standards in environmental, health
and safety protection in all material respects. We also believe
that implementing and maintaining advanced development in our
environmental, health and safety protection measures serve as
a competitive strength. Manufacturers that do not meet the local
environmental, health and safety protection standards may incur
losses and fines imposed by the local government.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, we were subject to
inspections organized by the local government from time to time
and we had not been subject to any material fines or penalties
in relation to any material breach of applicable environmental,
health and safety laws or regulations that could have a material
adverse effect on our operation. For the year ended 31 December
2024, we had not lost any order from our customers due to
environmental, health and safety concerns. We believe that our
awareness of the environmental, health and safety issues and
dedication to their protection makes us a leader in this area from
an early stage.

Integrating environmental protection is a part of our operating
philosophy. Our technological improvements were made with a
view towards complying with or strengthening our environmental,
health and safety protection measures. Manufacturers that are
unable to meet the environmental, health and safety standards
of the local government and the downstream customers would
incur a higher cost for fines and remediation and might not be
competitive in the industry in the long run.
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The Group has set up the “Environmental Protection Administrative
System” to implement the discharge of the duties of the person in
charge and staff of every level and every department, and confirm
the disposal treatments and standards of sewage, waste gas and
solid waste. We have also set up the “Accountability System”
to enhance the safety and environment awareness of all our
employees and mitigate and root out any negligent acts, leading
employees to fulfil their responsibility with lofty professionalism
and to ensure the quality of work, so that a standardized
management can be implemented.

The Group attaches great importance to the corporate social
responsibilities, focusing on environmental protection, safety
and health, and continues to be committed to ensuring that
the business activities of the Group are in line with the relevant
environmental and safety supervisory requirements. We have
already obtained Quality Management System [1S0O9001,
Environmental Management System 1SO14001 and Occupational
Health Safety Management System ISO45001 for our management
system.

Compliance with Related Laws and Regulations

The Group always pays attention to strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations in all material aspects, setting
up and improving the existing administrative system, enhancing
daily operation and supervision, and adopting effective measures
to avoid and reduce risks and violation of rules. The following are
some of the primary laws and regulations applicable to the Group
in the PRC.

Laws on Work Safety

The Group has a comprehensive safety production management
system and detailed operation procedures in place. Control on
safety production is strengthened by adopting feasible preventive
measures. We ensure various safety production systems,
measures and responsibilities as well as the relevant contingency
plans are put in place. For further details of the applicable laws
and regulations and the Group’s measures, please refer to the
section headed “Safety Management” in the “Environment, Social
and Governance Report” of this annual report.
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The Environmental Protection Law, the Law on the
Prevention and Treatment of Water Pollution and the Law
on the Prevention and Treatment of Solid Waste Pollution

Enhancing environmental awareness and achieving green
production management is not only the common opportunities and
challenges faced by enterprises, but also the foundation of their
ongoing operations. The Group strictly abides by the captioned
laws and regulations and adopts effective environmental
protection measures to minimize the impacts of our operations on
the environment.

Our production facilities have already been equipped with
pollution control equipment to control and record the gas
pollutants and the emission level of sewage and solid waste.
We have also set up a series of internal policies and plans
for environmental risks avoidance to ensure the compliance
with the applicable state, industrial and local standard laws,
regulations and policy requirements. We constantly strengthen
the development of clean production technologies to satisfy the
increasing standard of environmental protection. For further details
of the applicable laws and regulations and the Group’s measures,
please refer to the section headed “Environmental Protection” in
the “Environment, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.

The Regulations on the Control of Foreign Exchange

The exporting business of the Group is denominated and settled
in USD. Along with the constant promotion of internationalizing
RMB, we do not only closely monitor the fluctuation of foreign
currency, but also strictly comply with the regulations on the
control of foreign exchange in foreign exchange filing registration,
foreign exchange settlement, foreign exchange operating activities
and foreign exchange investing activities.
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The Foreign Trade Law

The Group has corresponding internal export business
management system and operation procedures in place, and
promptly conducts filing registration to export department. We
engage in trade activities that are in compliance with relevant
laws and abide by the trade order. In order to maintain fair
market competition, we do not engage in improper competition
behaviours, such as selling at an improperly low price, bid-
rigging, issuing false advertisement and bribery. For exporting, the
Group also seriously studies and strictly complies with the laws
and regulations of the export destination countries, such as the
anti-dumping law in India, product liability laws and regulations in
Germany and product safety and liability laws and regulations in
the United States of America.

The Labour Law

The Group developed and improved its existing internal
management system to safeguard the rights of its employees. The
Group stringently implements national protocols and standards on
labour safety and health and conducts labour safety and health
education for workers to prevent labour accidents and reduce
occupational hazards. For further details of the applicable laws
and regulations and the Group’s measures, please refer to the
section headed “Safety Management” in the “Environment, Social
and Governance Report” of this annual report.

Social Insurance and Housing Provident Funds

The Group complied with the PRC laws, rules and regulations,
including the Social Insurance Law, the Regulations on
Unemployment Insurance, the Regulations on Work Injury
Insurance and the Regulations on the Administration of Housing
Provident Fund. We make contributions to social insurance in
full and on time including pension insurance, medical insurance,
work injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance as well as housing provident fund. For the year ended
31 December 2024, the Group did not receive any penalty from
the relevant administrative department.
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In light of, including but not limited to, the above-mentioned
primary laws and regulations, our internal control department is
responsible for monitoring from time to time our compliance with
and abidance by the applicable laws and regulations and other
relevant PRC laws and regulations as well as supervising the
implementation of necessary measures. In addition, we plan to
provide our Directors, senior management and employees with
continuing training development programs and updates regarding
the relevant PRC laws and regulations on a regular basis to
proactively identify any concerns and issues relating to potential
non-compliance in order to reduce the Group's risk of deviating
from them.

IMPORTANT RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Customers: We have built strong, long-standing relationships
with our major customers, established a strong customer base
and have become the key supplier to our major customers. We
have passed a number of stringent qualification and certification
processes required by our customers to establish our stable
customer base.

During the Review Year, we attended industry conferences to
solicit new potential customers and maintain relationships with
existing customers. To further enhance our business relationship
with our customers, our sales team visited our major customers
from time to time to conduct customer surveys to understand
their evolving needs and obtained feedback on the quality of our
products. We are dedicated to providing quality customer services
and after-sales services. We endeavour to supply our products to
our customers in a timely manner.

Suppliers: We choose our suppliers of raw materials mainly
based on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by
different suppliers. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers
typically on a monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices
and specifications of the products to be purchased, delivery
arrangement, credit terms and the quality examination procedures
at arms’ length negotiations between the parties based on normal
commercial terms.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024, we were able to obtain
raw materials from our suppliers on terms and quality acceptable
to us and we had not experienced any material disruption to
the supply of any raw materials required for our production
or experienced any difficulty in sourcing alternative suppliers
for such raw materials. In addition, we believe the relationship
between us and our major suppliers has been and will continue to
be good and stable.

Employees: In addition to competitive salaries, we provide
employees with supplementary compensation benefits, such as
free shift dormitories, free shuttle bus transportation, and meal
allowance. In addition, we value our employees and provide them
with continuing education, on-the-job training and encourage their
career development through accumulating on-the-job experience.
For the employees of our subsidiaries that operate in the PRC,
we are required to make contributions to various government
sponsored employee benefit funds, including basic pension
insurance fund, unemployment, maternity, medical, work injury
insurance fund and housing provident fund in accordance with
applicable PRC laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there have been no
significant labour disputes or strikes at any of our production
facilities. Our current relationship with our employees and the
labour unions are good and are based on mutual support and
respect.

RISK FACTORS

Risks and uncertainties can affect the Group’'s businesses,
financial conditions, operational results or growth prospects,
leading to a divergence from the expected or historical results.
Key risk factors affecting the Group are outlined below. In
dealing with these risk factors, the Group keeps in touch with our
stakeholders with the aim of understanding and addressing their
concerns.
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Global Economy and Macroeconomic Conditions

Any adverse change in the global economic downturn, geopolitical
tensions, the imposition of escalated tariffs and the PRC's
economic, political and social conditions, as well as governmental
policies may affect our sales, which will result in pressure on the
prices, volume and margins achieved or achievable in the future.
A decline in demand or a shift to lower value end products with
a lower demand for our products resulting from deteriorating
economic condition may adversely affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

In this regard, the Group will actively gain understanding of the
changes in domestic and overseas markets to promptly grasp
information of industries in the upper and lower stream in relation
to our products and adopt strategies to ensure steady growth in
our profits. We will maintain good cooperative relationships with
major clients by providing them with products highly functional
and of consistent quality. In addition, we will establish an enriched
product structure and portfolio to diversify the risk of concentration
of products. Our products are sold all over the world to avoid
risk of regional economy fluctuations. We keep developing new
customers to lower the dependence on one single customer.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The foreign exchange risk refers to the risk of loss caused by
fluctuation in exchange rate. The foreign exchange risk of the
Group is mainly related to its exporting activities. The operation of
the Group may be affected by the future fluctuation in exchange
rate.

In view of this, the Group resets the export price every month
or quarter to avoid the risk of foreign exchange fluctuation, and
concentrates purchase in China to lower the foreign exchange
risk. The Group will actively monitor the impact of change in
currency exchange rates on the Group and, while taking into
account the nature of its business, adopt measures based on
scientific identification and effective balance to control relevant
risk in order to avoid material loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group neither drew up
any hedging policy, nor adopted any hedging instruments.
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We Are Exposed to Risks Associated with Fluctuations in
Prices of Raw Materials and Supply

The prices of raw materials on which we depend may be affected
by a number of factors, including market supply and demand,
changes in PRC import duties, PRC and global economic
conditions and changes to the PRC or international environmental
and regulatory requirements. Any significant increases in the
cost of the raw materials may increase our cost of production
and negatively affect our profit margin and, more generally, our
business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects.
A reduction in, or lack of availability of, raw materials or
interruptions in the supply chain, may also impact our profitability
to the extent that we are required to pay higher prices for, or
are unable to secure adequate supplies of the necessary raw
materials.

In this regard, we choose our suppliers of raw materials based
on the prices and quality of raw materials offered by different
qualified suppliers. We purchase critical raw materials from
several suppliers to avoid possible risk of relying on one single
supplier. We issue purchase orders to our suppliers typically
on a monthly basis that set out the quantities, prices and
specifications of products purchase, delivery arrangement, credit
terms and the quality examination procedures at arms’ length
negotiations between the parties based on normal commercial
terms. Furthermore, we attach importance to maintaining good
relationships with major suppliers to ensure we can secure
sufficient supply of raw materials of stable quality in a timely
manner and avoid any adverse effect of reduction in, or lack of
availability of, raw materials or interruptions in the supply chain. In
response to price changes of raw materials, we seek to adjust the
prices at which we sell our products to shift any increase in our
costs to our customers so as to maintain our profit margins.

Expansion into New Markets Presents Increased Risks

The competitive conditions and customer preferences of new
markets may be different from our existing markets. Customers in
these new markets might not be familiar with our brand and we
may need to build up brand awareness with greater effort than we
originally planned. We may find it more difficult in new market to
hire, train and retain qualified employees. This may have material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects.
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In this regard, we will strengthen preliminary research and
commercial feasibility analysis in relation to new markets, increase
research and development of new products, technologies and
techniques and hire experienced staff to fulfil our development
plan for the future.

We Experience Seasonal Fluctuations

We experience seasonal fluctuations in our business and results
of operations. Sales of our products and our production activities
are generally slower during the first quarter of each year as a
result of the Chinese New Year holidays in the first quarter, where
many of the consumer product manufacturers stop production.
Furthermore, large quantity of herbicide is typically produced
ahead of the farming seasons for use during the farming seasons.
As a result, demand for agricultural chemical intermediates
such as ONT and OT, a raw material of certain herbicide, also
correspond to this seasonal trend. Failure to manage seasonality
in our business may cause our revenue and financial condition to
be adversely affected.

In this regard, we make reasonable arrangements for the
production and sales of products based on their respective
market demand to cope with our exposure to seasonal fluctuation.
For agricultural chemical intermediates such as ONT and OT,
we conduct meticulous analysis and research on the seasonal
demand for our products in various regions or countries and make
active moves in developing domestic and overseas markets to
mitigate the impact of seasonal factors. In addition, we carefully
monitor and control the fluctuation in our working capital arising
from seasonal movements of revenue so as to take timely
and effective action and provide our business with stable and
adequate cash for operations.

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 21 to 28 of this annual report for details.

OUTLOOK

Please see the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 19 to 21 of this annual report for details.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the Reporting Period are set out in note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The highlight of results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years are set out on pages 7 to 8 of
this annual report. This highlight does not constitute part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue from the top
five customers of the Group accounted for approximately 43.7%
(2023: approximately 37.0%) of the Group’s total revenue, and
the turnover attributable to its largest single customer accounted
for approximately 13.9% of its total revenue (2023: approximately
11.1%).

Major suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the purchases from the
top five suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately
48.7% (2023: approximately 47.6%) of its total purchases, and the
turnover attributable to its largest single supplier accounted for
approximately 16.1% of its total purchases (2023: approximately
18.1%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or any of their
associates or any Shareholders (who to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital in
issue) had interest in any of the Group’s top five customers or
suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of changes in reserves of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 176 to 179.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately RMB76.4 million.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2024 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and as at the date of this
annual report, the Directors are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi
Mr. BAI Kun
Ms. ZHANG Nan (Resigned on 8 January 2025)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
Mr. PAN Deyuan

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Lin

Mr. YU Miao

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan (Resigned on 10 April 2025)
Ms. LU Xin (Appointed on 10 April 2025)

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible
for re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Thus, Mr. BAI Kun,, Mr. ZHU Lin and
Mr.PAN Deyuan will retire by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as the Directors at the forthcoming
AGM.
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Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
shall hold office until the next annual general meeting of the
Company after his/her appointment. Accordingly, Ms. LU Xin will
retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer herself
for re-election as a Director.

A circular containing details of the Directors to be re-elected at
the forthcoming AGM will be despatched to the Shareholders in
due course.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND/OR
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
of information of Directors and/or senior management of the
Company subsequent to the date of the interim report of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2024 are set out
below:

Name of Directors/Senior Management Details of Change

B2 SREEESR SEFEE
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Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent

Ceased to act as the executive director and vice-chairman of the Hong

Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity Association with effect from

August 2024.
FONTAINE Alain Vincent4t 4
BIESE -

Ms. ZHANG Nan
R+

Mr. GE Vi
XKEE

Ms. LU Xin
April 2025.
Bzt

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan

10 April 2025.
SRR L
In respect of the change in emoluments of the Directors, please
refer to note 8 to financial statements of this annual report.

Saved as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report, the Company is not
aware of any other changes which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

BE_T_MENARTBEEERERALERERS

BRABIMAITESF

Ceased to act as an executive Director with effect from 8 January 2025.

BT HF-ANBRITBEERTES -

Serving as the chairman of the ESG committee since 20 March 2025.

B-E-RAF=A-+Hi EEESGEESLRE -
Appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 10
B E_hFUA+HEZERBIIFNITES -

Ceased to act as an independent non-executive Director with effect from

B ZE-_AFNOA+HETHEEELIERTES -

EREZHFMNES  FL2HAFRUBRRME
8 o
BREXRAFHRIEERSREERE | —HARESE

SN ARRB)W A EBRIE ETARBIZE13.51B(1) 1578
T ET A E e -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out on pages 95 to 100 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received the confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration
exceeding three years or which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER IN MAJOR TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2024, save for the Director’s
service contracts and letters of appointment entered into between
the Company and the respective Directors, (i) no contracts of
significance (including contracts of significance for the provision
of services) had been entered into between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
(ii) none of the Directors and their connected entities (as defined
in the Companies Ordinance) either directly or indirectly, have a
material interest in any transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance subsisting during or at the end of the financial
year to which the Company or its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party which is material to
the business of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the businesses of the Company were entered into or
existed.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, with regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices.

Details of the remuneration of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals for the Reporting Period are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of pension schemes of the Group are set out in note 2.4 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code,
are set out as follows:
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(i) Interest in the Shares and Underlying Shares of the (i) RAEQAT KRG REBRMGHESR
Company
Approximate
Number of ordinary percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held® shareholding®
EEE8B EmtE BEEBERHAD REMABT DL
GE i Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.53%
BN RRIEHEE E S (HFE)®
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)® 40.59%
required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO/Interest of
children under 18/Interest of spouse
BEEF KB ERMNE3TIE (FFE)@
AT HBERBHREM T IR s,
18R A N F s/ BB
PAN Deyuan Beneficial owner 48,578,000 (L) 4.93%
EEIR BEmEB A (%)
FONTAINE ALAIN Beneficial owner 186,776 (L) 0.02%
VINCENT EREAA (HFE)
Notes: Hiat -
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares. (1) [F & B8R MNP EIFE -

(2) As at 31 December 2024, the total number of issued
Shares was 985,401,000 Shares.

(3) These Shares represent Shares held by Cavalli which

is wholly-owned by Mr. GE Yi, and Mr. GE Yi is deemed
to be interested in the same pursuant to the SFO.
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On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Yi entered into a voting
right transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited. Pursuant to the voting right transfer deed, the
voting rights of each of Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi.
As such, Mr. GE Yi is deemed to be interested in
133,337,750 Shares (long position) which each of Hero
Time Ventures Limited, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited
and Star Path Ventures Limited is interested in (i.e.,
in aggregate 400,013,250 Shares) as at 31 December
2024 pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

Mr. GE Vi, as the spouse of Ms. QI Lin, is deemed
to be interested in the Shares which Ms. QI Lin is
interested or deemed to be interested in under the
SFO. For details of Ms. QI Lin’s interests, please refer
to notes 3, 4 and 5 in the section headed “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interest and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares” of the Director’s Report in this
annual report.

Each of Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui is a
child under the age of 18 of Mr. GE Yi. Mr. GE Yi is
deemed to be interested in the Shares which each of
Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui is interested
in or deemed to be interested in under the SFO. For
details of Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui’s
interests, please refer to notes 6, 7, 8 and 9 in the
section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ Interest and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” of the
Director’s Report in this annual report.

(4)
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(ii) Interest in the Associated Corporations of the
Company

Directors’ Report

EEERE

(i) RAEDQTEEEE RS

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Name of associated Number of the associated
Name of Director corporations Nature of interest Shares held corporations
1EAEEE B R ER
ExEE LB BB EEME BFERGHE BOBEAE
PAN Deyuan Hebei Tsaker New Materials Beneficial owner 2,521,008 3.97%
Technology Company Limited*
AER AR R B R R AR A A EREEA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the B FXFEBEEIN  R_ZET-_MFE+_/F=+—

Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined
in Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

No arrangement has been made by the Company or any of
its subsidiaries for any Director to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate during the year ended and as at
31 December 2024, and no rights to any share capital or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate were
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised during
the Review Year.

Y EHRESE

* For identification purpose only
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, to the knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) had an interest or a short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and recorded in the register of the
Company maintained under Section 336 of the SFO:

Directors’ Report

EEERE

FERRRRORAEBROHNERRXR

R-F-mE+=A=+—8  RARAEER
M FHAL (EFEFRARABHITRAL) R
AR AR AR B IR 15 o 1 5 IR R B 5 R R 15
BIYEXVEE2RIH HANAL T BELEBEH
AL IR (ES R ) FI6 AT R
BRMAZEEIAR -

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held® shareholding®
REREHE B EntE FEEBRHAOD REBMOBE DL
Cavalli Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 13.53%
EmBEAA (F&)
QI Lin Interest of spouse 133,337,750 (L)® 13.53%
=37 iR (FFE)®
Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.53%
R EE R (FR)@®
Interest of children under 18 266,675,500 (L)® 27.06%
RN 18RAFH (iFE)®
GE Chengyu Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.53%
XE R EE R (FR)®
GE Chenghui Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)™ 13.53%
XHE RRIEGEE R (FFE) ™
Hero Time Corporate Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.53%
Management Pte. Ltd. REZESEERER (iFE)®
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EEERE

Approximate

Number of ordinary percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest Shares held™ shareholding®

REERE B EnttE HEZREREED REMOBT DL

Star Path Corporate Interest in a controlled corporation 133,337,750 (L)® 13.53%
Management Pte. Ltd. 1B E B R A (FFAE)©®

Hero Time Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 13.53%
KRB ER DA EREAA (F&)

Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)1 40.59%

required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO

RIRFE 75 MBI P15 317 (& (F&) o
BTHREE 2 R EA T P 2 s

Star Path Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 13.53%
EFeIRBRAT E=BA (&)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L) 40.59%

required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO

RIRFE 77 KB RPI 2317 & (gFE)
BTWE 2N A M P s

Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 133,337,750 (L) 13.53%
A ERAER AR EmfiEA (478)
Interest of other parties to an agreement 400,013,250 (L)1 40.59%

required to be disclosed under
section 317 of the SFO

RIRFE 75 MBI P58 317 (& (FE)
BTHREE 2 IR AT P 2 s

Notes: Btz -
(1) The letter “L” denotes long position in the Shares. (1) (478 |35 R R T A o

(2) As at 31 December 2024, the total number of issued ©2) Ro-E-—mE+-—A=+—8 BETRHEZ
Shares was 985,401,000 Shares. 488 5985 401 000F% °

(3) Ms. QI Lin, as the spouse of Mr. GE Yi, is deemed to 3) IR E R EE IR - R4 Y B EH L

be interested in the 133,337,750 Shares which Mr. GE LB AN SRS ER
Yi is interested or deemed to be interested in under the #9133,337. 750 I& AR 15 R E G #E S o
SFO.
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Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Ms.
QI Lin, and Ms. QI Lin is deemed to be interested in
the 133,337,750 Shares which Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited is interested in pursuant to the SFO.

Each of Mr. GE Chengyu and Ms. GE Chenghui is
a child under the age of 18 of Ms. QI Lin. Mr. GE
Chengyu holds all shares in Hero Time Ventures
Limited through his wholly-owned subsidiary Hero Time
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd., and Ms. GE Chenghui
holds all shares in Star Path Ventures Limited through
her wholly-owned subsidiary Star Path Corporate
Management Pte. Ltd. Each of Mr. GE Chengyu and
Ms. GE Chenghui is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star
Path Ventures Limited, respectively. As such, Ms. QI Lin
is deemed to be interested in the 133,337,750 Shares
owned by each of Hero Time Ventures Limited and Star
Path Ventures Limited (i.e., in aggregate 266,675,500
Shares).

Hero Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. holds 100%
interest in Hero Time Ventures Limited, and Hero Time
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. is wholly-owned by
Mr. GE Chengyu. Hence, Mr. GE Chengyu is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Hero Time
Ventures Limited is interested in pursuant to the SFO.

Star Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. holds 100%
interest in Star Path Ventures Limited, and Star Path
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. is wholly-owned by
Ms. GE Chenghui. Hence, Ms. GE Chenghui is deemed
to be interested in the Shares in which Star Path
Ventures Limited is interested in pursuant to the SFO.

Hero Time Ventures Limited is wholly-owned by Hero
Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd., and Hero Time
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. is deemed to be
interested in the 133,337,750 Shares which Hero Time
Ventures Limited is interested in under the SFO.

(4)
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AEZERERAFBENRLT2EES - HUR
BEAFRBAEGRY  BWMEZTWIRARBEEE
BBERAGEAEEZA 133,337,750 R H
AR o

RBEEERRMELLTEGRERZLRB
18 FR - RBELEEEFBREEREEN
MiE A & Hero Time Corporate Management
Pte. Ltd.FFAE BN ERBIRER QT M2 AR
- MEXABELLTREBREEREHNNE
‘A A]Star Path Corporate Management Pte.
Ltd. HEBRNERAIRBR AR I -
XBEFRERRBIBL LTS BHE RRIELR A
REBRDBIREZRARER A AFANKRS R
HAEER - Bt - WML TR RN ER AR
ERRAFNUREZERERAASEEAD
133,337,750 i fn (BN $5+266,675,500 A A%
) A -

Hero Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd.
FAERAIKRERDFI100% &% - fiHero
Time Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. FiX
WMERELERA  HRBEESKAEED -
KBELERR RN ERBRBRARER R
AR P S

Star Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd.
HEERAKRERAA100%K#E - MStar
Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. A
WMELTEERER - BRBESKAEED -
XABLZ TR RREGBRAERARERR
HEOBRMOFER R -

R AR AR AFHHero Time Corporate
Management Pte. Ltd. 2&#E ' RE
BENHEKED - Hero Time Corporate
Management Pte. Ltd.##18 BRERAIS AR
RAIMEA 133,337,750 A5 P #E B 4

S o

B
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(10)

(11)

(12)

Star Path Ventures Limited is wholly-owned by Star
Path Corporate Management Pte. Ltd., and Star Path
Corporate Management Pte. Ltd. is deemed to be
interested in the 133,337,750 Shares which Star Path
Ventures Limited is interested in under the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Yi entered into a voting right
transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited.
Pursuant to the voting right transfer deed, the voting
rights of each of Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited
in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi. Hence,
Hero Time Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested
in 400,013,250 Shares (long position), being the sum
of Shares which Mr. GE Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited are interested
in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Yi entered into a voting right
transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited.
Pursuant to the voting right transfer deed, the voting
rights of each of Hero Time Ventures Limited, Radiant
Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited
in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi. Hence,
Star Path Ventures Limited is deemed to be interested
in 400,013,250 Shares (long position), being the sum of
Shares which Mr. GE Yi, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited
and Hero Time Ventures Limited are interested in,
pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.

On 24 June 2019, Mr. GE Yi entered into a voting
right transfer deed with Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited. Pursuant to the voting right transfer deed, the
voting rights of each of Hero Time Ventures Limited,
Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited and Star Path Ventures
Limited in the Shares were transferred to Mr. GE Yi.
Hence, Radiant Pearl Holdings Limited is deemed to be
interested in 400,013,250 Shares (long position), being
the sum of Shares which Mr. GE Yi, Hero Time Ventures
Limited and Star Path Ventures Limited are interested
in, pursuant to section 317 of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors
have not been aware of any person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which would be required to be disclosed under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or to be recorded in the
register maintained under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE SCHEME

The Group did not have any share scheme for the year ended 31
December 2024.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Company did not issue any debentures for the year ended 31
December 2024.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by
the Company or subsisted as at the end of the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in the share capital of the Company for the
Review Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2024, as the Board considered
that the price of the Company’s Shares did not reflect their
intrinsic value, and the share repurchase program could
reflect the Board’s confidence in the Company’'s development
prospects, thus the Company repurchased a total number of
24,711,500 Shares on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration
(before deduction of expenses) of HK$21,958,685. Out of the
shares repurchased during the year ended 31 December 2024,
1,036,000, 10,275,000 and 13,400,500 repurchased shares were
subsequently cancelled on 6 February 2024, 30 July 2024 and 19
February 2025, respectively.
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Details of the repurchase are as follows:

Directors’ Report

BOFBOT

EEERE

Total consideration

Number of Highest purchase Lowest purchase (before deduction
Shares price per Share price per Share of expenses)
Month repurchased HK$ HK$ HK$
=Rl ERBEROEE BRESBEE EREEBEEE HBAE (MBRBAZAT)
BT BT BT
January 2024 1,036,000 0.99 0.93 995,105
—EMNF—HA
March 2024 1,997,000 0.80 0.75 1,555,035
ZEZWF=A
April 2024 1,490,500 0.82 0.76 1,168,660
—EZYFEMA
May 2024 1,963,500 1.08 0.81 1,889,130
—FENFERA
June 2024 2,699,500 1.07 0.97 2,747,045
—TWERA
July 2024 2,124,500 1.06 1.00 2,180,065
—E-MELA
August 2024 3,399,000 0.91 0.80 3,011,220
ZFMHFENA
September 2024 5,113,000 0.88 0.74 4,181,910
ZEZMFNA
October 2024 1,884,000 0.93 0.80 1,629,870
—E-ME+A
November 2024 1,044,000 0.89 0.81 878,415
ZEZNF+—H
December 2024 1,960,500 0.90 0.84 1,722,230
—E-_WFETZA
Total: 24,711,500 21,958,685
&t

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold, redeemed or cancelled any of
the Company’s listed securities (including sale of treasury Shares)

for the year ended 31 December 2024.

There were no treasury shares held by the Company as at 31

December 2024.

#) -

B bR BB & S

470 B 5 FE B 2 0 A
KRE—Z-mE+=A=+—BLFEABE -
e

BOKEHARR ETHES (BEEFRGH

BT -
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands that would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company'’s securities.

UNDERTAKINGS OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. GE Yi and Cavalli had entered into the Deed of Non-
competition in favour of our Company (for itself and as trustee
for the benefit of each of its subsidiaries), under which Mr. GE
Yi and Cavalli had undertaken to our Company that they will not,
and will procure that none of their respective associates (other
than members of our Group) will, directly or indirectly (including
through anybody corporate, partnership, joint venture or other
contractual arrangement) or as principal or agent, either on any
of their own account or with each other or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company or through any entities
(except in or through any members of our Group):

. carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved in any
business which is in competition, directly or indirectly, with
or is likely to be in competition, directly or indirectly, with
our business, whether as a Shareholder, Director, senior
officer, partner, agent, lender, employee, consultant or
otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise; and

o take any action which interferes with or disrupts or may
interfere with or disrupt our business (as defined in the
Prospectus) including, but not limited to, solicitation of any
of the then current customers, suppliers or employees from
any members of our Group.

Please refer to the Prospectus for details of the Deed of Non-
competition.
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In 2024, Mr. GE Yi personally controlled more than 30% of the
voting rights of the Company’s Shares, so he was still regarded
as a controlling shareholder and subject to the Deed of Non-
competition.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from Mr. GE Yi
in respect of his compliance during the Reporting Period with the
non-competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition
issued to the Company in 2024.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
compliance with the Deed of Non-competition during the
Reporting Period based on data and the confirmation provided or
given by Mr. GE Yi and are satisfied that he had complied with the
Deed of Non-competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2024, no Directors or any of their associates
had any interests in any business which competed or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

During the Review Year, the Group entered into certain
transactions with related parties as defined in accordance with
applicable accounting standards, and details of which are set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report. Such related party transactions fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (fully
exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules). The
Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure and
other requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of Listing
Rules.
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MATERIAL LITIGATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has not
been involved in any material litigation or arbitration. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no material litigation or claim
pending or threatened against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to Article 34.1 of the Articles of Association, every
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses incurred
or sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other officer of the
Company by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their
respective offices or trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur
or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. The Group has
taken out and maintained directors’ liability insurance throughout
the year, which provides appropriate cover for the Directors.
Every Director, auditor or other officer of the Company is therefore
entitled to be indemnified subject to the Company Law or other
relevant regulations for the year ended 31 December 2024. The
permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended
31 December 2024 for the benefit of the Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
section headed “Report of Corporate Governance” on pages 130
to 162 of this annual report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued Shares, being the minimum percentage of public float
as prescribed by the Stock Exchange and under the Listing Rules,
was held by the public at all times during the Reporting Period
and as at the date of this annual report.

DONATION

Please refer to the section headed “CARING FOR COMMUNITY
AND TAKING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY” in the “Environment,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report for further
details.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young has been appointed as auditor of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2024. Ernst & Young has audited
the accompanying financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

There has been no change in the Company’s auditor in the
preceding three years.

Ernst & Young will retire as the auditor of the Company in the
forthcoming AGM with effect from the conclusion of the AGM. In
order to maintain the independence of the Company’s auditor
and good corporate governance practice, the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company for the year ending
31 December 2025 will not be proposed at the AGM. A resolution
for the appointment of Confucius International CPA Limited (X
REE e SEEARAQT) as the new auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the AGM. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 20 March 2025.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Friday, 9 May
2025 to Thursday, 15 May 2025, both days inclusive, in order
to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled
to attend the AGM, during which period no share transfers will
be registered. To be eligible to attend the AGM, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 8 May 2025.

The Register of Members will also be closed from Wednesday,
21 May 2025 to Monday, 26 May 2025, both days inclusive, in
order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to receive
the final dividend, during which period no share transfers will be
registered. To be eligible to receive the final dividend, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 20 May 2025.

By order of the Board

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
GE Yi

Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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Report of Corporate Governance

The Board hereby presents the corporate governance report of
the Company for the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of its
Shareholders and enhance its value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) under Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules as its
own corporate governance code. The Company has been in
compliance with all applicable code provisions under the CG
Code throughout the Reporting Period, except for code provision
C.2.1 which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company will continue to review and
monitor its corporate governance practices in order to ensure the
compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management and
operation of the Group to the senior management of the Group.
To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has established four Board committees, including the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the ESG Committee. The Board has delegated to
the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their respective
terms of reference.

The board is responsible for the management of the Company and
is accountable to the Shareholders for their entrusted assets and
resources.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in

respect of liability arising from legal action against its Directors,
and will conduct annual review on such insurance cover.
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Board Composition

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprised
three executive Directors, two non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, and as at the date of this
annual report, the Board comprised two executive Directors, two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors, as set out below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. GE Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. BAI Kun (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
Ms. ZHANG Nan (Resigned on 8 January 2025)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent
Mr. PAN Deyuan

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. ZHU Lin

Mr. YU Miao

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan (Resigned on 10 April 2025)
Ms. LU Xin (Appointed on 10 April 2025)

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the Board met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise (i.e., Mr. ZHU Lin).

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, which relates to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Ms. LU Xin, who was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 10 April 2025, had obtained the legal advice referred
to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 3 April 2025, and she has
confirmed that she understood her obligations as a Director.
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Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out
in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report, none of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) with any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to
serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee.

As regards the corporate governance code provision requiring
directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to
the Company in a timely manner.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Any newly appointed Director would be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Group’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time. The Directors are
also provided with regular updates on the Group’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. From time to time, the company secretary of the
Company update and provide the Directors with written training
materials in relation to their roles, functions and duties.
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A summary of training received by the Directors for the Reporting
Period according to the records provided by the Directors is as
follows:
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Nature of Continuous
Professional Development

Name of Directors EEHE BESEREREMLE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. GE Yi XxEE B, C
Mr. BAI Kun BEXE A/B,C
Ms. ZHANG Nan kit B, C
(Resigned on 8 January 2025) (R=ZFZAF—HANNHAEHT)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincentst 4 A B, C
Mr. PAN Deyuan EERE A B, C
Independent non-executive Directors BAFHTES
Mr. ZHU Lin KRR HAE A B, C
Mr. YU Miao FaceE B, C
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan RARFELZ T B, C
(Resigned on 10 April 2025) (R=ZF=AHFEIYA+HEHE)
Ms. LU Xin Bzt NA*
(Appointed on 10 April 2025) (R=ZFE-—AFMHA+HEZT) T
Notes: Wit
A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or A" HERSNER Sgak, SAmBR,HE
briefings wE
B: reading materials on various topics, including corporate B: HEZEARZENNK  ZEEREXE
governance matters, directors’ duties and responsibilities, B BERERBLEBE - ETWRBKEMERE
Listing Rules and other relevant laws 4l
©: participating in training provided by law/accounting firms and  C: LINER SRR ATIRERIEI - BARQRE

that relating to the business of the Company

Ms. LU Xin has obtained induction trainings to ensure that
she has a proper understanding of the Group’s operations
and businesses as well as her responsibilities under relevant
statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In accordance with the code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Company deviates from the code provision C.2.1
because Mr. GE Yi performs both the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Since Mr. GE
Yi has been with the Group for many years, he has a thorough
understanding in our business, management, customers and
products. With his extensive experience in business operation and
management, the Board believes that vesting the two roles in the
same person provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates effective implementation and execution
of our business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Company.

Under the leadership of Mr. GE Yi, the Board works effectively and
performs its responsibilities with all key and appropriate issues
discussed in a timely manner. In addition, as all major decisions
are made in consultation with members of the Board and relevant
Board committees, and there are three independent non-executive
Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives, the
Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards
in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers and authorities
between the Board and the management of the Company. To
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company, the Board shall nevertheless review the effectiveness
of the structure and composition of the Board from time to time in
light of prevailing circumstances.

In accordance with the code provision C.2.7 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the Chairman should hold at least one meeting
annually with the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors present.
For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Chairman met with the
non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
without other executive Directors present to understand their
concerns and to discuss pertinent issues.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. GE Yi, being the executive Director, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 15 June 2024, which is subject to renewal upon mutual
agreement.

Mr. BAI Kun, being the executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 23 August 2022, which is subject to renewal upon
mutual agreement.

Mr. PAN Deyuan, being the non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 25 November 2022, which is subject to
renewal upon mutual agreement.

Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent, being the non-executive Director,
and Mr. ZHU Lin and Mr. YU Miao, being the independent non-
executive Directors, have entered into letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 15 June
2024, renewable upon mutual agreement.

Ms. LU Xin, being the independent non-executive Director, has
entered into letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 10 April 2025, renewable upon
mutual agreement.

No Director has entered into a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is of a duration exceeding three
years or which is not determinable within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) will retire from office by rotation and will be eligible for
re-election at every annual general meeting, provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. Therefore, Mr. BAI Kun, Mr. ZHU Lin and Mr.
PAN Deyuan will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as the Director at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition will hold office until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.
Therefore, Ms. LU Xin will retire and, being eligible, will offer
herself for re-election as the Director at the forthcoming AGM.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company will adopt the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of no less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given by the Company. The
agenda and accompanying Board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the
Board meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that
the Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for active participation in the Board meetings
or Board Committee meetings. When Directors or committee
members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of
the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make
their views known to the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes
of meetings shall be kept by the company secretary with copies
circulated to all Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views expressed
by the Directors. Draft minutes and final versions of each Board
meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the
Directors for comments and record within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by the Directors.
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Report of Corporate Governance

During the Reporting Period, four Board meetings and one annual
general meeting were held, and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

EREBRE

RBERR - EFEHBTORAESEERL K
BRBFERE

EREELFEBEREN TR

Meeting Attended/
Number of Board

Meeting Attended/
Number of General

meetings meetings

Directors = HESE ETENY HESEBREAERH
Executive Directors YTES
Mr. GE Yi XrE 4/4 1/1
Mr. BAI Kun XA 4/4 11
Ms. ZHANG Nan R+

(Resigned on 8 January 2025) (R=FZHF—F/NNAGF) 414 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. FONTAINE Alain Vincent FONTAINE Alain Vincent%: 4 4/4 il
Mr. PAN Deyuan EEREE 4/4 1/1
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. ZHU Lin RREE 4/4 1/1
Mr. YU Miao FaEE 4/4 11
Ms. ZHANG Feiyan RRFZ T

(Resigned on 10 April 2025) (R=F=-AFMA+HEHT) 4/4 111
Ms. LU Xin Bzt

(Appointed on 10 April 2025) (R-F-RFMA1HEEF) 0/0 0/0
MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS ETRSRZNEETR

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made to all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she complied with the Model
Code throughout the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Company also adopted its own
code of conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions
on terms no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model
Code for the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely
to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company in respect of their dealings in the Company’s securities.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense. Directors are encouraged to access and
consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors, their corporate governance
duties include:

(a) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

to develop and review the Company’'s policies and
practices on corporate governance and to make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board on
matters;

to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report; and

(f) to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s whistleblowing policy.

Report of Corporate Governance
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MISSIONS, VALUES AND STRATEGIES OF THE
COMPANY AND CORPORATE CULTURE

To ensure the missions, values and strategies of the Company
are in line with its corporate culture, the Board has formulated the
Statement on Missions, Values and Strategies of the Company.
The Statement has set out the vision and values of the Company,
as well as various strategies adopted for the realization of its
missions and values.

PURPOSE

It is the Company’s vision to become a world-renowned
manufacturer of fine chemicals, including battery materials, dye
and agricultural chemical intermediates, pigment intermediates
and new materials etc.

VALUE

Philosophy

The Company is well-versed in chemistry and understands the
essence of chemistry.

Support

Mutual support with partners — the Company is a trustworthy
partner, which is where the value of the Company’s brand and
customers lies. The Company and its customers are in mutual
reliance.

Vision

The Company adds color to the world.

Knowledge

The Company has professional knowledge and constantly
innovates technology.

Steadfast

The Company’s pursuit of technical perfection never ceases.

Responsibility

The Company will always insist on changing the world and
human life with green technology, focusing on people and the
environment.
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STRATEGY

The Company aims to realize its purpose and value through the
following strategies:

° Providing a full range of solutions to meet the development
needs of the chemical industry in the future

. Continuing to invest in the innovation and development of
green technology

° Successfully expanding and strengthening its influence in
China and other overseas markets

The Company is committed to fostering a work culture that
encourages innovation, experimentation, excellence and
sustainability:

. Offering employees training opportunities from internal or
external management, technology, supervision and other
consultants:

(1) Encouraging employees to participate in external
training on creativity, corporate leadership and
management.

(2) Hosting internal cultural events to achieve shared
strategic goals and live out the Company’s values,
mission and vision.

o Long-term sustainable development:

The Company has always insisted on changing the
world and human life with green technology focusing on
people and the environment. The Company continues
to invest in the innovation and development of green
technology, promote “green production”, and reduce
emissions generated during the production process.
Through continuous equipment upgrades and technology
optimization, the Company will continue to explore feasible
emission reduction measures to reduce the impact on our
environment.

Report of Corporate Governance
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Board has reviewed the Anti-Corruption Policy in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2024, and is of the view that the
current Anti-Corruption Policy has been effectively implemented.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY AND SYSTEM

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Company’s
whistleblowing policy and system in respect of the year ended
31 December 2024, and are of the view that the current
Whistleblowing Policy has been effectively implemented.

POLICY ON OBTAINING INDEPENDENT ADVICE AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

The Board had formulated and adopted the Policy on Obtaining
Independent Advice and Recommendations (the “Policy”),
reflecting the Company’s commitment to high corporate
governance standard, and making good corporate governance as
an essential component of our corporate culture. According to the
Policy, a summary of the mechanism for ensuring the Board can
obtain independent view and input is set out below:

° When making decisions in furtherance of performing his/her
Director duties, a Director can seek independent advice,
views and recommendations which he/she considers
necessary for the purpose of performing his/her duties and
making independent judgment. Relevant expenses incurred
will be borne by the Company (the “Mechanism”).

° In respect of seeking independent professional advice,
Directors should communicate with the Chief Financial
Officer and raise questions, enquiries, concerns or
specific opinions, if any. Subsequently, the Chief Financial
Officer will contact professional advisors of the Company
(including solicitors, accountants, external auditors
and internal control advisors) or other independent
professionals in order to obtain independent professional
advice within a reasonable timeframe.

° Any recommendation obtained through the Mechanism

should be properly recorded and provided to other
Directors of the Board.
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o The Board can have full access to all information provided
by senior management of the Company which the relevant
Board member considers appropriate for the purpose of
performing his/her duties.

o The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness
of the Policy on Obtaining Independent Advice and
Recommendations annually.

The Board has reviewed the Policy on Obtaining Independent
Advice and Recommendations in respect of the year ended 31
December 2024, and is of the view that such policy has been
effectively implemented.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely Mr. ZHU
Lin (chairman), Mr. YU Miao and Ms. LU Xin, all of which are
independent non-executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as
follows:

1. to be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and to
deal with any questions of its resignation or dismissal;

2. to monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements and annual report and accounts, half-year
report and, if the prepared for publication, quarterly
reports, and to review significant financial reporting
judgments contained in them;
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in reviewing these reports mentioned above before
submission to the Board, focusing particularly on:

() any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iii) significant adjustments resulting from the audit;

(iv)  the Group’s going concern assumption and any
qualifications;

(v) compliance with accounting standards; and

(vi) compliance with the Listing Rules and legal
requirements in relation to financial reporting;

to review the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems and to audit any significant
connected transaction, so as to ensure that management
has performed its duty to establish an effective internal
control system;

to discuss the risk management and internal control
system with management to ensure that management
has performed its duty to have an effective system. This
discussion should include the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function;
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0. to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

7. to establish a whistleblowing policy and system for
employees and those who deal with the Company (e.g.,
customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in confidence
and anonymity, about possible improprieties in any matter
related to the Company;

8. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management, and the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

9. to review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
for inspection.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held a total of 2
meetings to discuss and consider the following:

o it reviewed the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December
2023 and the auditor’s report prepared by the external
auditor on accounting matters and the major findings
during the audit;
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° it reviewed the interim results of the Company and its e
subsidiaries for the period ended 30 June 2024; and

° it reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance e
procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programme and budget of the Company’'s accounting
and financial reporting function), risk management system
and procedures, policies (including but not limited to
Whistleblowing Policy of the Company) on corporate
governance, effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function performed by the Audit & Supervision Department
and the re-appointment of external auditor. The Board
did not have separate opinion on any recommendation
and suggestion by the Audit Committee in relation to the
selection, appointment, retirement or removal of external
auditor.
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The attendance of members of the Audit Committee at the RBEXZZEEXKEXFZSESZNEBRIANTE:

meetings is set out in the following table:

Actual attendance/
Required attendance

Name of members EEMS BHERE S EHERE

Mr. ZHU Lin KHFREE 2/2

Mr. YU Miao FREAE 2/2

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan RARFLZ T 2/2
(Resigned on 10 April 2025) (R=ZF=AHFPYA+HEHT)

Ms. LU Xin BRZL 0/0
(Appointed on 10 April 2025) (R=ZFE-—AFMHA+HEZE)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZE®

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely REZEBEH=FMEMAK - X ELE (EF)
Mr. GE Yi (chairman), Mr. ZHU Lin and Ms. LU Xin, of which Mr. RREERBMRLL - EF X CEERATES -
GE Yi is an executive Director, Mr. ZHU Lin and Ms. LU Xin are ~ MAREERBREZ LA RBIIFNTES -

independent non-executive Directors.
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The main duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

to analyse the standards and procedures for selection
of Directors and senior management appointed by
the Board; review the structure, size, composition and
diversity (including without limitation, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service) of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors,
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members
of the Board and may select individuals nominated
for directorship. In identifying suitable individuals, the
Committee shall consider individuals on merit and against
the objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board;

to assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

to review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and
review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the
progress on achieving the objectives; and make disclosure
of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report
annually;

to assess and review the candidates for director and senior
management to be potentially appointed by the Board,
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer, taking into the Company’s corporate strategy and
the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future; and

to examine the assessment standards for Directors and
senior management appointed by the Board, conduct the
relevant assessments and make recommendations to the
Board.
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The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

DIRECTORS’ NOMINATION CRITERIA AND
PROCEDURES

The Nomination Committee has also followed certain selection
criteria and nomination procedures in relation to new appointments
and re-appointments of Directors. The selection criteria for
assessing candidates include, in particular, his/her educational
background and professional qualifications, experiences in the
industry, personality and integrity, as well as his/her contributions
to diversity of the Board according to the Board Diversity Policy.

In the case of re-appointment of Directors, the Nomination
Committee would take into account factors such as contribution
from the retiring Directors. Where the candidate is appointed
for the position of independent non-executive Director, the
Nomination Committee will also assess his/her independence
with reference to the requirements set out in the Listing Rules. In
appointing a new Director, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will first identify potential candidates. After the Nomination
Committee evaluated the candidates based on the selection
criteria, the Nomination Committee will nominate one or more
qualified candidates for the Board’s consideration and the Board
will determine and agree on a preferred candidate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company believes that the diversity of Board composition
has many benefits to the performance of the Company. As
such, the Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure in designing the Board’'s composition, board diversity
will be considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is summarized
as follows:
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PURPOSE: Aim to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

POLICY STATEMENT: With a view to achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its
sustainable development. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

MEASURABLE OBJECTIVES: (1) the recruitment and selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service; (2) the Nomination Committee will make
discussion annually, and, where necessary, make consensus on
measurable objectives for achieving board diversity. It will provide
its recommendation to the Board for adoption, which includes
at least one of the Directors having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, and at least one Director having intensive experience
of the industry on which the business of the Group is engaged in;
(8) final decision will be made based on objective criteria and the
contribution to be brought by the selected candidate to the Board,
taking into consideration of the Company’s corporate strategies
and business operation; (4) the Board shall have at least one
Director of a different gender. Such Director shall possess the
skills, experience and talent necessary for the operation of the
Company; and (5) to achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the
Nomination Committee will recommend potential candidates for
the Board so as to realize gender diversity.

REVIEW POLICY: The Board will review this policy at least once a
year to ensure the effectiveness of this policy which is in line with
its missions.

The Board has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2024, is of the view that such policy
has been effectively implemented.
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During the Review Year, when considering and approving
proposals on the appointment of new independent non-executive
Director and the re-appointment of incumbent Directors, the
Nomination Committee and the Board had fully considered the
measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy and assessed
the background and experience of candidates that can bring
to the Board diverse perspectives and contributions to board
diversity. The Company believes that these measurable objectives
have been basically achieved.

GENDER DIVERSITY

As at 31 December 2024, the Board is comprised of eight
Directors, including six male Directors and two female Directors.
The Company believes that the gender diversity of the Board has
been basically achieved. The Company will also be committed
to promoting gender diversity when suitable candidates are
identified.

To achieve and/or maintain gender diversity, the Nomination
Committee will recommend potential candidates for the Board
so as to realize gender diversify. Specifically, when selecting
potential candidates for the Board, the Nomination Committee and
the Board will, inter alia, (i) consider the current ability, diversity
and representation level of different gender in the Board and
senior management when making recommendation on nominees
and the succession plan of the Board and senior management;
(ii) take reference to the employment practical codes published
by Hong Kong Equal Opportunities Commission and the manuals
(if applicable) published by All-China Federation of Trade Unions
from time to time, so as to consider the standards in promoting
diversity.

The Group adheres to the principle of fairness and voluntariness
in the recruitment procedures, and does not implement any
restriction on gender, ethnicity, nationality and territory. As at
31 December 2024, the employee indicator, including senior
management, of the Group is set out below:
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As at 31 December 2024
R-E-_ME+=-RA=+—H

Number of employee Percentage
Indicator EE EEA" EEEBS K
Male employee BHEET 1,511 70.8%
Female employee ZHE T 623 29.2%
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The Company considers that gender diversity is achieved in its
workforce generally. The Group encourages gender diversity in
office, and strives to increase the proportion of female employee
at different levels including through promoting such an aim during
recruitment.

To achieve diversity in our employee team, the Group has
implemented appropriate recruitment and selection procedures
so as to consider diversified range of candidates. The Group has
also established the talent management and training programme
which provides career development guidance and promotion
opportunities, aiming to create an employee team possessing a
wide range of diversified skills and extensive experience.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1. the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. the roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of
the Company are held by the same person, and believes
that vesting the two roles in the same person provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership and
facilitates effective implementation and execution of our
business decisions and strategies, and is beneficial to the
business prospects and management of the Company;

&5 the Board Diversity Policy; and

4. the independence of independent non-executive Directors
and the re-election of Directors.

The attendance of members of the Nomination Committee at the
meeting is set out in the following table:
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4. BIFATESNRIUERESEE -

BERAEE8

i3

REHFEZEEZNBERENTE

Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members EZENE CHERE EHERE

Mr. GE Yi XREE 1/1

Mr. ZHU Lin RIREE 1/1

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan SRR + 1/1
(Resigned on 10 April 2025) (R=ZF=AFMA+HFHF)

Ms. LU Xin BR&Z =+ 0/0

(Appointed on 10 April 2025)

(R-F-RFHA 1 HEZE)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely
Mr. YU Miao (chairman), Mr. ZHU Lin and Ms. LU Xin, all of which
are independent non-executive Directors.

The main duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy according to standards including
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities concerned, and employment terms of
other positions within the Company and its subsidiaries;

2. to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

S8 to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office
or appointment;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8%RERHE AR A 7

Report of Corporate Governance
TEERRSE

FMEES

YFMEEem=aKEAR  ITHREE(ZE) -
AREERBMEL  MAZBHRBIIFNTE
=

HFHNZEENIEREMT

1. RAAAEERSRERAAGHDEFMK
HERAE - RRERAR XA OFH - A
H i RB R RBE « AR REKEA AR
B AL BT O R SR B R Y ERTA
BAEHRFHTHNRE  REFRIRY
i

2. REE=GMaIEETH KB EMRA kit
HEEEENHER

3. MEEGZRENRTEERFREEREDN
FMEE  BRFSENE  BRARSENK
FESH (BRRAARUERBHZENE

&)

4. HIFMTEFNFHAEESRHES



Y, to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibility and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6. to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive for the Company;

7. to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

8. to ensure that no director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and

9. to review and/or approve matters relating to the share
schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held
one meeting to discuss and consider the following:

1. the 2024 and 2025 remuneration packages and policies of
Directors and senior management; and

2. the employee remuneration policies and structure of the
Group.
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The attendance of members of the Remuneration Committee at the
meeting is set out in the following table:

EREBRE

EHHEZEEGNEHFEZERNBERIERNTX

Actual attendance/Required attendance

Name of members ZEHS CHERE EHERE

Mr. YU Miao FEEE 1/1

Mr. ZHU Lin RIREE 1/1

Ms. ZHANG Feiyan SRR L 11
(Resigned on 10 April 2025) (R=ZF=AHFIH+ HEFHT)

Ms. LU Xin Bzt 0/0

(Appointed on 10 April 2025)

(R-F_RFHATHEZL)

ESG COMMITTEE

The ESG Committee consists of five members, namely Mr.GE
Yi (chairman of the committee, an executive Director, the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman of the Company),
Mr. CUI Zhenting (production director of the battery materials
division), Mr. TAO Shigang (deputy general manager and
production director of the pigment and new material division),
Mr. ZHANG Jiye (production director of Tsaker Huayu) and Mr.
SHI Bingfeng (production director of Tsaker Dongao). all of
which are management members of the Company with relevant
environmental, social and governance knowledge and experience.

The main duties and responsibilities of the ESG Committee are
set out in the section headed “Company Sustainable Development
Governance” in the “Environment, Social and Governance Report”
of this annual report.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of senior management of the Company
(including two Directors, whose biographies are set out on pages
95 and 96 of this annual report) during the Reporting Period falls
under the following bands:
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Band of remuneration (RMB) HeEER (ARY) A"
Over 1,500,000 1,500,0007C A = 1
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 T 1,500,0007T 2%
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Among them, Ms. ZHANG Nan resigned as an executive
Director on 8 January 2025.

Further particulars of Directors’ remuneration and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix
D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Reporting Period
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and
the Group and of the Group'’s results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out
an informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides
all members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s
performance, positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 169 to 171 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board for ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems, to safeguard Shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
with the assistance of the Audit Committee at least annually.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in the performance of its
regulatory and corporate governance role in the Group’s financial,
operational, compliance, risk management and internal controls,
as well as financial and internal audit functions. Risk management
and internal control systems can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or losses. They
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failing to
meet business objectives.

Audit & supervision department

The Group has established an Audit & Supervision Department
(formerly known as Internal Audit Department), whereby such
department plays an important role in monitoring the internal
governance of the Group and performs internal audit function.
The major responsibilities of the Audit & Supervision Department
include standardizing and reviewing operating risks, financial
positions and internal control of the Group, as well as conducting
regular and comprehensive audits of all subsidiaries and affiliates
of the Group. The Audit & Supervision Department reports to the
Audit Committee at its annual meeting in respect of the adequacy
and effectiveness of its work in the previous year and the work
plan for the following year.

Risk management and internal control system

The Group adopted the three lines of defence model in the
management of risk. Operational management forms the core
of the first line of defence as they contact with the risk sources
in the first place. They are responsible for identifying, reporting
and preliminarily managing risks in their daily operations. Our
second line of defence is aimed to facilitate and monitor the
implementation of effective risk management practices by
operational management and assists risk owners in defining
risk exposures and reporting adequate risk-related information
throughout the Group. Our internal audit function is the core of the
third line of defence and mainly responsible for checking, auditing
and monitoring the work performed by the first and second lines
of defence.
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The Group's risks are identified from business processes in our
established enterprise-wide risk assessment methodologies.
We select key participants across the Group who are involved
in each of the business process as interviewees to identify the
risks to form our risk universe. Each risk within the risk universe
(including ESG risks) is assessed in terms of likelihood of
occurrence and the significance of impact, taken into account the
current internal controls in place to mitigate these risks. The risk
assessment results are reported to senior management, the Audit
Committee, the ESG Committee (the part related to ESG risks)
and the Board for the confirmation of our risk response strategies
and the development of our improvement measures, based on
their preferences towards risk, the available resources for risk
mitigation, and the current controls in place. The Board and the
Audit Committee and the ESG Committee assess and review the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems (covering all key controls including strategy, finance,
operation, compliance controls and ESG risks) on an annual basis.

Managing ESG Risks

ESG risks have multiple impacts on the sustainable development
of the company’s business and social development, and such
ESG risks should also be integrated into the Company’s risk
management framework to improve the effectiveness of risk
management.

In order to be consistent with other major risks, the Group adopts
the same risk management procedures to manage ESG risks,
including identifying ESG risks, formulating risk universe, risk
assessment and monitoring measures taken, as well as consulting
and reporting processes, etc.

For details of ESG and climate-related risk management measures,
please refer to the “Environment, Social and Governance Report”
in this annual report.

During the Review Year, the Company reviewed the report
prepared by the Audit & Supervision Department containing the
investigation results and improvement suggestions as well as the
management letter prepared by the external auditor, and promptly
took appropriate improvement measures to mitigate the risks.
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The Company’s internal control system is based on Internal
Control-Integrated Framework of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”), and has
five components, namely Control Environment, Risk Assessment,
Control Activities, Information and Communication, and Monitoring
Activities. The system intends to facilitate the design and
functioning of good control practices and reduce the likelihood
and impact of risks to an acceptably low level, in order for us to
achieve our objectives in operations, reporting, and compliance.

Any material internal control defects identified are timely
communicated and carefully evaluated for their potential impacts.
The departments or functions who are owners of these controls,
are required to propose corrective measures and obtain approval
from management before implementation. The implementation
status is monitored by both management and the Audit &
Supervision Department to ensure these control defects are
properly resolved in a timely manner.

The Group has also established policies and internal control
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside
information, including “Material Information Internal Reporting
System of Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited” and “Information
Disclosure Management System of Tsaker New Energy Tech
Co., Limited”. The information or data to be disclosed should be
properly reviewed and approved by our compliance functions and
management to ensure its timeliness, accuracy, sufficiency and
effectiveness, and is closely monitored after disclosure.

During the Review Year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control system of the Group including
all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls, especially the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function, and considered that the design and implementation of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group are
effective and adequate in all material respects.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the auditor in respect of the audit and non-
audit services provided to the Company for the Reporting Period
is as follows:
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Amount (RMB’000)

Type of services PR R SHE(ARETT)
Audit services ZE RIS 1,700
Non-audit services in relation to: FAR A THIEE IR -

Interim results reviewing PESE R 550
Total #st 2,250

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. BAI Kun, an executive Director, who has been confirmed
by the Stock Exchange to be capable of acting as a company
secretary of the Company under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules,
acts as the sole company secretary of the Company and is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, Mr. BAIl Kun has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On 30 November 2018, the Board approved and adopted a
dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, the Company may distribute
dividends in (i) cash; (ii) Shares; or (iii) a combination of cash or
Shares. When deciding whether to propose/declare dividends
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board will take into
consideration, amongst others, the general financial position,
operating results, liquidity position and capital requirements of
the Group, and the distribution shall be made in accordance with
applicable rules and regulations (including the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands) and subject to restrictions under the Articles
of Association.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

Shareholders’ Communication Policy

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of timely
and non-selective disclosure of information on the Company,
which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions. To promote effective communication, the
Company has been maintaining a Shareholders’ communication
policy (the “Shareholders’ Communication Policy”), which
aims at establishing a two-way relationship and communication
between the Company and its Shareholders.

During the Review Year,
Shareholders’ Communication Policy. Under the Shareholders’
Communication Policy, the Company will take steps to solicit and
understand the views of its Shareholders and other stakeholders
(including employees, customers, suppliers and investors).
Shareholders may direct questions and communicate their views
on various matters affecting the Company, request for publicly

the Board adopted the amended

available information and provide comments and suggestions to
directors or management of the Company by mail to 31st Floor,
Tower Two, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong, by telephone (during business hours) at (86 10)
5653-2886 or by email to ir@tsaker.com.

The annual general meetings of the Company provide opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
Under normal circumstances, the Chairman and independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and the chairmen of the
Board Committees of the Company will attend the annual general
meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor
will also attend the annual general meetings to answer questions
about the audit works, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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The Company will appoint employees specifically responsible for
investor relation matters, including but not limited to providing
information to Shareholders in a timely and effective manner. Any
corporate communication issued or to be issued by the Company,
including but not limited to annual reports, interim reports, notices
of general meetings, circulars and proxy forms, will be written
in plain language and provided to Shareholders in English and
Chinese version for easy understanding.

The capital market department of the Group strives to maintain the
investor relation of the Company through regular and extraordinary
exchanges with investment institutions, so as to ensure
timely communication and to understand the latest business
development of the Company and the views of investors on the
Company’s prospects. Research reports prepared by investment
institutions will be posted on the Company’s website for reference
of Shareholders and investors.

The Board will review the Shareholders’ Communication Policy
annually so as to ensure its implementation and effectiveness. The
summary of annual review results will be disclosed in the annual
report and/or report of corporate governance of the Company.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of Shareholders’ Communication Policy in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2024, and is of the view that the current
Shareholders’ Communication Policy has been effectively
implemented. During the Review Year, the annual general meeting
of the Company was held on 16 May 2024. All Directors attended
the meeting in person or via video conference to answer any
inquiries Shareholders might have. The Company holds investor
communication activities from time to time to update Shareholders
on the Company’s business development and respond to
Shareholders’ inquiries. The Company has also received inquiries
from Shareholders from time to time and such inquiries have
been properly resolved. Accordingly, the Company considers its
Shareholders” Communication Policy to be effective.

The latest version of the Shareholders’ Communication
Policy has been posted on the website of the Company at
http://www.tsaker.com, where the up-to-date information on the
Company’s business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each general meeting.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to Article 12.3 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at
general meetings of the Company. Any one or more member(s)
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company at the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within 21 days from the date when such
meeting is convened. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board to convene such general meeting shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

and all

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the capital
market department of the Company at its headquarters through
email at ir@tsaker.com.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Articles of Association during the
Reporting Period.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

i
R —RE2718

To the shareholders of Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 172 to 298, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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EY:

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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EY:

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Recognition of deferred tax
assets on tax losses

Several of the Company’s
subsidiaries had accumulated
tax losses of RMB451 million
as at 31 December 2024. The
Group has recognised deferred
tax assets of RMB100 million
against the tax losses to the
extent that the realisation
of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits is
probable.

Recognition of deferred tax assets
requires critical judgement from
management on the likelihood
and magnitude of creating future
taxable profits to utilise the tax
losses, including expectations for
future prices of products, expected
sales volumes and production
costs, and overall market and
economic conditions. Actual profits
are likely to be different from
those forecasts since anticipated
events frequently do not occur as
expected and unforeseen events
may arise, and their impact on
estimates and forecasts may be
material.

The Group's accounting policies
and disclosures about the
deferred tax assets are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 29.

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

Our audit procedures included,
amongst others, evaluating the
assumptions used in projecting
the expected future taxable
profits such as future prices
of products, expected sales
volumes and production costs,
by comparing these key inputs
with the corresponding entities’
historical data and economic
forecasts as well as by reviewing
supporting documents for those
assumptions made such as sale
contracts and budget prepared
by management, and assessing
the income tax rate applicable
to the deferred tax assets to
be recognised. We involved
our tax experts to assist us
in the reconciliation review of
corporate income tax.

We also reviewed the adequacy
of disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial
statements in respect of the
recognition of deferred tax
assets.
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EY:

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant
and equipment

At 31 December 2024, the
Group's property, plant and
equipment (“PPE") amounted to
RMB1,660 million. The Group
is required to review PPE for
impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable.
Management performed an
impairment assessment on PPE
by determining the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”") that the PPE
are allocated to. As a result of
the impairment assessment, no
impairment loss was recognised
during the year ended 31
December 2024.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

We obtained an understanding
of controls over the process of
impairment assessment on PPE.

For those PPE where value-in-
use is used as the recoverable
amount, we assessed the
methodology used by the
Group, that is, recoverable
amount calculations based on
future discounted cash flows
and assessed the significant
assumptions used in the
calculations, which comprised,
amongst others, future prices
of products, expected sales
volumes, production costs and
discount rates, by comparing
them with the Group’s historical
data as well as by reviewing
supporting documents for
those assumptions made
such as sale contracts. We
also analysed the historical
accuracy of management’s
estimates. In addition, we
involved our valuation specialist
to assist us in assessing
the valuation methodologies
and the assumptions used,
including the discount rates.
We performed a sensitivity
analysis of the significant
assumptions described above
to assess the changes to the
recoverable amounts of the
CGUs resulting from changes
in these assumptions.
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EY:

Key audit matters (continued)

Key audit matter

Impairment of property, plant
and equipment

Audit management’s impairment
assessment on PPE was
complex due to the significant
estimates and judgements
involved in the projections of
future cash flows, including
the future prices of products,
expected sales volumes,
production costs and discount
rates. These estimates and
judgements may be affected
by unexpected changes in
the future market or economic
conditions.

The Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures about the
impairment assessment on PPE
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and
13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

How our audit addressed the
key audit matter

We also reviewed the adequacy of
disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements
in respect of the impairment
assessment on PPE.

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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EY:

Other information included in the Annual Report
(continued)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee

in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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EY:

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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EY:

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group
as a basis for forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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EY:

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Kwok Yin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

20 March 2025
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BEEMNGm TEERSTRE - SARMSE
AN RS T sl S L R IR o

HERBYZHBEBENRSARBEEBATEEE -

ZKEFHEI BT
b E S

—ET-HF=A=+H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SmEEER

Hftt 2 Wm =

Year ended 31 December 2024
HEZ-_NMF+-_A=-+—HILtFE

2024 2023
—EomE —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR®TR ARBETTT
REVENUE W 3= ] 2,156,955 2,065,474
Cost of sales SHE RS (1,941,794) (1,746,838)
Gross profit EF 215,161 318,636
Other income and gains EH bl A R s 5 12,615 29,289
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAZ (25,829) (44,219)
Administrative expenses THAZ (158,190) (178,301)
Other expenses HEMAxZ (5,411) (12,892)
Impairment losses on property, Y - BB REEREEE
plant and equipment 13 - (14,046)
Impairment loss on investment in R—EBE R RMRERERIE
an associate - (758)
Finance costs B 75 R AN 6 (38,332) (33,028)
Share of loss of an associate AE— & QR EE = (110)
Exchange gains/(losses), net P& Sz (BE) 55 362 (4,971)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FRRBE A 2 A 7 376 59,600
Income tax expense FRe i 10 (1,862) (14,407)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ER (BE),BER (1,486) 45,193
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit 2 mEkz=
Other comprehensive income that AR ERHEEN P EEER
may be reclassified to profit or MEM AR (HBRFRE)
loss in subsequent periods (net of tax):
Exchange differences on translation of — HREGINEFRHIE H =58
foreign operations 2,649 4,466
Other comprehensive income that will Hig R TeEmsEsBn
not be reclassified to profit or loss in E’Jﬁ{’@i@ﬂﬁlﬁn(?ﬂﬁ%ﬂlﬁ) :
subsequent periods (net of tax):
Equity investments designated at fair IEERAABETEBEEESTA
value through other comprehensive Hiv2EWz= ([RAAEEBEE
income (“FVOCI”) BEZFHTAEMEERE]) 2
PR & (8,159) 1,454

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%&
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

SmERERAEtAEEEER

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z-_NF+_A=1+—HILFE

2024 2023
—EomE —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B et AR¥T R ARBEFTT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEEKE - HIRFHE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (5,510) 5,920
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREZEWKEHEE
FOR THE YEAR (6,996) 51,113
(Loss)/Profit attributable to: THIALRE (BB), =
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZFEUN (21,098) 29,061
Non-controlling interests SRR 19,612 16,132
(1,486) 45,193
Total comprehensive income THIATEAZENES
attributable to: FEEC
Owners of the parent ERAREAR A (26,608) 34,981
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A 19,612 16,132
(6,996) 51,113
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREEREREEAEMN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO R (ER) BA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (expressed in BEARREHE (RERAREITIR)
RMB per share) 12 (0.02) 0.03
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M BARR R

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

31 December 31 December

T=HA=+t-H | t-A=+—H
2024 2023
—EB-mEF —EC=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htst ARETR ARBT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRG 13 1,659,553 1,725,269
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 14(a) 85,003 89,582
Equity investments designated at FVOCI $5EEAREBEEBEESHTA
Hih 2 E W 2 RERE 15 24,150 32,309
Financial assets at fair value through EAnBEFEEHEESHT AR
profit or loss (“FVPL") (MRARBEAEEEEZEHEA
Bml)cemEE 22 14,960 25,183
Intangible assets B EE 16 5,568 6,850
Deferred tax assets EEFETBEE 29 116,955 67,449
Other non-current assets HEiIEREEE 17 38,919 39,530
Total non-current assets EMBEELRE 1,945,108 1,986,172
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 18 273,091 285,326
Trade receivables B S5 EWGIE 19 283,864 342,512
Notes receivable R E & 20 690,380 399,501
Prepayments and other receivables TE - I8 Fe HoAth FE UK 21 47,171 69,279
Financial assets at FVPL RARBEFEEEZS)
STABRCEREE 22 906 12,879
Restricted cash XMRIE e 23 140 70,586
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEZEEY 23 266,789 287,441
Total current assets MEEERAE 1,562,341 1,467,524
CURRENT LIABILITIES FBAE
Trade and bills payables 2B SR RERENRE 24 387,038 472,614
Other payables and accruals HMENRIBRERE R 25 584,617 277,648
Contract liabilities aHEaE 10,216 11,173
Interest-bearing bank and FHERTT R EAE R
other borrowings 26 190,421 277,444
Income tax payable FEFTFRSHE 8,825 19,347
Current portion of long-term borrowings & HA{& FKEYBIEEE 26 16,148 21,650
Other current liabilities EtneaE 27 2,747 60,286
Total current liabilities MEIBERTE 1,200,012 1,140,162

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE BRI R

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

31 December

31 December

T=HA=ft-H +=-A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-MEF ZEZ=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR®T T AR®ET T
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 362,329 327,362
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERRBEE
LIABILITIES 2,307,437 2,313,534
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEME
Deferred income PEIEYA 28 6,229 8,163
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIE B E 29 6,154 7,732
Interest-bearing bank and FTRRIT REME K
other borrowings 26 1,842 18,058
Lease liabilities HEAE 14(b) - 232
Other non-current liabilities HEM3EmeaE 30 340,157 224518
Total non-current liabilities R AGRE 354,382 258,703
Net assets BEFE 1,953,055 2,054,831
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of BATEE AEGER
the parent
Share capital &N S 63,402 65,346
Treasury shares EFR G5 (10,438) (16,513)
Reserves e 32 1,711,941 1,846,641
1,764,905 1,895,474
Non-controlling interests FEPERR R R 188,150 159,357
Total equity R 1,953,055 2,054,831
Ge Yi Bai Kun
XX BHE
Director Director
EFE EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
meERBE K

Year ended 31 December 2024
HE-Z-_NE+-—A=+—BItFE

At 1 January 2024 RZZ-mE-F-H
Loss for the year FRES
Other comprehensive income for ~ EREM2ANE

the year

Total comprehensive income for ~ FAZEREESR

the year
Repurchase of own shares EEE )
Deregistration of subsidiaries HHHEAR
Dividend distributed to AETREHRE
shareholders (Aote 11) (Hit11)
Disposal of partil interest in HE-BHBAA
a subsidiary™ BoER"
Transfer to statutory reserve EEEEERA
Appropriation to safety BARREEES
production fund
Cancelation of own shares HHEaERN
At 31 December 2024 R-B-mE+-R

=47
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB1,711,941,000 and RMB1,846,641,000 in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023, respectively.

In November 2024, Tsaker Chemical (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Tsaker Hong Kong”) (a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) sold to several independent
investors a total of 2,389,432 shares in Hebei Tsaker New
Materials Technology Company Limited (“Tsaker Technology”)
(an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
representing an aggregate of approximately 3.76% equity
interests in Tsaker Technology, at an aggregate consideration
of approximately RMB39,975,000. Pursuant to the share
transfer agreement, in the event that Tsaker Technology fails to
consummate a proposed listing on the Beijing Stock Exchange
by 31 December 2027, each of the purchasers shall have a
repurchase right to require Tsaker Hong Kong to repurchase
all or part of its respective shares in Tsaker Technology
acquired at a pre-determined repurchase price. Directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the repurchase rights
agreed in the above-mentioned transactions lead to contractual
obligations to deliver cash or another financial asset to other
entities and accounted for the considerations received from
the independent investors as financial liabilities (note 30).
Non-controlling interests were recognised at the proportionate
share of Tsaker Technology’'s net assets at the transaction
date.

Year ended 31 December 2024
HEZ-_NMF+-_A=-+—HILtFE

ZERHEBREEINGEEBBERREAD
AR—F-_MEF+_A=+t—HRZF=
ZF+TZ AT BZEERHBARR
1,711,941,0007T X AR¥1,846,641,000
5T o

RZZE-_MFE+—F  ¥REEB(EB) AR
/‘*(W*%‘ D(E2ENEEZEWE
DR MZBBIALEEELE MR E%ﬁﬁ
BRERNARAR ([EERE]) (B2
E’JF*H%;‘E%%MT% 7)) & 2£2,389, 432Hxﬂx

C FHERE BB AR 43.76% 0 IR
1&1 B AREES39,975, OOO7E RIER G
ﬁf-i;a i MERREARERZSE_tF+
A=t BAEERELFR HEREZ
E o BEFBHEEREREERE f?«%‘ﬁéhz
%ﬁm@ﬁ%f EEEAEEREEANS
BORG - RAREERA LM %TS%EE’]
EEEEHEEMEMERIMIE SR EM
CREENANET  UBEHBLREEW
BHREARASBEE (ME30) o JEER
EamZN R 7 B ERREEFEL
BIFERR ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE#HR&E

177



178

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2024
 E-FE-ME+-—A=+—HIEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SN LN
Fair value
reserve of
Safety equity Non-

Share  Treasury Share  Capital production ~ Statutory investments Translation  Retained

atFVoC
BAREE

controlling Total

capital shares  premium  reserve fund  reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

LGyl

REZDA
Rr  EEEG  ROEE A7ER RREEE: ATER RERE  EiBR  REEA W ORERES  EnEE
RMBOOO  RMB00O RMBO00 RMBOOD RMBOOD RMBOOD  RMBOOO RMBOOD RMBOOO RMBODO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ABRTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTRL ARBTR ARMIR ARMTR ARMIn ARMTR ARETR ARMTR

At 1 January 2023 R=Z-=#-f-A 65,807 (4.467) 261,159 9,405 71,069 136,274 (12,189) 49,835 1460578 2,037,471 62,488 2,099,959

Profit for the year EREH - = - - - - - - 29061 20061 16132 45193

Other comprehensive income for EREMZENS - - - = = = 1454 4,466 = 5920 = 5,920
the year

Total comprehensive income for FR2ENEEE - - - = = = 1454 4466 29061 34981 16132 51113
the year

Repurchase of own shares EEBARRA - (19,663) - - - - - - - (19663) - (19663)

Deregistration of a subsidiary HE-ANEAR - - - = = (274) = = 74 = = -

Disposal of partial interest in HE-EHELTHA - - - (188%) = = = = - (18896) 18,89 =
a subsidiary™* Ba

Transfer of reserve upon a —ANBAFELEY - - - 11,000 - (11,000) - - - - - -
subsidiary's capital movement RERER

Divdend distrbuted to SEFRENRE - - (89.265) - - - - - Soa%s) (313 (%457
shareholders (Aote 11) (Hit11)

Deem disposal of partial interestin ~ HEAHE-FHKNE - - - (49,154) = = = = - (49154) 6754 18,000
a subsidiary™** RARpEE

Transfer to statutory reserve ERTERERE - - - - - 17,21 - - (17.261) = = =

Appropriation to safety BARREERS - - - - 5,167 - = - (5167 = = =
production fund

Cancellation of own shares HHBARR (@61) 7817 (7.156) - - = = = = = = =

At 31 December 2023 AZEZZE1CR

=t-H 65,346 (16513) 164,738  (47,645) 76,236"  142,261" (10,735)*  54,301* 1,467,485" 1895474 159,357 2,054,831
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

In June 2023, Tsaker Hong Kong sold to several independent
investors a total of 3,886,924 shares in Tsaker Technology,
representing an aggregate of approximately 6.12% equity
interests in Tsaker Technology, at an aggregate consideration
of approximately RMB55,000,000. Pursuant to the share
transfer agreement, in the event that Tsaker Technology fails to
consummate a proposed listing on the Beijing Stock Exchange
by 31 December 2024, each of the purchasers shall have a
repurchase right to require Tsaker Hong Kong to repurchase
all or part of its respective sale shares in Tsaker Technology at
a pre-determined repurchase price. Directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the repurchase rights agreed in the
above-mentioned transactions lead to contractual obligations
to deliver cash or another financial asset to other entities
and accounted for the considerations received from the
independent investors as financial liabilities. Non-controlling
interests were recognised at the proportionate share of Tsaker
Technology’s net assets at the transaction date.

In March and April 2023, several independent investors
agreed to inject an aggregate amount of RMB229,000,000 into
Shandong Tsaker New Materials Co., Ltd. (“Shandong TNM”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, by way
of cash contribution in return for approximately 9.84% equity
interests in aggregate in the enlarged registered capital of
Shandong TNM. Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreements
entered into for the above capital injection transactions,
each of the independent investors (except an employee
shareholding platform established by certain employees of
Shandong TNM and its subsidiary) shall have repurchase rights
to require Shandong TNM and/or Mr. GE Yi and/or Shandong
TNM’s immediate holding company to repurchase its equity
interest in Shandong TNM at a pre-determined repurchase
price at any time on or after the occurrence of any trigger
events defined in the shareholders’ agreements. Directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the repurchase
rights agreed in the above-mentioned transactions lead to
contractual obligations to deliver cash or another financial
asset to other entities and accounted for the considerations
received from the independent investors as financial liabilities.
Non-controlling interests were recognised at the proportionate
share of Shandong TNM Group’s net assets at the transaction
date.

ok kK

Year ended 31 December 2024
HEZ-_NMF+-_A=-+—HILtFE

RZZTE-_=FX A ¥EEBRAZEBURE
EFHERXRERHEA 3,886,924 88815 - HER
EERMBEAHN6.12%mE  BREEDHA
R#55,000,0007T ° IRERMDEZRZE - WF
BREAREN_ZE-_MF+=_A=+—HAE
T RBAR G TR Z LT  SEHBHES
CEEE YRR RBELEEDNFEERY
BERENEHEBOLEERD - RARESER
AERZXSHENLEEES LA REMERS
B EMEHEENSNEMT - WiBK
BUEAEWRDORBARAESRAEE - JFE
RiEZENRZ AREREYEREEEFEL
BIFER ©

RZZEZ=F=AKMNA ETHEIKREER
BEUBRSHEAXAARRNBEEZENBEA
AILREEREFMBAERAA ([WWRERHM
B FEAEHXARK229,000,0007T © LAHEL
LR R MEHSERFMEAREET49.84%
RORRHE - RIS EMUFER ST LR ER
R BEUREE (LREEFMRRERE R
AETEIRIMEIRRFEARIN KEEE
BENERRRBRMACHEMEBESGEZ
B BERERLEREETIME R /8K
EER /S FUREEHVRAOEZLZRA AR
TEE BB EOEENILEERIME AR -
ARFEERALAR ZHENEEEEEH
RAEMEERXNREKEMEMEENE L
B UHRBUREERDROREARAS
BEE  FERESIERR S BHEEILEY
MR R EEEFELOIER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2024

HE_Z_MF+_A=+—HILFE
2024 2023
“E-mF ZT=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR TR ARBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHMERSRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BR A% Al g A 376 59,600
Adjustments for: FRFSIBEELFE
Finance costs B F K AR 6 38,332 33,028
Exchange losses/(gains), net &S EE(URES) FHE 437 (502)
Interest income FE U A 5 (1,997) (2,911)
Dividend income from equity RARBEFEBHEEEH A
investments at FVOCI and FVPL Hiv2E Wz RIRAAEE
TERHEHH AERZ
(IR E 2 iR B U 5 (118) (30)
Loss on disposal of items of property, LEWE - BEKEREEEN
plant and equipment E5ia 7 2,023 5,060
Fair value losses of financial assets BEAREBEFEAEZHFTA
at FVPL BmZeBMEBEZRAR
BEEE 5 2,397 8,877
Depreciation of property, ME - BE RBETE
plant and equipment 13 163,863 158,452
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 14(a) 4,579 3,885
Amortisation of intangible assets EE E 16 1,282 1,337
Amortisation of deferred income R AT U N 5H (1,934) (2,286)
Share of loss of an associate o5 — B A RBE - 110
Impairment loss of an associate —fEE N e R EEE - 758
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 e YR IRV E 19 1,395 736
(Reversal)/provision of impairment of H b IR RE (B ), B
other receivables 7 (549) 6,193
Impairment of property, ME - WE REERE
plant and equipment 13 - 14,046
Write-down of inventories to FEMBZE]ZIRHE
net realisable value 7 13,782 19,792
223,868 301,145
Increase in inventories FEE N (1,547) (32,359)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables 2 5 EUKER LD (3L 0) 57,257 (129,509)
Increase in notes receivable FEUR Z= 3% 0 (306,238) (75,909)
Decrease in prepayments and FEAT FRIE Ko H Ath U SR IE R
other receivables 35,719 10,476
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables B S EMFIE CRA) /1 (45,588) 139,454
Increase/(Decrease) in other Hub (I R FEET B A
payables and accruals #mnCrd) 272,939 (98,483)
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilities & #BE Gl ),/ #in (957) 6,715
Decrease/(Increase) in restricted cash SRIME R/ (8M) 14,465 (7,524)
Cash generated from operations KEEANR S 249,918 114,006

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED Z&E#5REHIER AR



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n'l-\éiﬁnﬁiﬁi%%

Year ended 31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—HBItFE

2024 2023
—E-NEF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBT T
Interest received B U FI B 1,997 2911
Interest paid ERFLE (10,737) (18,467)
Income tax paid BERFTSE (67,263) (52,271)
Net cash flows from operating activities  &Z/ZHABIR T REFHE 173,915 46,179
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHHMEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from equity BYIRARBEFTEBHESEHTA
investments at FVOCI and FVPL HEMeEl=mRIEAREE
TR REEBH ABER 2 IRE
w"E BB 118 30
Proceeds from disposal of HERAAEEFEEHEHTA
financial assets at FVPL BRz emEEMSA 45,393 20,529
Purchases of items of property, BEWX  BWFEMEKIEEES
plant and equipment (109,656) (72,436)
Purchases of intangible assets BEELEE = (616)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE - BEKKXEEE G
property, plant and equipment B 2,156 238
Purchase of financial assets at FVPL BEERANEBEGSEEEEHH
AN eREE (25,594) (25,730)
Other cash flows from/(used in) REEBFTE(BTH) Hib
investing activities RERE 55,981 (55,981)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
llv-\éiﬁ§ﬁ§2%

Year ended 31 December 2024

BE-Z-_MF+-A=+—HILFE
2024 2023
—E-NE ZT=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M et ARETR ARBETTT
Net cash flows used in investing activities ®&/EFBFIAR S REFHE (31,602) (133,966)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank loans and RITE R R H A & FKFA1FKRIE
other borrowings 33 209,100 355,759
Repurchase of own shares EACIISREgiigy) 31 (20,019) (19,663)
Repayment of bank loans and BERITERREMER
other borrowings &8 (316,308) (338,025)
Principal portion of lease liabilities HEBEZASH S 33 (515) (548)
Dividend paid BERRE (74,761) (94,578)
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary H& —fEHK B 2R R DS 39,975 55,000
Deemed disposal of partial interest in WRALE BB AR =
a subsidiary - 229,000
Other cash flows used in MEEHAAEMRERE
financing activities - (1,288)
Net cash flows (used in)/from BEES (FTA),/ FERE
financing activities mE R (162,528) 185,657
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN REeRBRLEEY ORD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AR (20,215) 97,870
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHeRESEED
beginning of year 23 287,441 189,069
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHHFTE
changes, net (437) 502
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESZEEY
AT END OF YEAR 23 266,789 287,441

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%&
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The registered address of the
Company is P.O. Box 472, 2nd Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were involved in the
following principal activities:

o manufacture and sale of battery materials

o manufacture and sale of dye and agricultural
chemical intermediates

o manufacture and sale of pigment intermediates and
new materials

In the opinion of the Directors, the controller of the
Company is Mr. GE Yi.

B 5 ¥ R B

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

AR RAEEER
RRAAR/—FZRASHSTMKINBRRD
7l o AR MHIEEP.O. Box 472, 2nd
Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South Church
Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1106, Cayman lIslands °
RABR—RKEREEZERRF - RER » AR
AINME AR EEREUTES

. MR EENEE

. AR R RFRCE M R L E M
S
. ERRI PR B8 BT M R R EE AN SH 5

EEZERA - ARAEHIERK VKL
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024

—EomE+—A=+—H

RARFEEER (&)

TRMBARESY

ARBEZEZMBERROFERIINT

follows:
Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
and principal place  registered share interest attributable
Name of operations capital to the Company Principal activities
Bl A YA
WERABURIE  BEROLER/
£ gen EfRA KAREERERDL TERH
%
Direct Indirect
E# &
Tsaker Chemical (Hongkong) Co., Limited ~ Hong Kong HKD34,174,000 100 - Investment holding
(Tsaker Hongkong) 2 September 2010
¥R 2 (BE)BRAR (VEEE) & 34,174,000 100 - RESR
“2-ZENACH
Tsaker Huayu Chemical Co., Limited Hebei, PRC RMB105,000,000 - 100  Production and sale of chemicals
(Tsaker Huayu) 7 May 2013
MEZRIVEERDA (WEER)" B AR - 100 {LEREENHEE
“2-=FnA+H 105,000,0007
Hebei Tsaker New Material Technology Hebei, PRC RMB63,571,427 - 68  Production and sale of chemicals
Co., Limited (Tsaker Technology) 23 September 2005 and new materials
ALY EFM RN EROBRAR HET ARIE63,571,427TC - 68 (BmRAHHEENHE
(REMR)~ ZETRENA
—t+=H
Shandong Tsaker New Material Co., Limited ~ Shandong, PRC RMB277,261,903 - 90  Production and sale of
(Shandong TNM) 20 May 2014 battery materials
WRFEHMHERDR (LRFEHTR) > RELE N - 90 ETHHHEENHEE
ZZ-MERAZTA 277,261,903
Tsaker Technology Development (Beijing) ~ Beijing, PRC RMB60,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
Co., Limited (Tsaker Technology 17 October 2013
Development)
VERmE (LR) BRAR RELR ARH60,000,0007C - 100 {LEREE
(RERIHE) E-=f1+AT+A
TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥&E 2RI AR A 7



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/

establishment Issued ordinary/

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

RARFEEER (&)

FERBARESR (&)
ARBEEZMBRRNFERIIMOT : (&)

Percentage of equity

and principal place  registered share interest attributable
Name of operations capital to the Company Principal activities
AU A3 YA
WERAMURIE  BEROZER/
£ B HEfRA KAREERERDL TERH
%
Direct Indirect
Ei 54
Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals Shandong, PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of chemicals
Co., Limited (Tsaker Dongao) 15 March 2004
LRFERREERAR (FERR) ™ HEILR ARE - 100 (LEREEMEE
ZZTME=ATRE 200,000,000
Tsaker Chemical (Singapore) Private Singapore USD7,500 - 100  Sale of chemicals
Co., Limited (Tsaker Singapore) 8 July 2016
HELZ M) DABRRE (RENME) MK 7,500% 7 - 100 {cBmiEeE
ZE-~5tANR
Tsaker Huayu Technology (Tianjin) Tianjin, PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100 Sale of chemicals
Co., Limited (Tsaker Huayu Tianjin) 5 February 2018
HEEE (R2) HEERAR HERE AR - 100 {LBmiEE
(REEERE)™ “Z-\5ZR1H 20,000,00070
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION e
(CONTINUED)

RARFEEER (&)

FERBARESR (&)
ARBEEZMBRRNFERIIMOT : (&)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

Place and date
of incorporation/
registration/
establishment

Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity

186

and principal place  registered share interest attributable
Name of operations capital to the Company Principal activities
AU A YA
WERABURTE  ERAZER/
£ Bend HEfRA KAREERERDL TEXH
%
Direct Indirect
Ei S
Chuangying Liancheng (Cangzhou) Hebei, PRC RMB13,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Enterprise Management Co., Limited 23 August 2016
(Chuangying Liancheng)
Bl RS OBM) R EEREARRA RE L ARE - 100 RERR
(BIZEE) “E-RENAR 13,000,000
~t=H
Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy Hebei, PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Production and sale of
Co., Limited (Cangzhou Tsaker 15 April 2022 battery materials
Lithium Energy)
ENEEERARAT (ANF Z128) E L N - 100 ERMHEENHE
ZZZFEATAA 50,000,0007T
Beijing Chuangying Xinli Enterprise Beijing, PRC RMB51,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Management Consulting Partnership 17 October 2022
(Limited Partnership) (Chuangying Xinli)
TREIBEUARERR AR AR REER ARE - 100 RERR
(BRA%) (RIBEL) ™ ZZZZEFATER 510000007
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2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: (continued)

* Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
PRC law

> Registered as limited liability companies under PRC law

e Registered as limited partnerships under PRC law

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for certain financial assets and
notes receivable which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

R AR A H
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the exchange
fluctuation reserve; and recognise the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments”)
Supplier Finance
Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 7
and HKFRS 7
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease
liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction
to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right
of use it retains. Since the Group has no sale and
leaseback transactions with variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate occurring
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

(b) The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current,
including what is meant by a right to defer
settlement and that a right to defer must exist at
the end of the reporting period. Classification of
a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be
settled in its own equity instruments, and that only
if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would
the terms of a liability not impact its classification.
The 2022 Amendments further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-
current. Additional disclosures are required for
non-current liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions
of its liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and
concluded that the classification of its liabilities as
current or non-current remained unchanged upon
initial application of the amendments. Accordingly,
the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7
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2.2

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(c) Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk. As a result of the
implementation of the amendments, the Group has
provided additional disclosures about its supplier
finance arrangements in Note 24 and Note 39 to the
financial statements.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements. The Group intends to apply
these new and revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they
become effective.

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures®
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification

and HKFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1,
to HKFRS Accounting HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10
Standards - Volume 11 and HKAS 72
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2026

2 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2027

= No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have been brought
forward from HKAS 1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18
introduces new requirements for presentation within the
statement of profit or loss, including specified totals and
subtotals. Entities are required to classify all income and
expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one
of the five categories: operating, investing, financing,
income taxes and discontinued operations and to present
two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures
about management-defined performance measures in
a single note and introduces enhanced requirements
on the grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and
the location of information in both the primary financial
statements and the notes. Some requirements previously
included in HKAS 1 are moved to HKAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,
which is renamed as HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of
Financial Statements. As a consequence of the issuance
of HKFRS 18, limited, but widely applicable, amendments
are made to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS
33 Earnings per Share and HKAS 34 Interim Financial
Reporting. In addition, there are minor consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 18 and the
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027
with earlier application permitted. Retrospective application
is required. The Group is currently analysing the new
requirements and assessing the impact of HKFRS 18 on
the presentation and disclosure of the Group's financial
statements.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED Z&E#5REHIER AR
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply reduced
disclosure requirements while still applying the recognition,
measurement and presentation requirements in other
HKFRSs. To be eligible, at the end of the reporting period,
an entity must be a subsidiary as defined in HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements, cannot have
public accountability and must have a parent (ultimate
or intermediate) that prepares consolidated financial
statements available for public use which comply with
HKFRSs. Earlier application is permitted. As the Company
is a listed company, it is not eligible to elect to apply
HKFRS 19.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the date on
which a financial asset or financial liability is derecognised
and introduce an accounting policy option to derecognise
a financial liability that is settled through an electronic
payment system before the settlement date if specified
criteria are met. The amendments clarify how to assess the
contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets
with environmental, social and governance and other
similar contingent features. Moreover, the amendments
clarify the requirements for classifying financial assets with
non-recourse features and contractually linked instruments.
The amendments also include additional disclosures
for investments in equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income and financial
instruments with contingent features. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively with an adjustment to
opening retained profits (or other component of equity) at
the initial application date. Prior periods are not required
to be restated and can only be restated without the use of
hindsight. Earlier application of either all the amendments
at the same time or only the amendments related to
the classification of financial assets is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Notes to Financial Statements

2.3

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

B #5181 oK A M B B I 8 2
Bl (4)

EBUBREENEI90FAHFEEREE
BERAHECHRBEERT  RSDERE
MEBHEREENZHER  FER2IH
T o ARFEER RREHER EBELSE
BB MERBE 10045 S FHH LR
TZHMBAR  BXEALERMT  UKREHE
B ZXREEAUEREERREATHE
MERABRBER AR (HREIFHEA
7)) RFFIRRRER c ARFALTAF
MG ERREBERAT ST HRERELS
19553 o

BEVBHRESERNEISRRBBUBREE
AE7TR 2B EFEREENSRAEBR
RICTERAH - W A —JHETHREEE
BEZBEFERENERT » RIEERRE
ERABZABREFXNEGEENEREA
B ZEEIEFNANEAARE &
REBUAREMBUSATENEREERN
BHREMEE - o ZSEFTEBFHA
EEEREFUENESREERANEBATA
ETOENRE - ZFEFTEERHEER
AREBEEFEAEZEH AR MR EKEN
BRERTARABIAFUENEBTAZKE
EERSMNEEE - REERTABYER  ANE
RERBHBREBEN (REHENE A
BRER ) ETHRE - BEHREBEEY - &
SIEEMANBANREKRZBAOEMN - LT
RNEREAMABZSEIRERREAS R
BEDBHRBNER - ZFEFEATEY
AEBENMERREKEMNERTE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE#HR&E

193



194

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’'s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards
— Volume 11 set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7 (and the accompanying Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The
amendments have updated certain wording in
paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs IG1,
IG14 and 1G20B of the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or
achieving consistency with other paragraphs
in the standard and/or with the concepts and
terminology used in other standards. In addition,
the amendments clarify that the Guidance on
implementing HKFRS 7 does not necessarily
illustrate all the requirements in the referenced
paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it create
additional requirements. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments
clarify that when a lessee has determined that a
lease liability has been extinguished in accordance
with HKFRS 9, the lessee is required to apply
paragraph 3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise any
resulting gain or loss in profit or loss. In addition,
the amendments have updated certain wording
in paragraph 5.1.3 of HKFRS 9 and Appendix A
of HKFRS 9 to remove potential confusion. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(CONTINUED)

o HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described
in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just one example
of various relationships that might exist between the
investor and other parties acting as de facto agents
of the investor, which removes the inconsistency
with the requirement in paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

o HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments
replace the term “cost method” with “at cost” in
paragraph 37 of HKAS 7 following the prior deletion
of the definition of “cost method”. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other case,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate
or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its certain financial assets and notes
receivable at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for non-financial asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’'s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

()
(ii)
(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Machinery and equipment 9% to 19%
Office equipment 18% to 32%
Motor vehicles 23% to 24%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

R AR A H

Notes to Financial Statements

24

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

EXREHBE(E)

M- BERRBRITE

BRAERTREI - WEF - BB EREBTIIRKA
R ITE REFRERE R - Y% - B
FERZREEABNKA  BREEBEERERZ

BEZEZENN NI ERE R R ZEM
BRBIERA -

ME - BEMRBHEBRERMEEN L
(W&W&%%%%)-&%EE%@EE
milfk - R ERERENNERT - ARE
RN HBRZEENREETETE
A-FWEEEIAR - WYX BEIERES
BRI FIRER - MAKESHZEFS
DHERABEETEN ERFRNEREE
I FIAREIE -

BRME  BEER
BEKAEAGE AERFHMEEE

REEE 2T ERERE
H IR

BE -REENMERAZEBZFENT :

gF 5%
We2s M AR 9% %= 19%
F YN 18% Z£32%
bt 23% %= 24%

W—HYE  BERRBEHDZAIERF

B AR - B A BB KA RIZA R
EWAR - M0 SIEBBIFTE - RRE

B AEAFHRTETZR&RD BEMEK
FEAEEATUEZR  EEEBERTINAS
# o



2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.

Technological know-how

Purchased technological know-how is stated at cost less
any impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 10 years.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 13 to 50 years
Office premises and apartments

for employees 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities
is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments
(e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of
low-value assets to leases of office equipment and
laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange
revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed
in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised
in other comprehensive income is recycled to the statement
of profit or loss.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash

flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at FVPL.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

For those

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 1 -

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at FVPL, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
other current and non-current liabilities.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group classifies financial liabilities that arise from
a supplier finance arrangement within trade and bills
payables in the statement of financial position if they have
a similar nature and function to trade payables. This is
the case if the supplier finance arrangement is part of the
working capital used in the Group’s normal operating cycle,
the level of security provided is similar to trade payables
and the terms of the liabilities that are part of the supply
chain finance arrangement are not substantially different
from the terms of trade payables that are not part of the
arrangement. Cash flows related to liabilities arising from
supplier finance arrangements that are classified in trade
and bills payables in the statement of financial position are
included in operating activities in the statement of cash
flows.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in profit or loss.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term
cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Provisions (continued)

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain environmental technology equipment for general
repairs of defects occurring during the warranty period.
Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted
by the Group are initially recognised based on past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted
to their present values as appropriate. The warranty-related
cost is revised annually.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Notes to Financial Statements

24

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

EXREHBE(E)

B (E)

AEEHEES TRERMRERREHRA
HIR RGN —REBIRMRE - ARERH
R F IR 2L IR R O BB IR M 2 SR B K
ZBERRVLER  LHBAEZEENR
18 ° RIEBBERAREF T IMERT o

FRrig®t

PRS B B HEBHIR A RRET IR - RN E
smAINERZIAB Z TSN B e A M
B AREMEEEERER NS

27
e

B IREE R B EATER AR BE AR
INERBRELSR  ERHERSHR
ERMREE FEBRMIHE (RBX) - X
REBAREREXBAERKEf 228
REBIGE -

ELXERBEDERAESL IR REHREE
RAEZRERERMBERE N 5 2 REE
ZEZAAERIEEZREELEYE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE#HR&E

217



218

2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #f&

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

(a) Sale of industrial products, materials and scrap

Revenue from the sale of industrial products,
materials and scrap is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the
generally on delivery of the industrial
products, materials and scrap.

customer,

R AR A H
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established,
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

it is

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Pension scheme

Employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are members of the state-sponsored pension scheme
operated by the Mainland China government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the required
contributions. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used for
the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a capitalisation
rate has been applied to the expenditure on the individual
assets.

Events after the reporting period

If the Group receives information after the reporting period,
but prior to the date of authorisation for issue, about
conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period,
it will assess whether the information affects the amounts
that it recognises in its financial statements. The Group will
adjust the amounts recognised in its financial statements
to reflect any adjusting events after the reporting period
and update the disclosures that relate to those conditions
in light of the new information. For non-adjusting events
after the reporting period, the Group will not change the
amounts recognised in its financial statements, but will
disclose the nature of the non-adjusting events and an
estimate of their financial effects, or a statement that such
an estimate cannot be made, if applicable.
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the Note
11 to the financial statements. Interim dividends are
simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’'s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. The
functional currency of the Company is US dollars. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

translation
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2.4

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines
the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain entities within the
Group are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. Unless exchange
rates fluctuated significantly during the year, in which case,
the exchange rate prevailing on the dates of transactions
are used.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the translation
reserve, except to the extent that the differences are
attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart
from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits, together with future tax planning
strategies.

The Group has accumulated tax losses of RMB451,104,000
as at 31 December 2024 and has recognised deferred tax
assets of RMB100,460,000 against the tax losses to the extent
that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. The tax losses of approximately
RMB49,264,000 related to subsidiaries that have a history
of losses, have not expired, and may not be used to offset
taxable income elsewhere in the Group. The subsidiaries
have neither any taxable temporary difference nor any tax
planning opportunities available that could partly support the
recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On this
basis, the Group has determined that it cannot recognise
deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

If the Group had been able to recognise all unrecognised
deferred tax assets, the profit and equity would have
increased by approximately RMB11,201,000. Further
details on deferred taxes are disclosed in Note 29 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on ageing
for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic products) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables is disclosed in Note 19 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Property, plant and equipment — recoverable amount

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. If any such indication exists,
an estimate of the recoverable amount is performed and
an impairment loss is recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating group
of assets is measured at the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset.

Value in use is generally determined as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows of those expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset in its present form
and its eventual disposal. Present values are determined
using a risk-adjusted pre-tax discount rate appropriate to
the risks inherent in the asset. Future cash flow estimates
are based on expected production and sales volumes,
selling prices (considering current and historical prices,
price trends and related factors) and operating costs. This
policy requires management to make these estimates and
assumptions which are subject to risk and uncertainty;
hence there is a possibility that changes in circumstances
will alter these projections, which may impact on the
recoverable amount of the assets. In such circumstances,
part of or the entire carrying value of the assets may be
impaired and the impairment would be charged against
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Property, plant and equipment — estimated useful lives
and residual values

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and residual values (if applicable) and
consequently related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the depreciation/
amortisation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, and it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful
lives and actual residual values may differ from estimated
residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual values and, therefore, in
depreciation/amortisation expense in future periods.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and has three
(2023: three) reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the battery materials segment engages in the
manufacture and sale of battery materials;

(b) the dye and agricultural chemical intermediates
segment produces dye intermediate products for
use in the production of dye related products and
products for use in the production of agricultural
chemicals; and

(c) the pigment intermediates and new materials
segment produces pigment intermediate products
for the use in the production of pigments and
monomer for production of new material products.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated mainly based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, finance costs and
other unallocated expenses of the Company and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

The measurement of segment assets and liabilities is the
same as that of the total assets and total liabilities for the
consolidated statement of financial position, excluding
unallocated corporate assets and liabilities, as these assets
and liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

REFBER
BRERZ AN ARBRAESSS BE
BEM - BEAT=E(ZF==% : =f@)
A2REE S
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mEAREELCEREENER
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to Financial Statements

ges

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

BEM(E)

BE-_Z_NF+-_A=1+—HILFE

Segment revenue (Note 5): 2B (Hi25)

Revenues from external customers REINDE P Bz 753,960 948,568 454,427 2,156,955

Intersegment sales NEEEE - 10,291 - 10,291

Total segment revenue HEpEl 753,960 958,859 454,427 2,167,246

Reconciliation i

Elimination of intersegment sales 2 EFR IS i (10,291)
Revenue gz 2,156,955

Segment results SWEE (189,806) 91,003 136,732 37,929

Including: g

Interest income FIEHA 1,035 41,992 464 43,491

Finance costs A A (50,512) (7,957) (1,334) (59,803)
Reconciliation #E

Interest income FIEWA 106

Finance costs BFS PN (4,875)
Elimination of intersegment results DE R R (12,774)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses CEREMRIRER (20,010)
Profit before tax BB AR F 376

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #seREHZBR A A



Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REFWER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-E-_NWE+=-A=+—HLEE

Segment assets ITHEE 1,846,888 1,542,634 540,770 3,930,292
Reconciliation Ea/d
Elimination of intersegment receivables 2 EPfE PR 8 (603,564)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMRDIBREE 195,134
Elimination of inventories and property, plant ~ RAZBKFEMUEEER

and equipment due to unrealised gains ER TG (14,413)
Total assets BERE 3,507,449
Segment liabilities PHEE 1,570,702 382,257 100,766 2,053,725
Reconciliation E/:3
Elimination of intersegment payables A EREER S (603,564)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities CEREMRPEERE 104,233
Total liabilities BRREE 1,554,394
Other segment information 2t pBER
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss R BZ AR K EEE 6,163 8,212 253 14,628
Depreciation and amortisation® FEREH 84,935 59,783 19,076 163,794
Capital expenditure** BART 48,579 25,066 24,537 98,182
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4.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. DEMER (7)
(CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=F+=-A=+—HLFE
Dye and Pigment
agricultural  intermediates
Battery chemical and new Total
materials  intermediates materials ~ segments
IREE BHPEEBR
B (C2RREE MR e
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AR®FT
Segment revenue (Note 5): 2B (HZ5)
Revenues from external customers REIMEE P M E 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Intersegment sales DERHEE = 10,730 = 10,730
Total segment revenue ok e 498,646 1,200,598 376,960 2,076,204
Reconciliation o/
Elimination of intersegment sales AEEHEEHH (10,730)
Revenue Yo 2,065,474
Segment results DEWEE (180,149) 175,482 101,831 97,164
Including: B
Interest income FIEWA 1,766 533 2,629 4,928
Finance costs TR (18,542) (14,151) (1,663) (34,356)
Reconciliation 373
Interest income*** F B IA (2,017)
Finance costs*** SR AR 1,328
Elimination of intersegment results "*EF?%Zaéiﬁﬁ (2,794)
Corporate and other unallocated expenses EEREMKD (34,081)
Profit before tax BRI R 59,600
TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥&$i85R R AR A T



Notes to Financial Statements

— e

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
WE+=—A=+—8H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHTER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Year ended 31 December 2023 BE-Z-=F+=-A=+—HLFE
Dye and Pigment
agricultural  intermediates
Battery chemical and new Total
materials  intermediates materials ~ segments
IHREE  BEHARER
MR ERTEE R HEfeE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Segment assets PBEE 1,652,186 1,604,179 459,843 3,716,208
Reconciliation #E
Elimination of intersegment receivables 7 ERFE FEGRIE  8H (492,485)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PEREMADREE 231,613
Elimination of inventories due to unrealised gains EAREBR WML EFE (1,640)
Total assets BESE 3,453,696
Segment liabilities ABEE 1,235,407 467,583 111,972 1,814,962
Reconciliation ik
Elimination of intersegment payables D EER FELE (492,485)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities rEREMADEEE 76,388
Total liabilities BERE 1,398,865
Other segment information Hitn HER
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss PR ABERNRESE 31,508 8,040 1,219 40,767
Depreciation and amortisation* nEREE 78,246 59,009 19,076 156,331
Capital expenditure** BRI 64,409 57,886 46,494 168,789

*%

Partial depreciation and amortisation of the Group are
included in corporate and other unallocated expense.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets and right-of-use
assets.

Interest income and finance costs under reconciliation
include interest income and finance costs from
corporate and unallocated parts with segments.

**

AEENHOFERBHCREED
EREMRDEERA -

EXRXBREAEME  BERR
- BEEEAREREERE -

HRRIE T R S WA R B A B 1
DEERRARDECE D B FBWA K

BATER R o
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

4. ReEIVEH (&)

WEER
(a) KENSBEF WKz

2024 2023

—E-MEF —T==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®ET T
Mainland China elEy N 1,827,395 1,697,131
India HE 142,880 125,031
Germany =R 30,219 39,624
Indonesia EERmE 29,847 53,294
United States E&H 26,008 20,231
Japan H 7 24,323 16,664
Switzerland Imt 22,499 962
Taiwan, China R s & 16,865 26,500
Spain isglisy 15,840 28,873
Brazil yic] 10,204 40,426
Pakistan EEAMA 3,953 3,077
Morocco BE )% 5T 2,478 1,664
Tarkiye +EH 2,122 10,269
Other countries/regions W 2,322 1,728
Total revenue @ 2,156,955 2,065,474

The revenue information above is based on the

locations of the customers.

The Group’s non-current assets are substantially

located in Mainland China.

Information about major customers

In 2024,

single customer.

In 2023,

revenue of approximately RMB300,776,000 was
derived from sales from the battery materials segment to a

revenue of approximately RMB228,274,000 was
derived from sales from the dye and agricultural chemical

intermediates segment to a single customer.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%&

#é

R AR A H
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RZZE-_NF - HHARM300,776,0007TH
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wi - HA R UES
Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December REEHEE—T -_NFER-_T-_=F+=A
2024 and 2023 was all revenue from contracts with = t—RALEFEMNREHARBER SN
customers. Z AR
Revenue from contracts with customers REEEFITIZEHHRE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) HBotrUmER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-_Z-_MF+=-A=+—HLHF

E

Segments pan:]

Types of goods or services ENSRBER

Sale of goods HEEY 753,960 948,568 454,427 2,156,955
Total A& 753,960 948,568 454,427 2,156,955
Geographical markets HETS

Mainland China SlEipN 753,845 810,554 262,996 1,827,395
India e - 28,519 114,361 142,880
Germany = - 29,499 720 30,219
Indonesia HE R - 29,847 - 29,847
United States ESE - 800 25,208 26,008
Japan HA - - 24,323 24,323
Switzerland It - - 22,499 22,499
Taiwan, China HEAE 115 16,736 14 16,865
Spain i - 15,840 - 15,840
Brazil =il - 10,204 - 10,204
Pakistan EEENR - 3,953 - 3,953
Morocco & & EF - - 2,478 2,478
Tarkiye THE - 2,122 - 2,122
Other countries/regions HEBER /& - 494 1,828 2,322
Total Bt 753,960 948,568 454,427 2,156,955
Timing of revenue recognition W R A

Goods transferred at a point in time  RE AR 2SR 2 &Y 753,960 948,568 454,427 2,156,955
Total G 753,960 948,568 454,427 2,156,955
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

5. W& - Hfttl AR (&)

REEEFT M 2N (F)
(a) KRFREER (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023

BE-B-_=F+-A=t—-HL#HF

E
Dye and Pigment
agricultural  intermediates
Battery chemical and new
materials  intermediates materials Total
IRREE  BERTRHEER
BE  (EERPREE HrvrEb A&t
Segments VaR=i) RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Types of goods or services ENSREER
Sale of goods HEEW 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Total &5t 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Geographical markets HETHH
Mainland China R BIARE 498,646 974,173 224,312 1,697,131
India ENE = 12,493 112,538 125,031
Indonesia HNERAT - 53,294 = 53,294
Brazil B = 40,426 = 40,426
Germany = - 39,624 - 39,624
Spain AT - 28,873 - 28,873
Taiwan, China RE & - 26,494 6 26,500
United States EE - = 20,231 20,231
Japan =N - - 16,664 16,664
Turkiye THHE = 10,269 = 10,269
Pakistan EETA - 3,033 44 3,077
Morocco BE&EF - - 1,664 1,664
Switzerland Int = = 962 962
Other countries/regions HiBR /i = 1,189 539 1,728
Total &t 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Timing of revenue recognition I 5 e R e
Goods transferred at a point in time AR (ARZEZZ EY 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474
Total Bt 498,646 1,189,868 376,960 2,065,474

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7



REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning
of the reporting period:

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

5. W& - Hfttl AR (&)

REEEFT M 2N (F)
(a) KRFREER (E)

TRBIIS RS HEERH RS
B ERRERBEHNADAR -

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Revenue recognised that was included s ARG H A

in contract liabilities at the beginning BERWE
of the reporting period:

Sale of goods HEEY

HEED

10,862 4,048

Total A&t

10,862 4,048

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of goods, including chemical intermediates,
battery materials

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the industrial products and payment is
generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery,
except for new customers and small-sized
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.

(b) EHEF

FHEAEEBEHNETONERE RN
™

HEEY (BIELERTFRE - T
H#E)
BHETIRRNIEXERERT X
—RMRZXFEI0OE0HEH - B
FEERNAEEBEARANMNR
g|\ °
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& HlARWKE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Other income and gains At AR ez
2024 2023
“ENEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
Bank interest income RITFEUHA 1,997 2,911
Dividend income from equity BRARBEFEBESEFT AELM
investments at FVOCI and ZHKBRE 2 RERERZAAE
financial assets at FVPL B EBEZHFTABR 2SR
BEZREMA 118 30
Fair value losses and disposal NABEEIENLREE WS R EE
gains and losses, net: R
Financial assets at FVPL WARBEFELEEZEHTA
B eREE (2,397) (8,877)
Government grants* R 7 Bh * 9,453 32,772
Others =i 3,444 2,453
Total A& 12,615 29,289
* For the year ended 31 December 2024, government @ HE-_ZT-_WNF&E+_A=+—HItF

grants amounting to approximately RMB9,453,000
(2023: approximately RMB32,772,000) were recognised
as income for the year necessary to compensate the
costs and facilitate the Group’s development. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to

the grants.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 6. Bt % B 2R
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: KA DITIT
2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Interest on bank loans and HRIT B TR H A 8 FRUA S B At
other borrowings and other FRBEEZFE
non-current liability 34,615 28,837
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 20 33
Other finance costs HAth B 75 A AR 3,697 4,158
Total CEl 38,332 33,028
No interest expense was capitalised for the years ended 31 HEZZ-_HMER-T-_=F+=-A=+—
December 2024 and 2023. HIEFE  #MEEREAEMX
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is

BR B Al 72 A

AEBEK B FE LSRR AR N & H

arrived at after charging/(crediting): B GIA) U TEESE -
2024 2023
—EoNE ZTZ=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AR®T ARETTT
Cost of inventories sold BEFERKA 1,941,794 1,746,838
Depreciation of property, mE  BELRSENE
plant and equipment 13 163,863 153,452
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14(a) 4,579 3,885
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EESH 16 1,282 1,337
Research and development costs A 22,650 39,460
Lease payments not included in T AEEEENED
the measurement of lease liabilities HERMR 14(c) 1,335 916
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BAM 3 B 2,250 2,250
Employee benefit expense EERAMAZ (TREESR
(excluding directors’ and FETHRASRHH) -
chief executive’s remuneration):
Wages, salaries and welfare IE - #FHekEd 171,867 160,393
Pension and other social insurances** RIS AR 50,494 46,959
Total a5 222,361 207,352
Exchange (gains)/losses, net B (W), BiEFE (362) 4,971
Dividend income from equity investments BEARBEFEEEZEHA
at FVOCI and financial assets at FVPL Hih 2 E a2 RERE R
BAREEEBHEE
ABERZEMEEY
& A 5 (118) (30)
Impairment losses of an investment in RS A RNRERE
an associate B8 - 758
Impairment losses on property, M - BERSZEREES
plant and equipment 13 - 14,046

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%&
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7.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is
arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

7. BRBUADGER (&)

A S E2R B F A R H ROBR B AT )t A AR 4
B GEA) WTEBESHE « (8)

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AR®T ARETTT
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME - BERE
plant and equipment* HEMEE 2,023 5,060
Impairment of trade receivables* B S ENGRIERE” 19 1,395 736
(Reversal)/provision of impairment of Ho At JE WK IE R B
other receivables* (BE),/ g (549) 6,193
Write-down of inventories to net realisable FEMRZERFE™
value*** 13,782 19,792
Fair value losses and disposal gains and BARBEFEEEEHHA
losses on financial assets at FVPL BRzemEEAAEE
18518 I B & W I 18 5 2,397 8,877
Share of loss of an associate DG —fE A REE - 110
Bank interest income RITHEHA 5 (1,997) (2,911)

*%

These losses and expenses were recorded as other
expenses to the consolidated financial statements.

There were no forfeited contributions that may be used
by the Group as the employer to reduce the existing
level of contributions. No forfeited contributions were
also available at 31 December 2024 and 2023 for the
Group to reduce contribution payables in future years,
if applicable.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
included in “Cost of inventories sold” above and “Cost
of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss and other comprehensive income.

*%

ZEBEREAXEFAGE BRI
HAFIX -

MEAIEAKEEREEIRARERS
HEBOKFHPERHER - RZF_MEFER
—E-=F+ZA=+—H AEET
] P EHRCR 2R F E R 22 1R
R (WEA) -

FEMRERNZERFESTALALIE
EFENRA L AREED KA
EEBSEKREERAKNIAT -
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. ESHHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant RAFERE EMHRA - FHEQAGIE
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of 383(1)(a) * (b) * (c)R(NERAR (HEE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the ENEER) ROIF 2R ETBEE 2 EEH
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BHEFI T
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
Group
rEE
2024 2023
—EB-mEF —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBET T

Fees wwe 1,000 1,008
Other emoluments: EMe
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e B NEYER 5,573 4,694
Performance related bonuses* RIRTEAT* 606 569
Pension scheme contributions BB ET BN 351 314
Subtotal NEE 6,530 5,577
Total =X 7,530 6,585

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7



8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive
directors during the year were as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

8.

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

EENHM(E)
(a) BIUFHTES

ERENBIERTESE WERT
mF -

2023

—E-=F

RMB’000

ARET T

Ms. Zhang Fei Yan* R AR L 200 8
Mr. Zhu Lin KRTE 200 200
Mr. Yu Miao FaReaE 200 200
Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung* fAIRAR S A - 200
Total A&r 600 608

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2023: Nil).

* Mr. Ho Kenneth Kai Chung resigned as
independent non-executive director on 15
December 2023 and Ms. Zhang Fei Yan was
appointed as independent non-executive
directors on the same date.

RERN - IR IBIIFATTE F 6 E B

S (ZE=-=F :@®)

* B EER_TS_=F+=-A+HAH
BHTB N IEITE R © moRMFRLZ LA
RRABEZEAEBYIERNITES -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024

—E-_NFE+=-A=+—H

8. HEEMFM(E)

Executive directors and non-executive (b) HITESRIPYTES
directors
Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e RER Bk
ok ENEF RETA HEEN &t
2024 k- Sl 11 -3 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARETR AR%ETR ARETR ARETR
Executive directors: WIESE:
Mr. Ge Yi XREE - 3,714 302 206 4,222
Mr. Bai Kun AERAE - 930 227 99 1,256
Ms. Zhang Nan* Rz L - 929 77 46 1,052
Subtotal et - 5,573 606 351 6,530
Non-executive directors: FHiTES !
Mr. Pan De Yuan EERLE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Fontaine Alain Vincent Fontaine Alain
Vincentst 4 200 - - - 200
Subtotal INeF 400 - - - 400
Total = 400 5,573 606 351 6,930

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED Z&E#5REHIER AR



Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEWNEM(Z)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HBITESRIFTESR(E)
directors (continued)
Salaries,

allowances Performance Pension

and benefits related scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

e EER BIRE
ik EmER REMEA SRR G
2023 —Z-=F RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETRE AR®TRE ARETL ARKTR AR%TR

Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Ge Yi XCrk - 3,214 299 125 3,638
Mr. Bai Kun HEXHE = 920 224 85 1,229
Ms. Zhang Nan ER e = 560 46 104 710
Subtotal Nt - 4,694 569 314 5,577
Non-executive director: FHRTES
Mr. Pan De Yuan EBERLE 200 = = = 200
Mr. Fontaine Alain Vincent Fontaine Alain
Vincentft £ 200 = = = 200
Subtotal /et 400 = = = 400
Total At 400 4,694 569 314 5,977
& Ms. Zhang Nan resigned as executive director * RHZ+TR_ZE_RF—A/N\BETH
on 8 January 2025. TES -
There was no arrangement under which a director RER - WESERENR S IRETA
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during WL (ZE-_=F: &) -

the year (2023: Nil).

There were no emoluments paid by the Group to, or RER > KEBIWERAAREEN ALK
receivable by, the directors or the five highest paid SHMA T FREERR S ESMALR
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining EESAMARNEER 7 EEI SRR 2/
the Group nor as compensation for loss of office B(ZEZ=F &) -

during the year (2023: Nil).
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three directors (2023: two directors), details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2023:
three) highest paid employees who are not directors of the
Company are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

9. IEBSHFMESR

REALERSFMEERE=R2EF (=
T_-F MBEF) UHARAEEHN
BRTIME(ZE_=F: =) K=FHHES
RERMFHFFBOT

2023

—E-=F

RMB’000

AREETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e A REYER 1,325 1,742
Performance related bonuses FIATEAT 650 1,184
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET B 180 187
Total &5t 2,155 3,113

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

HHNFATHENFESTESFHIERN
ABIOE -

Number of employees
EBEAH

2023
=

AE#1,000,0017TE
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,500,0007T 2 3

Total A&

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & e BRI ERA T



10.

INCOME TAX
Cayman Islands

Under the current income tax laws of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is not subject to tax on any income or capital
gain.

Hong Kong

Under the current income tax laws of Hong Kong,
companies are subject to Hong Kong profits tax at 16.5%
on assessable profits arising in or derived from Hong
Kong. One subsidiary of the Group is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2023: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2023: 8.25%) and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2023:
16.5%).

Singapore

Under the current income tax laws of Singapore,
companies are subject to Singapore profits tax at 17.0% on
assessable profits arising in or derived from Singapore.

Mainland China

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject
to income tax at 25% unless otherwise specified as follows:

(a) Tsaker Technology, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, is subject to corporate income tax
at the rate of 15% from 2022 to 2024, after being
assessed as a high and new technology enterprise.

(b) Tsaker Dongao (Hainan) Technology Co., Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
established in the Hainan Free Trade Post and was
subject to the applicable enterprise income tax rate
of 15%. The subsidiary was deregistered during the
reporting period.

Notes to Financial Statements

10.

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

FRri®
HMERS

RERSFENRITMETE » NRARHBA
SLAEABRA S E AR EHRTHE

BB

BREBRITAGHRE ARARERBEL
IR BB BRI ERF S T2 16.5% M FH R4
MEBFEH - AEE—HEHBARAFE
TAAFETAERER - ZMNBAFM
H2,000,000/8 7T (ZF = =4 :2,000,000
BIT) BRI 25% (ZE =4 :
8.25%) MY L - MR T FERR L A1 LA
16.5% (Z T == : 16.5%) KT RHF -

e IR

RIEFINFIRITAIBEUE - A B ZBRLAEF N
WEEREFIMNENERBZFIZ17.0%
R L R BN T I RIS R

B KR

AR AR BIARE & P 8 A B R 1R 25% B R
REWMFREH  UATSEREERI

() ALATEEMBLAYERER
EABHHNCE  A-B-—FF
=T R 15% M B R B AT
8% -

(b) ARREEMBRARAFERR(EmM)
MEARABRINEMEER @ &
15%HER R EHMBEMRER - &
BB A BIA S I RS o
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. Fi8%H (&)
Mainland China (continued) B KRE (4F)
Under the prevailing PRC Corporate Income Tax Law BIRBITH R EMSHEREBBER -
and the relevant regulations, any dividends paid by the R_FZNF—HF—HB% AR ZFEHN
Company’s PRC subsidiaries from their earnings derived BRRMART 2 EBHERRFTERMN ZFE
after 1 January 2008 to the Company’s Hong Kong MEERBANITAZREHYBHMN5%310%
subsidiary are subject to a 5% or 10% PRC dividend (RFFRABTRBENERBERME) &Y
withholding tax, depending on the applicability of the REFENT - RAEE S - BEBEABRE
Sino-Hong Kong tax treaty. For the Group, the historical "”5% - At - XEEGRE _TTENF—H—
applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for BRBAZERFPERIZHBRRAEEZR
withholding taxes on retained earnings distributable by MAEREE R T 9K 2R E BN AE RN 2
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of B o
their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
2024 2023
—EomE —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBETTT
Current — Mainland China BUER — A B K R
Charge for the year FRZ M 46,147 51,613
Underprovision/(Overprovision) BEFEREBETR
in prior years (FBRERE) 603 (463)
Current — Elsewhere BNER — H i 5 6,196 6,233
Deferred (note 29) RIE (B77729) (51,084) (42,976)
Total tax charge for the year FAFHIEX H A5 1,862 14,407

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED Z&E#5REHIER AR



10.

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Mainland China (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for Mainland China, in which
the majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled,

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

10. FBH (&)
HEKRE ()

PR A B K B (AR B R AR B B 2 B P e
b)) A TE Bt R 5T B 9 BR B AT R E B RO AR 0R
F 32 B4R B R B R 5T B RO BT B S B BR 1B

to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: ™
2024 2023
—E-EF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETTT
Profit before tax B 5 B4 A 376 59,600
Tax at the statutory income tax rate (25%) AT TSR R
(25%)st EWFLIA 94 14,900
Tax effects of different tax rates HEEZENTBTE - (146)
Effect of preferential income tax rates ARG THE AT
applicable to certain subsidiaries BEMAEHNENZE (13,980) (11,108)
Non-deductible expenses AR R X2 2,000 2,366
Income not subject to tax BAERBIRA (761) (1,592)
Additional deduction of research and BN AR K& B E EMET R
development costs and qualified assets (4,108) (8,152)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of ERBE MR EIRI ER A
previous periods 603 (463)
Temporary differences (including tax losses) KR Z B IEE%E
not recognised (BIERIEEE) 13,443 15,150
Withholding tax TEAR 4,571 5,253
Tax losses utilised from previous periods FAATHRNTIEEE - (1,803)
Total income tax expense FrigHiF 2 458 1,862 14,407
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

11. DIVIDENDS 11. KA
2024 2023
—EC_E —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
st AR®T ARBT T
Interim dividend and interim special HeofE & A R R BRAR B R R A
dividend approved and paid of FRIR S TR EBRARE
RMBO0.030 per ordinary share (2023: 0.030L(ZZE==F : AR
RMB0.029) #0.0297T) (a) 29,562 29,365
Final dividend proposed after the end of %iﬁ%ﬂﬂf?é@%?ﬁ%Ziﬁ
the reporting period of RMB0.025 per AR S LTBRARYE
ordinary share (2023: RMB0.038) 0. 02575(_ ZEF AR
#0.0387T) (b) 24,635 38,479
54,197 67,844

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥%& #&¢

On 13 August 2024, the Board declared an interim
dividend of RMBO0.005 per ordinary share (the “Interim
Dividend”) (six months ended 30 June 2023: RMB0.029
per ordinary share) and an interim special dividend of
RMBO0.025 per share (the “Interim Special Dividend”)
(six months ended 30 June 2023: Nil), amounting to the
total Interim Dividend of approximately RMB4,978,000
(six months ended 30 June 2023: approximately
RMB29,443,000) and the total Interim Special Dividend
of approximately RMB24,892,000 (six months ended 30
June 2023: Nil). Taking into account of the subsequent
share cancellation after 30 June 2024 of 10,275,000
shares, the total amount of the Interim Dividend and
the Interim Special Dividend actually paid amounted
to approximately RMB4,927,000 and RMB24,635,000
respectively.

The Directors proposed a final dividend of RMBO0.025
(2023: RMB0.038) per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2024, amounting
to a total of approximately RMB24,635,000 (2023:
approximately RMB38,479,000). The proposed dividend
was not recognised as a liability as at the end of the
reporting period, since it is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The final dividend proposed
amount was calculated based on the issued and
fully paid shares of the Company as at 31 December
2024. Taking into account of the subsequent share
cancellation of approximately 14,483,000 shares after
31 December 2024, the total amount of final dividend
amounted to approximately RMB24,273,000.

B AR H

R-ZE-_WENA+=H EFEE€TKT
RS SR EERARK0.0057T ([ &
e N(BE—FE-="A=1tHIX
@A : SiREERARE0.029T) K+ H
5 R % 8 iﬁx)\E’ﬂ%o 0257t ([ A Hi 45 R
e (#=E =ZFXNA=ZTHLX
@A &) $E qﬂﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁéﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬂ%‘
4,978,000 (2T -_=F"A=1+H
WEREA - 9 AREE29,443,0007T) KA Ef
FRIAE B4R RE A A R 24 892,0007T (B =
—E_=FXRNAZ=ZTHIEARNER  E) o &
N —E—MFENAZTHZEBBERRME
5/ 10,275,000 %% » BRI RFH
RERPHERNREREINNAEARE
4,927,0007T & A R# 24,635,000 °

@%:%:EE%:HEJr*EIJtiE ,
BEEERRERAKE HX/\EEE%Z
0.025 L (ZE=_=%: /\E%o 0387C) *
WA A ANRE24 635,000C (=& _fi
4 ANR¥E38,479,0007T) - AR EZERBEA
BAANRBREREEREAF RS AR
FAEE MU KRR REHRBEREEE -
ERARPRESBENREARAN T Y
F+_A=Z+—BHHEETHEKRDFES
e &tk —T-_MF+_A=+—H82%
BEZ AN 5 EH4914,483,000 %15 + REARL
B A AR 24,273,0007T °



12.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share
amounts is based on the (loss)/profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
986,129,000 (2023: 1,010,136,000) in issue during the
year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

Notes to Financial Statements
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PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

BRAAEBERESHERABEER
(B1]) BA

BREAX(E18),/ BRI DEREG AR LER
EXBAEABGER(SE) R RFEAD
4TI RAL HNAE 15 £0086,129,000/% (=&
— =% :1,010,136,000%) 5+ & -

BE_ T _NWEN_ZT-_=F+-A=+—
RIEFE  AEBEWEAEEBRSTE B
BITERAR -

BREALEERNDENATSEE

2024 2023
—E_ME —EFE-=

(LOSS)/EARNINGS (&1]), &F
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to BAREBREREE AEN

ordinary equity holders of the parent FRN(ER),wH (AR T

(RMB’000) JT) (21,098) 29,061
Shares ;4
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FRiTESRER (Ei8), &

in issue during the year used in the basic MEVERNE BT WA INE T

(loss)/earnings per share calculation ('000) BHE(FR) 986,129 1,010,136
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥%¥ -  BERRE

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024: RZF-=F+-A=1-AFk

“2PE-A-R:
Cost A 1,096,587 12355319 23,165 6,874 63,656 2,545,601
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZERAE (228,007)  (565,178)  (20,628)  (4,332) (2,097)  (820,332)
Net carrying amount FETE 868,490 790,141 2537 2,542 61,559 1,725,269

At 1 January 2024, net of accumulated depreciation RZZ-ME-A-B MR

and impaiment TERAA 868,490 790,141 2,537 2,542 61,559 1,725,269
Additions FE 2607 14,067 1,262 2,305 82,085 102,326
Disposals HE (899)  (2774) (25) (481) - (4179
Depreciation provided during the year EnRENTE (54,714)  (104,794)  (2,752)  (1,609) - (163,863)
Transfers £Q 19727 745% - - (94,253) -

At 31 December 2024, net of accumulated depreciation  R=F-MF+-A=1+-H"

and impaiment TR nERAE 835211 771,166 1,022 2,763 49,391 1,659,553
At 31 December 2024; RZE-ME+-A=F-H:

Cost A 1,117,672 1423467 24,261 8,780 51,488 2,625,668

Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZHMERAE (282,461)  (652,301)  (23,239)  (6,017) (2,097) (966,115
Net carrying amount FEFE 835211 771,166 1,022 2,763 49391 1,659,553
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BERRE(Z)
(CONTINUED)
Machinery
and Office Motor - Construction
Buildings  equipment  equipment  vehicles in progress Total
BT HERZE HRE AE RRIR At
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2023: RZB-=F-F—-H:
Cost R 1,044,462 1,305,447 18,596 7,271 69926 2445702
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZiHTEREE (179,239)  (469,093)  (17,928) (3,691) (13,778)  (683,729)
Net carrying amount RESE 865223 836,354 668 3,580 56,148 1761,973
At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated RZFZ=§-F-B Nk
depreciation and impairment ZEEREME 865,223 836,354 668 3,580 56,148 1761,973
Additions RE 4535 41,863 2,5% 421 86,679 136,092
Disposals e (1414 (3734) (125) (25) - (5,299)
Depreciation provided during the year FRERNTE (50,423)  (96,851) (4,600) (1578) - (153452
Impairment HE - (12,43) - - (1,610) (14,046)
Transfers &F 50,569 24,945 4,000 144 (79,658) -
At 31 December 2023, net of accumulated R=B-=F+-A=1+-H"
depreciation and impairment TR ZATERRE 868,490 790,141 2,537 2,542 61559  1725,269
At 31 December 2023; R-F-=F+-A=1+-H:
Cost kA 1,096,587 1,355,319 23,165 6,874 63,656 2,545,601
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ZiHTEREE (208,097)  (565,178)  (20,628) (4332) (2,007)  (820,332)
Net carrying amount RESE 868,490 790,141 2,537 2,542 61559  1725,269

Impairment assessment in 2023

As at 31 December 2023, since certain construction
in progress of the Mononitrotoluene separation and
crystallization process test project (the “Test Project”)
would be no longer used, a full impairment provision
of approximately RMB1,610,000 was made based on
the carrying amount. Besides, certain equipment of
I[ron Phosphate and the Sodium Methoxide workshop
(a workshop of the Pigment intermediate) would be no
longer used, full impairment provisions of approximately
RMB11,774,000 and approximately RMB662,000 were
made against their carrying amounts, respectively.

—E = EEFM
RZE_=F+_-A=+—H AR

ER RO B

wRTE2HARBRAR ([HARRE

B ZHA»ERIRETEFER  OARE
1,610,000 C 2 BEURERE HDEREKEE

R o Besh -

BERR 8 & R BS g =R ) (R R R

MEBER) 2B TRESTBER  HAR
#11,774,0007T R H A R¥662,0007T 2 &
HURERE D JIENERMEED
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Notes to Financial Statements

14. LEASES 14.

The Group as a lessee

Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 20 to 50
years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. The Group has lease contracts
for various items of office premises and apartments for
employees used in its operations. The leases of office
premises and apartments for employees have lease terms
of 2 to 3 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

HE
REBEREEA

AN £2 B PR IR AT VR ) — R I A5 5K A 1) 3 £ £ E
HELH - BEHA20E50F  BIEZS L
WHENIER  AREEFTEES IR
B ARERERANRELEEZHAMERE
IRAENHESYN - WAMEREINAEN
M AE2E3F - —ME  AEBTAIAAR
EEUIIATEZRSTAAEEE -

Group.
(a)  Right-of-use assets (a) FFAEEZE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use AEEGHAEEENREERFASE
assets and the movements during the year are as AR ¢
follows:
Office premises
Leasehold and apartments
land for employees Total
HETH WAMEREIASE &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBTT ARBTT

As at 1 January 2023 A

—H—H 89,638 168 89,806
Addition nNE = 3,661 3,661
Depreciation charge WERX (3,102) (783) (3,885)
As at 31 December 2023 and A—E-=F+_F

1 January 2024 =t+t—AK=F

—HE—H—H 86,536 3,046 89,582
Depreciation charge TERX (3,182) (1,397) (4,579)
As at 31 December 2024 R F

+=—BA=+—H 83,354 1,649 85,003
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

14. LEASES (CONTINUED) 14. HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEEREBA (Z)
(b) Lease liabilities (b)) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the HEABNEDERFANZEHNOT :

movements during the year are as follows:

2023
—EC=F
RMB’000
AR¥EFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZERAEEAE 691 178
New leases Mg - 1,061
Accretion of interest recognised FRE R BILIE
during the year 20 33
Payments (NN (535) (581)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+ZA=+—RAZEHEE 176 691
Analysed into: DT
Current portion BNERER &> 176 459
Non-current portion JERNERES 5 - 232
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) RIBSHEZHEHEFWT -
relation to leases are as follows:
2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARBEFTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 20 33
Depreciation charge of FREEENERS
right-of-use assets 4,579 3,885
Expense relating to short-term leases G HATHE AR X 1,335 916
Total amount recognised B R RIBARE
in profit or loss 5,934 4,834
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Notes to Financial Statements

15. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FVOCI  15.

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

EEZAAEBEGEEHZBTAH

fhEmEmWEZRERE
2023
—E=F
RMB’000
AREBFIT
Equity investments designated at FVOCI: BERAABEFEEEES
TAHMEEE Y
MRAEIR A
Unquoted equity investments, at fair value RANBEGFEZBERE
feiERE 24,150 32,309
Total CEll 24,150 32,309

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated
at FVOCI as the Group considers these investments to be
strategic in nature.

In 2024, the Group recognised a loss of approximately
RMB8,159,000 in other comprehensive income in relation
to the fair value change of equity investments designated
at FVOCI (2023: a gain of approximately RMB1,454,000).

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & e BRI ERA T

AEER S EAREREENE FBREER
B MBRSRETABELEERRANE
EFfEREEH T AR MEEKES

RZEZNF AEERBEREETEAAE
B2 EESFHTAHMEE WS 2 BER
BERAREBEEEHREGE2EREEREERLY
AR#8,159,0007T (ZE==4 : HHA
R#1,454,0007T) °



16.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

16. B\ EE

At 1 January 2023:

R-E-_=F—HF—H8:

Cost B 3,900 20,554 24,454

Accumulated amortisation RETHESH (1,473) (15,410) (16,883)

Net carrying amount BREEE 2,427 5,144 7,571
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of RZZTE=—=F—F—H2

accumulated amortisation BOAS - 0Bk RETEE S 2,427 5,144 7,571
Additions NE 616 - 616
Amortisation provided during the year  4F A3 (535) (802) (1,337)
At 31 December 2023 RZZE—_=F+-_A=+—H 2,508 4,342 6,850
At 31 December 2023 R-E-_=F+=-HA=+—H

Cost (DN 4,516 20,554 25,070

Accumulated depreciation and 2T ERAE

impairment (2,008) (16,212) (18,220)

Net carrying amount BRHEFE 2,508 4,342 6,850
Cost at 1 January 2024, net of R-ZE-_NF—HF—HZ

accumulated amortisation A > MBRE S 2,508 4,342 6,850
Amortisation provided during the year F i $5 15 (465) (817) (1,282)
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-OmF+=A=+—H 2,043 3,525 5,568
At 31 December 2024: R-EBE_-_WmWE+—-A8

=+—8:
Cost B AR 4,516 20,554 25,070
Accumulated depreciation and ZEITE RRE
impairment (2,473) (17,029) (19,502)
Net carrying amount BT FE 2,043 3,525 5,568
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

17. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17. HiERBHEE
2023
—E_=F
RMB’000
ARETIT
Prepayments for construction BRRTEMN IR 27,597 28,023
Others Hity 11,322 11,507
Total I 38,919 39,530

18. INVENTORIES 18. #FE

2023
—E =4
RMB’000
AREET T
Raw materials R 31,472 35,808
Work in progress ERMm 52,701 56,700
Finished goods LUK M 188,918 192,818
Total = 273,091 285,326

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #seREHZBR A A



19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

19. EBEZEWFIE

2024 2023
—E-mF —To=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T

Trade receivables B 5 R IE 293,699 350,952
Impairment A (9,835) (8,440)
Net carrying amount BREEE 283,864 342,512

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers and small-sized
customers, where payment in advance is normally required.
The credit period is generally one to three months for
domestic and overseas customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over certain of its outstanding receivables.

Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivables balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

BRI EP MEEFBEARANMNKIN - &
SEEEZEPHNEIERZHRAREER - 3iE
ARBINEPTE  EEH-—KRR—E2={E
A BUEFPHERKEELR - AKEN
SKEE T i R W B A R RO R 4 B BR
i o

mAERB S RERE T HERN - ERATX
PRt R AR ENE ZEBFHIBES S RED
AEF  AEEVESEAEEEPRARK - &
SEW AR HE 5 UGB &R B (R
HokHEtEeEETRA - B5RKFIEA
TETE ©
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19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2024, no trade receivables was
pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans (31
December 2023: approximately RMB114,378,000).

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

19. EZREWFE(Z)

R-ZE-_WE+-A=+—8  #HEEH
ZSRURAREEAAEERITEROER
(ZE-_ZF+-_A=Z+—H:  HARE
114,378,0007T) °

REREHRNE S EUGKENRE D
(ERBEZAHAKIMRBERBHE) OT

2023

—E-=F

RMB’000

AR®ET T

Within 1 month —MREAX 124,104 272,758
1 month to 2 months — (&A= mfE A 101,697 41,383
2 months to 3 months MEAZ=1EA 43,846 17,059
3 months to 4 months —{EA=m{EA 3,546 2,077
Over 4 months rO{E A R E 10,671 9,235
Total A&t 283,864 342,512

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

B o RN TIERERBERENZBMT

2023

—E-=F

RMB’000

ARBETTT

At the beginning of year REF] 8,440 7,704
Impairment provided (note 7) BEHRRE (A5 7) 1,395 736
At end of year RER 9,835 8,440

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables
are written off if the Group recognises that recovery of the
amount is remote.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & e BRI ERA T
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19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group applies the simplified approach to the provision
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables. To measure the expected credit loss on
trade receivables, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2024

Expected credit loss rate HHEEEEX
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEME(ARETT)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEEE (ARETT)

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

19. EBFEWRIE(Z)

AEBER BBV BEREEANFIRRENTE
HMEEBEBRRERMBICIE - ZIERLE
SRAEESEERARBEMAEREEE
B R BESREFENRAEEESE
AEBEZRARCEERREBRERKEES
FEWKIB DA o

ERASBERABBRERTENE S EER
BENEERBRERERIINAT

R-ZE-_mE+=-A=+—H

0.08% 3.10% 5.73% 100.00% =
281,408 1,872 925 9,494 293,699
230 58 53 9,494 9,835

As at 31 December 2023

R=—E—_=F+=-A=+—H

Between  Between
Within 1 and 2 and Over
1year  2years 3years  3years Total
—FN —FERF WFE=F =ZFUL Aan

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEBEX
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BEEEE (ARETT)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) HHEEER (ARETT)

0.12% 4.11% 8.35% 100.00% =
339,714 925 2,527 7,786 350,952
405 38 211 7,786 8,440
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20.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable of the Group are bank acceptance
notes and are usually settled within six months from their
respective dates of issue. None of the notes receivable as
at the end of the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023
was past due or impaired.

Transferred financial assets that are not derecognised:
The Group endorsed certain notes receivable accepted
by banks in Mainland China (the “Endorsed Notes”)
with aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
RMB525,791,000 and RMB223,828,000 as at 31 December
2024 and 2023, respectively, to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to such Endorsed Notes, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the Endorsed Notes and the associated other
payables. Subsequent to the Endorsement, the Group did
not retain any rights to the use of the Endorsed Notes,
including the sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed
Notes to any other third parties. None of the Endorsed
Notes settled during the year have been recoursed as at
the end of the year.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7
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20.

NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised: The
Group endorsed certain notes receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Notes”) to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables
due to such suppliers with aggregate carrying amounts
of approximately RMB776,850,000 and RMB126,155,000
as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, respectively. The
Derecognised Notes have a maturity from one to six
months at the end of the respective reporting periods.
In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Notes have
a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of
the Directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Notes. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Notes and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Notes
and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Notes is equal to their carrying amounts. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Notes are not
significant.

Since the business model of notes receivables with similar
credit exposures with the Derecognised Notes is both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling, the
Group classifies and measures notes receivables with
similar credit exposures with the Derecognised Notes at
fair value through other comprehensive income. The fair
value of notes receivable approximated to their carrying
amount largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. No fair value changes were recorded for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 for notes
receivable.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the dates
of transfer of the Derecognised Notes. No gains or losses
were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively.

Notes to Financial Statements

20.

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

EWRE (&)

RIBRANEBESHMEE : AINER
ETHEBRNESEMNKE  XEEME
AHERSES $%¢lﬁﬁﬁﬂ&%m
BWEE ((REEREE]) R
FRZFEZ=F+-A=+—HHAKA
BRI AL ANRET76,850,0007T K A R#E
126,155,0007T ° B ERZEHR NS WwEH
KRBT —ZNMEAZE - RIBEFBEEEE
FERENRTEHNBRT @ BRERZRE
MIFEAERNEBAERE([FESEE]) -
BEERA $%laiéﬁ%m%ﬁwmﬁ

BB AE D E b R ER o Fit - NEERR
ﬁ&ﬁm\ﬁ*’%}ﬁ@ﬁ/uﬁ?%ﬁm B%E{E&*HF%TT
JENFRIE - REBERBRERAZBENHER

IrBEZERGERAZENRBIRE SR
EEANGAEEBRRSREREE -85
RE AEEARERERZENRESTY
ARABEITERK -

MR ERGEZAREAFRUNEERR 2
IEHQTTFEﬁ%ﬁMETHBﬂ%h“ﬁIWHX #
RenBREE  WAKEYHAE HERTE
REBELUNEERR 2 EBEFRBEARAE
BfERESHF AL MEEERETIR
K& - BEEBNAABEELREER
H O RABELTDHRLETABE RN
B -BE_FT_MNFR_F_=Ft+-A=
T—HLEFE  UARBSERREENRIAE
BEZE -

HEZZ-_NMER-T-_=F+=-_A=+—
BIEFE  AEEVEAEZRRERZRE
HEIRERE MmN EE - RZMEFE K
2T BEFYBERRBESTEEN RS
o ETiE ©
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21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

RN FIA R H Aith W R IR

2024 2023
—E-F T4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T

Advances to suppliers 4B T IER B E R 19,185 36,826
Deductible value-added tax and prepaid ARG ER RN TS

corporate income tax 14,525 22,111

Other receivables H b fE Y SRIE 14,838 16,535

48,548 75,472

Impairment allowance DENIER Y] (1,377) (6,193)

Total At 47,171 69,279

Except for the impairment provided for certain other
receivables which indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full, no
impairment allowance is provided for other receivables for
which credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Deductible value-added tax and prepaid corporate income
tax are to be deducted in the following year. Advances
to suppliers and other receivables are unsecured and
interest-free.
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BRAAEEHEBHSSHFTAEBREZ
PROFIT OR LOSS ERMEE
2024 2023
—EMEF —EZ=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR®T AR®ET T
Financial assets at FVPL — current: BARBENFEAHESEH
AEZZeREE
—RE
Listed equity investments EkRERE (a) 906 7,879
Wealth management products EEIE M (b) - 5,000
Subtotal NEE 906 12,879
Financial assets at FVPL — non-current: R AR EETE B &5t
ABRZEmEE
— 3EmE ¢
Unlisted investment FELEMIRE (c) 14,960 25,183
Total A&t 15,866 38,062

(a)

The listed equity investments were classified as FVPL
as they were held for trading.

The wealth management products were issued by
banks in Mainland China. The Directors of the Company
consider that they are investments with cash flows
not solely payments of its principal and interest and
recorded it as financial asset at FVPL.

The unlisted investment is an investment in beneficial
rights from shares of a private equity fund. The
directors of the Company consider that they are
investments with cash flows not solely payments of its
principal and interest and recorded it as financial asset
at FVPL.

CTRERE RS EARAABEE
BEBBHABRS SHEE  FER
HTHESE AR -

BHEmATBEAERITET - AAF
BEER LARERRBASRETAEX
MNAERMEMKE - XARBRAR
BEELEREZHFTARECSRE
o

FELEMEREBULERERES DM
HH—IBRE - RAREERES LMRE
BRATRETRAERXNAE KA EH
RE  WARRRANBEFELEE
Bt ARGBZEREE -
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23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
RESTRICTED CASH

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

23. BRERASEEYURZREE

2024 2023

—EMEF —EZ=F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

k23 AR®T AR®ET T

Cash and bank balances & MIRIT4E S 266,929 358,027

Less: Restricted cash — current A XRIFE — BNE (a) (140) (70,586)

Cash and cash equivalents Be RREEEY 266,789 287,441

Denominated in RMB AAREE 227,150 258,691

Denominated in other currencies PAE b &5 ¥ HE 39,639 28,750

Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 266,789 287,441
Note: Bist -

(a) As at 31 December 2024, restricted cash mainly (a) RZZZMF+=ZA=1+—H8 ' ZRHE

represented guarantee deposits for workers. As at 31
December 2023, restricted cash mainly represented
guarantee deposits for the issued bills payable.

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorized to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and restricted
bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of
the cash and cash equivalents and the restricted bank
deposits approximate to their fair values.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7

CIZRBINRESHER R-FTZ
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24,

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

24, BEREANRERENRE

RERERRE HENFTIERENRIEZER
oM (RIBERBHAE) H7/MT

2024 2023
—E-mEF —T_=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBET T

Within 1 month —@AA 141,559 245,178
1 month to 2 months — @R =™M1E A 80,856 56,558
2 months to 3 months M{E A = =1 A 90,309 34,573
Over 3 months =EAKE 74,314 136,305
Total A& 387,038 472,614

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on terms of 30 to 90 days.

The financial liabilities that are part of the Group’s supplier
finance arrangements included in trade and bills payables
are normally settled on 180-day terms, respectively.

The Group has established supplier finance arrangements
that are offered to some of the Group’s key suppliers in
Mainland China. Participation in the arrangements is at the
suppliers’ own discretion. Suppliers that participate in the
supplier finance arrangements will receive early payments
or payments at the original due dates on invoices sent to
the Group from the Group’s external finance provider. If
suppliers choose to receive early payments, they pay a fee
to the finance provider. In order for the finance provider to
pay the invoices, the goods must have been received or
supplied and the invoices must have been approved by the
Group. Payments to suppliers ahead of or at the invoice
due date are processed by the finance provider and, in all
cases, the Group settles the original invoice by paying the
finance provider at a later date as agreed with the finance
provider. The Group provides no security to the finance
provider.

BSRNFIEATE » WiBEIZ30HE90
BE SRR A -

BRASEHREEMELEN oL A
ESENTEBELRENEZERNCMAERED
RZ180 H N EIR & E -

AEBECDRUMHERRELRS  BHTAE
ERRE A E T EEZMHER - HERA
BITRESG2EAHRM - 2HHEER
BERHNHERAASEZHERE A&
AEBEMIMNIRERBTRENKIRERE
FIE B - AR BRI W
ARRMEREITXN—EER - EMVEE
BB MHE  BERFEUNACEAEEL
o BEREST T EXNER  c ERRIH
Bz BRAEBRANHZIRRRER
HHRRE - MEEMERT  AEEERHE
BMERHKTBENRKARBBARERMH
ANFKRGEBEREER - ARELEARE
RETREERER -
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Notes to Financial Statements

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 24.

All financial liabilities that arise from the supplier finance
arrangements are included in trade and bills payables.

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

ESRNRARENRE(F)

HERREZHEENMESRAGEAR
HENFRBRENER -

Carrying amount of financial liabilities that are part of ERMtEERE LY — a9
the supplier finance arrangements included in: SRIBEMNREETA
Trade and bills payables B o ENFIERENER 20,000
Of which suppliers have received payments E A B BGR 20,000

For financial liabilities that arise from the supplier finance
arrangements included in trade and bills payables, there
were no significant non-cash changes in the carrying
amounts of these financial liabilities.

BETAESENRARENRENHERR
ERPEANESHAENS  ZFeRAaE
MAREEYBEAFRSES -

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25, HiENREREGER
2023
—E=F
Notes RMB’000
Kt AREET T
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits EEtH e - TEREF 29,039 27,389
Payables under the endorsement EEE THEMNHRIE 20 525,791 223,828
Current portion of lease liabilities HEEaBEENEHS 14(b) 176 459
Other payables H fth FE A 5RI8 29,611 25,972
Total &&r 584,617 277,648

The above amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment.
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

26. FTEBRITRHEMER

BORROWINGS
2023
—Zo=F
Effective
Interest
rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB'000
EBF%E(%) %A ARETR
Short-term 55
Bank loans - secured ROEH - BER 2.95-4.20 2025 165,172  2.80-4.50 2024 212,193
Bank loans - unsecured ROEH - BER 3.90-4.50 2025 25,249 3.70-5.00 2024 65,251
Total CH 190,421 277 444
Long-term RH

Other borrowings -secured

EfpfER - AER

7.65-8.32  2025-2026 17,990

7.65-9.22  2024-2026 39,708

Total ait 17,990 39,708
Less: current portion of long-term o REEMER

other borrowings WEHH S (16,148) (21,650)

1,842 18,058

Total bank and other borrowings BROREMEREE 208,411 317,152
Analysed into: AWM
Bank loans repayable: AR TR RERMRTEN

Within one year —£R 190,421 277 444
Subtotal Nt 190,421 277,444
Other borrowings repayable: BRATR B ERMEME

Within one year —£R 16,148 21,650

In the second year F_F 1,842 12,332

In the third to fifth years, inclusive E-EZERE (REERME) - 5726
Subtotal N 17,990 39,708
Total CHI 208,411 317,152
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 December 2024 were
secured by:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

mortgages over certain of the Group’'s
property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB189,722,000 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: approximately
RMB138,038,000);

mortgages over certain of the Group’'s
right-of-use assets of approximately
RMB39,171,000 as at 31 December 2024
(2023: approximately RMB32,153,000);

none of the Group’s trade receivables was
mortgaged as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
approximately RMB114,378,000).

All the outstanding interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are denominated in RMB.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7
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31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

26. FTERITREMERGE)

(a)

AEBR-_ZT-_WMFE+_-_A=+—8
ZE TR BRITREMEFATYE
B B -

V)

(if)

(iii)

AEBR - _WE+=A
=t+—HEEENBARE
189,722,000t 2 & THZ -
BEREBE(ZEZ=F: 8
AR #138,038,0007T) :

AEEBR=-_ZE-_WNMF+=A
S+ HEREEONAEARE
39,171,0007c 2 & T F A #
BE(ZCE_=%F: HARK
32,153,0007T) :

AEEBR=-_ZE-_NMF+=A
S+ HMERREZER
FBE(ZZE-=F: HARK
114,378,0007T) °

FrA R EENF B RITREMETKIA
AR®EHE -



27.

28.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

27. HivRBEE

2023
—Eo=fF
RMB’000
ARBT T

Considerations received from independent B389 H & —FEIF B A & R AER

investors for partial disposal of the equity BB IR EE 2R E”

interests in a subsidiary* - 57,489
Others HAth 2,747 2,797
Total & 2,747 60,286
* As at 31 December 2023, considerations received * RZZEZ=F+=—A=+—80 " ®%HH

from independent investors for partial disposal of the
equity interests in Tsaker Technology, an indirect
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with
repurchase rights given to these independent investors
were accounted for and disclosed as current financial
liabilities because in the event that Tsaker Technology
fails to consummate a proposed listing on the Beijing
Stock Exchange by 31 December 2024 (the “Proposed
Listing”), each of the independent investors shall have
a repurchase right to request Tsaker Hong Kong to
repurchase all or part of its respective shares acquired
in Tsaker Technology at a pre-determined repurchase
price. In 2024, Tsaker Chemical (Hong Kong) Company
Limited (“Tsaker Hong Kong”) (a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), the immediate parent
company of Tsaker Technology, agreed with investors
to amend the due date of the Proposed Listing from
31 December 2024 to 31 December 2027, financial
liabilities were reclassified to non-current financial
liabilities accordingly.

DEFERRED INCOME

HEARFEZEIFZEMBRARFER
BRENENE IR EE ZREER LG
TREBIUREEZLBELARD SR
BEMRIKE  RERMEZRER
BER-_ZE_MFE+-_A=+—HaiEdk
/?\{é * X SR TE A B g BT ([ #RaE
) BBUKREESEAQERE 7
%ﬁt’%%%?ﬁﬁm@ﬁ%{“‘@ﬁ%“ X Q
REEREBE AN I RIS RS -

—ZEZNEF ?Eﬂ&ﬂ’ﬂﬁ%l“ﬂ%
2B (FERB)ERAR(TREEE])
(ARRNEEZEMBAR) BREE
BEMERZE LTI HRR T - NF
T A=+ —HRERRZZELF+Z

Government grants

BUF 3 B)

A=+—H aRAEREERIER
FRBERAE -
28. EEZEWRA
2023
RMB'000
ARBFTT
6,229 8,163
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX 29. EEBIE
The movements in deferred income tax assets and FRNRLEMEREENBENEHFR (K
liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration ZRFA—HBEERANMRENEE) AT

the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdictions,
are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets: BEFTIS T EE ¢

AtlJanuary 2023 RZZZ=E
-A-R 449 1912 7,990 2,458 835 1868 11462 2,504 - - 29,478
Deferred tax credited)  REMBHEA
(charged) to profitor 3t/ (1)
loss during the year ~ BYEREHE 4,483 1,696 2,884 (523) (678) (1,139) 37,549 (2.121) 18 1,828 43,951

Gross deferred RZFZ=54Z

fax assets at 31 A=t-REk=

December 2023and ~ S=M&—f—

1 January 2024 RMERLHEE
ElE 4,932 3,568 10,874 1,935 157 729 49,011 n 18 1,828 73,429

Deferred tax credited/  RNERBHERA
(charged) to profitor 3 /(1)
loss during the year  RYEREHE (999) (756) (2,923) (455) (157) (628) 51,449 3,802 3) (807) 48,523

Gross deferred RoB-ME+=
fax assets at 31 A=T-RHE

December 2024 EHEEELE 3,933 2,812 7,951 1,480 - 101 100,460 4179 15 1,021 121,952
The Group has unrecognised tax losses arising of AEBEARABERADNBEEENAARE
approximately RMB49,264,000, for offsetting against 49,264,0007T © FAEE AR RERT & A ©
future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not been HAMZEEEERELENRBEE RRA
recognised in respect of these losses as it is considered HEZABAEEITeE 7 EERFOSENA BE
not probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available Y7 = B A R S B A R TR S IR A R 8 o
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised by the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. EEBIE ()
Deferred tax liabilities: EEFIBEAE -

At 1 January 2023 W-Z-=F-f—-H = 6,208 - 6,529 12,737
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to RERBEATR
profit or loss during the year /GTA) ERHIE 251 (958) 2,274 (592) 975
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R-B-=%+_Ff
31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 “t-AR=E-RE
—R—BREERE
REEE
Deferred tax credited to RERBEAZTAR
profit or loss during the year ERHE
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZEZWE+=A
31 December 2024 =T —-AMELH
BaEAE
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

29. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 29. EEHE(E)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a BIEP BB ERBERE - E"qﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiiﬁ’]
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to INERECERIINEREETRORE - A
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises Z10% 0B = BURTEMTL o E%iﬁi@:%@
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective TNF-A—ABER  WEARZZFZL
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 FHZA=ZT—HEMEF o BIAkR
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate of 5% may HINEIREEMERNEER D ZFT N -
be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China E“J—Hmﬁﬁ BEMS%HTEMBE - Bt - A
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group B AR B RRER LM E A Bl 7] 9k
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends E’\JH SERITHBYBFENRANERSE - R=ZZ =Y
distributable by those subsidiaries established in Mainland F+-A=+—H  HAERELEHEEE
China. At 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount HMB AR A ERBFNEBENE R EER
of temporary differences associated with undistributed REAHARYEA,221,525,000c(=ZF ==
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities F+ZA=+—8: AR®1,226,477,000
have not been recognised was RMB1,221,525,000 TL) o MEBREEEH A RARRE T 9IRS
(31 December 2023: RMB1,226,477,000). Based on FIE(EET - PEIKEMKE AL R ARK
management’s estimation of profits to be distributed in 1A IMERR A BR AR T74,741,0007T
foreseeable future, dividends of RMB74,741,000 will be RIRES Btk - SRR AR B K BE 2 BB A
distributed from Mainland China to overseas holding REEZRERMBERATEEHREABRAR
companies in the foreseeable future. Therefore, deferred ¥3,737,0007T - EEETEE - B LR E
tax liability of RMB3,737,000 was recognised for the SN R TRBENERERBRARNHER
retained profits generated from subsidiaries located in T"EZH -
Mainland China. Management expects that except for the
aforementioned dividends, the remaining retained profits
will be used for the subsidiaries’ continuing reinvestment.
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the AN A ) A H AR BROIR A5 AR B £ 2 B A AT TS
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. MIER -
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets BERIR ETEEHBEEERBEER
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial AR R - LT AREEH BiRE S
position. The following analysis of the deferred tax RIETIBARDAT -
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:
2024 2023
—E-NE —EBE-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBETTT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in RERE B ISARR R R
the consolidated statement of RIER TR BEF R
financial position 116,955 67,449
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RERE B ISARR R MR A IR T
the consolidated statement of MIABEFH
financial position 6,154 7,732
TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥&#eSERH AR AT



30.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 30. HiERBES

2023
—Eo=fF
RMB’000
ARBT T

Considerations received from independent BB IR E EERE —RHH
investors as capital injection in a subsidiary* BRAREERRKE* 236,392 220,001

Considerations received from independent BE D E— M E A R AR

investors for partial disposal of the equity MEWB I REE 2 RE
interests in a subsidiary™* 101,994 -
Others Hfh 1,771 4,517
Total &5t 340,157 224,518
* As disclosed in the Consolidated Statement of Changes * e EREBRMERE - ILREEN

in Equity, considerations received from independent
investors by Shandong TNM, with repurchase rights
were accounted for as non-current financial liabilities.

*% Kk

Details of the considerations are disclosed in Note 27
to the financial statements.

MR EWE R E E K EER D BRI
FRBDEMBEIEK -

BRAREBNFBERY MK 27 F i

= o
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B’=AK
The movements in share capital of the Company are as RABIRAEBEHF| AT -
follows:
Issued
Number of share capital
shares  Share capital equivalent of
BB EE BA ZEERTRAE
Shares usbD RMB’000
47 EY ARBT
Authorised: ETE
As at 31 December 2023 at USD0.01 each R-ZT-=ZF+—A
=t+—A8"
FH0.01%ETT 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
As at 31 December 2024 at USD0.01 each R=-ZT-M&F+=H
=t+—-8-
BR0.01ER 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 January 2023 at USD0.01 each R-ZE-=%F—#
—B - 5R0.01%ET 1,019,132,500 10,191,325 65,807
Shares cancelled BB (6,535,000) (65,350) (461)
At 31 December 2023 and R-B-=F+=AH
1 January 2024 at USD0.01 each =+-HAR=-ZE-MF
—A—8>
BR0.01ER 1,012,597,500 10,125,975 65,346
Shares cancelled SEHER 5 (27,196,500) (271,965) (1,944)
As at 31 December 2024 at USD0.01 each R=-ZE-M&+=H
=t+—8-
BR0.01ER 985,401,000 9,854,010 63,402
Note: Hiat -

The Company repurchased 24,711,500 and 18,549,500 of its
shares in 2024 and 2023, respectively, on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited for considerations of approximately
RMB20,019,000 and approximately RMB19,663,000,
respectively. 27,196,500 (2023: 6,535,000) shares were
cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2024.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7

RZE-_WNEFER_ZT_=F  A2Q2a%5
UREBHARE20,019,000 T B AR
19,663,000 TR BB AR S ATER A A5 5
ElREH 24,711,5004% % 18,549,500 f& A% 1% -
27,196,500 (=Z = =4F :6,535,0000%) i%
HEREBE-_T-_MF+_A=1+—HILEE



32.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and the articles of
association of the companies now comprising the Group,
before distributing the net profit of each year, companies of
the Group registered in the PRC are required to set aside
10% of their statutory net profit for the year after offsetting
any prior year's losses as determined under relevant PRC
accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve
fund. When the balance of this reserve reaches 50% of
each company’s share capital, any further appropriation
is optional. The statutory surplus reserve fund can be
utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares. However, the statutory surplus reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 25% of each entity’s share
capital after such issuance.

Safety production fund

Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Work Safety of
the PRC, the Group is required to set aside an amount to
a safety production fund at certain percentages (Periods
before 21 November 2022: less than RMB10 million:
4.50%; from RMB10 million to RMB100 million: 2.25%; from
RMB100 million to RMB1 billion: 0.55%; greater than RMB1
billion: 0.20%. Periods after 21 November 2022: less than
RMB10 million: 4.50%; from RMB10 million to RMB100
million: 2.25%; from RMB100 million to RMB1 billion:
0.55%; greater than RMB1 billion: 0.20%) of the previous
year's operating revenue. The fund can be used for
improvement of safety, and is not available for distribution
to shareholders. The balance of the safety production fund
in equity represents the safety fund that was set aside but
not yet used.

Notes to Financial Statements

32.

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

FBEFENRHESRR

EEEE

RIE R BAR R AN EIRRE N AR 2848
ERRMAE  BESIRFFA c AEEEFE
e A R AR S AR TR AR BE R B & R
FTETHEFEREZ  BEFEEEFANN
10%BEETBBBEERES - EZREENE
BEEERAIBRANS0%E - SRR ARIE
RAEEETEE - AT BHHEESTH
PRIEE A FREIB S EITALRR AT - 0%
TRBHEEES VAT VBB ERITEZE
BBRRANHY25% ©

RELEES

BEFETBIBEEARZEEEEEET R
BREMNE TER AEEFKREER
PR E—FEZEERERE —To5E
(ZE-_—F+—A=-+—HaSHM : A
REAOEETTUAT :4.50%: ARK10H
BTEARKI100B8T :2.25%: AR
100EETEARKI101BTT :0.55%: AR
A0 LA L :0.20% c —E-—F+—AH
“+—HESHHE: ARBI10BETUAT ¢
450% ARE1IOEETEAREI00EE
T 2.25%: ARBA00EETEARE10
fBJC 1 0.55% : AR101ETTALE 1 0.20%)
EREHERES c ZESTARNELER
PEGETTRERAREETOIR - #mF
BRIHNEZE2EEESKEEREERAERD

ZEES -
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32. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
Capital reserve

Share capital of the Group’s subsidiaries before the
incorporation of the Company is recorded as capital
reserve.

Capital reserve also included the difference between the
consideration paid by the Company for the acquisition of
subsidiaries and the net assets of the subsidiaries being
acquired.

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

Notes to Financial Statements

32.

33.

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

(&)
N

72 BB B 2 AR AR A A) R B SZ A 2 AR AR
TINFRIIEB AN -

ERRENRERNRBREBENE AR
MR EEREBENE R RNEERFE R
R

(a) MEFBFELENEESD

activities
2024
—E-mE
At 1 January 2024 RZZ-WF—AF—H 18,058 299,094 691
Changes from financing cash flows MERSRELE) (68) (107,140) (515)
Interest expense FMEFAX - 2,150 20
Interest paid classified as NEREEHERE

operating cash flows ZERFIE - - (20)
Non-cash repayment of other HifE MRS EE

borrows - (3,683) -
Reclassification between current TEBNHA K 3EBNHA 2 ]

and non-current portions DR (16,148) 16,148 -
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-EF

~“A=+—H 1,842 206,569 176
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33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

33. HFERETRERME(E)

(a) RETHFELNEESS (F)

Interest-bearing
bank and other

Interest-bearing
bank and other

borrowings borrowings Lease
2023 (non-current) (current) liabilities
SPESRITREM  FTERITREM
—To=F fEsX (3ERNER) fasx (BNER) HEBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2023 W-_Z-_=F—HF—H 38,793 261,787 178
New Lease MHE - = 1,061
Changes from financing cash flows MEREREE (19,085) 36,819 (548)
Interest expense FMEFL = 1,778 33
Interest paid classified as operating ~ DHEAKLEHELRE
cash flows ZBRFE = = (33))
Non-cash repayment of other borrows EAtEREI IR LEE = (22,940) =
Non-cash additions of other borrows ~ EAtERHFEERESAE 20,000 = =
Reclassification between current and ~ 7EB1EA K 3EENHE 2 9
non-current portions ESibR (21,650) 21,650 =
At 31 December 2023 i ——-S
+=A=+—H 18,058 299,094 691
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Notes to Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 33. HFEHERERMET(H)
OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HENBRESRHARE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the A eRER HER R BT
statement of cash flows is as follows: R
2023
—E-=F
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Within operating activities LEEBA 1,355 949
Within financing activities BEEBN 515 548
Total At 1,870 1,497
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. JAEME
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities R-ZT-_MWME+-_A=+—8  KNEBLE
as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil). FMEAIABE(ZZ_=F : &) -
35. COMMITMENTS 35. AEIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the AEBRBEHROEARFRIESHFOT ¢
end of the reporting period:
2023
—Eo=5F
RMB’000
ARBETTT
Contracted, but not provided for: EEEVENE L
Plant and machinery R Kot 2% 7,720 6,382

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED & e BRI ERA T



36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with related parties
during the year:

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

36. BEEAIRS
(a) BZESEAVBRREMIBO RS
RSO - AN T X B R T
FARTFRS :

2023
—T=F
RMB’000
ARETTT

Purchases of products and services: BEEm&RRE :

Hua Ge Real Estate Development Co. ZEHEEREERAF 300 1,706
Dezhou Wugu Food Technology Co., Ltd.* ENAARERMEH
BRDA 516 482
Cangzhou Aomu Agricultural Development BINRKEEERER
Co., Ltd.* NG 487 750
Cangzhou Wugu Food Technology Co., Ltd.*  AMNARRHEAEHL
BRLA 57 111

Total &t 1,360 3,049

Notes: Htat -

(i) The purchases from the related parties were (i) KRB 2B IRE A
made according to the published prices and B RARMHEE -
conditions.

(i) These related parties are all entities controlled (i) ZEBH O ARREEESE
by close family members of the controller of the MERBEMIEHNEE -
Group.

* The related party transactions above also * EiEAEE 5 R 5 IMER LT AR

constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

AIE14AEFAENBRER S
HFFEMER S ©

(b) FEETIZEBEAEHNHE

2023
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Compensation paid to key MEZEEEAEZND
management personnel (Note 8) B (A7:£8) 6,530 5,577
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as

follows:

2024

Financial assets

Notes to Financial Statements

37.

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024

—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

BERESIHNERMIA
ERSRTARSHREPRNEEESRSID

T~

—EBEonmEF

SRMEE
Trade receivables B SN IE - - 283,864 283,864
Notes receivable EWERE - 94,991 595,389 690,380
Financial assets included in prepayments FTAENFIEREA
and other receivables BURHE CREE - - 13,461 13,461

Restricted cash SRIBE - - 140 140
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY - - 266,789 266,789
Financial assets at FVPL-current BANEEFEAR

FHtABRZ

EMEE — N 906 - - 906
Financial assets at FVPL-non-current BANEEFEAR

FHFABRZER

BE— Fnd 14,960 - - 14,960
Equity investments designated at FVOCI EBERANEETE

BEZHAEM

2EWE 2 RERE - 24,150 - 24,150
Financial assets included in other STARMIERBEER

non-current assets CREE - - 10,627 10,627

Total S 15,866 119,141 1,170,270 1,305,277
2024 —E_ME

Financial liabilities

- =N
Trade and bills payables B o RENRERENEE 387,038
Financial liabilities included in other payables sFAHMEMNZIEREAEANSRARE

and accruals 555,578
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T EERIT R EMIEFK 208,411
Other current liabilities Htmsas 2,747
Other non-current liabilities HiFERBEE 340,157
Total CET 1,493,931
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37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024

—EomE+—A=+—H

37. RERBINEWMIA(E)

(CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial X@{—EEEI W& MR RE EHSI0
instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as T (&)
follows: (continued)
2023 —Z2_-=
Financial
Financial Financial assets at
assets at assets at amortised
FVPL FVOCI cost Total
BARER
BANEE FT=EEEZ
SAEAHEEE HARMEE REHERA
HAB#Re WEzem RS
TREE BE AE &5t
Financial assets RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
cRMEE ARETT AREFT AREFTT ARBFT
Trade receivables B 5 RN KA - - 342,512 342,512
Notes receivable JEU 1% = 68,276 331,225 399,501
Financial assets included in prepayments ST ATER FRIE R E A
and other receivables EURIEBE BERE = = 10,342 10,342
Restricted cash ZRFE = = 70,586 70,586
Cash and cash equivalents RekBLEEY - - 287,441 287,441
Financial assets at FVPL-current EAnEESEAR
B ABR SR
éf% V) 12,879 = = 12,879
Financial assets at FVPL-non-current BAnBEESEEH
PEFABR 2/
é?‘ FERE 25,183 = = 25,183
Equity investments designated at FVOCI ERALEBENE
H,ﬁ\ FE) I AR
ZEMNE RERE - 32,309 - 32,309
Financial assets included in other STARMIEREBEEN
non-current assets TREE = = 11,507 11,507
Total CH) 38,062 100,585 1,053,613 1,192,260
2023 —ZF-=
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REHK AT R 2
ERAE
Financial liabilities RMB’000
cMasE AR®ET T
Trade and bills payables B 5 M RIE R ER R R 472,614
Financial liabilities included in other payables s AHMEMZFEREAEANSHERE
and accruals 250,259
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTEERIT R HMEK 317,152
Other current liabilities BEMns8E 60,286
Other non-current liabilities HtIEnEatE 224,518
Total A&t 1,324,829
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38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs, i.e., unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement date

. Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs, i.e., observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

At 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the
financial instruments of the Group carried at fair
value were equity investments designated at FVOCI,
financial assets at FVPL and notes receivable. These
instruments fall into Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy described above.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7
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31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

38. ERMIBACZAABERAABESER

i E

(a)

BRARBEFENEREERER

RABEER

PRI s PR R & A2
ENERTARAREE BNBAE
B EHREENF1RALEETZ
REN=ZRAABEER - ~AEE2
BRA T A 1E 73 A P R A ) B A BB O
ERREERERNE  BEAAMBE
STEMER D BB -

. FEBRMGE: EEREE
R \BE (EREELE
ERFTE R RERTI5 A RE

HERE)FENRAEE

. F_BAME: EFRE_ER
AR (BIREZEDE B
REEAREREATAER
BARBOABERARE)
FFEMAREE - TABERH
ABEB T EEREBUS T 5 E
EH B ABUR

. F-EBARME : EFRERTH
BRGABBEAENRAEE

RZZEZWOF+—A=+—HBK=Z
Z=F+ZA=+—H  FEEER
REBEIEZEMTAEAETIEA
EE=EBEEH T AL MEEKR
BWRERE - RAREBEFEEEE
it A B e MEERBRERE -
ZETEDRIIA LA AR BESR
ZE—EBH FE_BERE=ER-

Kb D

Bl
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024

—EoNF+=—A=+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. &£RITAZAAEBERAABEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) HE (&)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at (a) BAAEEFENSREERAERE
fair value (continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AABEER (E)

Financial assets: SREE:
Notes receivable EULEE (i) 94,991 - 94,991 -
Financial assets at FVPL - current BAABEHEEA

ZHHAAERZER

BE-RD (ii) 906 906 - -
Financial assets at FVPL - non-current AR BEFERE

EEIUN Eapk

BE-#n# (i) 14,960 - - 14,960
Unquoted equity investments BEROLEETZ

designated at FVOCI EEC-L RN

2ENG ERE

RiERE (iv) 24,150 - - 24,150
Total At 135,007 906 94,991 39,110
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38.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at

fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

38. ERMIBACZAABERAABESER

HE (&)

(a) BAARBEAENERMEERAER
(&)
AREEESE (E)

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2023 categorised into
RIBZ=E+A=+—-RAZRAEBEAENER
Quoted prices

in active Significant Significant

Fair value at markets for observable  unobservable
31 December identical assets inputs inputs
2023 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

R-Z-=%F HRAEENEE  BAUEER EATAUER

+-A=+-H 5.2 RE BAZE AL

ZAREE (2—ER) (B-ER) (FZBR)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFTL ARBTT  ARETRT  ARETR

Financial assets: SREE:

Notes receivable EHERE 68,276 = 68,276 =
Financial assets at FVPL - current BANEEMERR
LN B

BE-RE 12,879 7,879 = 5,000
Financial assets at FVPL - non-current XA A BEIEAE
BB A Bm a8

BE-3FR® 25,183 - - 25,183
Unquoted equity investments EERAAEBETE
designated at FVOCI BEESHF AL
2EMNEZ BRER

ERE 32,309 - = 32,309

Total At 138,647 7,879 68,276 62,492




38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group estimated the fair value of notes
receivable with discounted cash flows at a
discount rate that reflects the credit risk of the
drawee of notes at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) The fair value of listed equity investments at

FVPL categorised as level 1 in the fair value
hierarchy are based on quoted market prices.
The fair value of wealth management products
categorised as level 3 are determined based on
the discounted cash flow model.

(iii) The fair value of financial assets at FVPL-
non-current, has been estimated using a
market-based valuation technique based
on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The
valuation requires the directors to determine
comparable public companies (peers) based
on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and
calculates an appropriate price multiple,
such as price to sales (“P/S”) multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The
multiple is calculated by dividing the enterprise
value of the comparable company by an
sales measure. The trading multiple is then
discounted for considerations such as illiquidity
and size differences between the comparable
companies based on company-specific facts
and circumstances. The discounted multiple is
applied to the corresponding sales measure of
the unlisted equity investments to measure the
fair value.

Notes to Financial Statements
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38. ERMIBACZAABERAABESER
HIE (&)
BAAEEFENEREEREE

(a)

(&)

AAEEER (&)

EE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

REBPRE AR RMREIR
AHAEE R BRI R AR
RReREGHTREEEENR
AEE -

RARBEEBERTDERE—
BHMEZARNEBEGEAES
Bt ABR FTREREN
AAREBEEDAMSRERE
o NnEAE-ERANEBENE
MO AAREBEDIERERRE
MERAEFE -

BARBEFEBHLEHTA
?EEZ#//@U%mEéEZ’Aﬁ
EBE EREIFHTEER
BEREH R 2 RE 1%
RERTISMN MG ERMGE -
HEEREEREBEEE R
B ERREBRETE LR
EHAR (R%EE) LaEL—
EABERNEREE - WATER
B AL AANTHGEE -
F‘%ZL%ET%‘H:F"TE’]@%
BERAFEEGESNE - X
EHBERRER T##E\%/R&
AR B LB A R Z e JE
MBUERREZRERRT MU
HEEE c IR EEERNIE LT

BaERENHEHEESE
Ut EERAAEE -
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38.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

Notes to Financial Statements

38.

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

ERITACZARBERAABEER
HE (&)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at (a) RBRAXREBEFENSREERAEE
fair value (continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AABEER (&)
Hist - (&)
(continued) (iii) (&)
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input Range fair value to the input
BESE BATAEEHALE HE ALEEHRARBNSHBE
Financial assets at ~ Valuation Median P/S 10.3 10% increase/decrease in
FVPL-non-current multiples multiple would result in
increase/decrease in fair
value by approximately
RMB 1,496,000
EBAnEBESZEEHE (HERZE iENi=E kv ot 10.3  fBECEMN, R 10%FEERA
BEAERZ REEENBRISHIARYE
TREE - JERD 1,496,0007T
Discount for lack 29% 10% increase/decrease in
of marketability multiple would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by approximately
RMB611,000
Rz s maB T E 29% fEHIEM,HD10%BEHA

(iv)

REERD BIN AR
611,0007C

The Group estimated the fair value of unquoted
equity investments designated at FVOCI using
different techniques based on each investment’s
features.

The group estimated the fair value of unquoted
equity investments designated at FVOCI based
on net assets of the underlying projects of the
fund after adjusting the fair value of the most
significant equity investment based on market
approach.

The fair values of another two unquoted
equity investments have been estimated using
market-based valuation techniques based
on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the directors to determine comparable
public companies (peers) based on industry,
size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate price multiple, such as price
to sales (“P/S”) multiple, for each comparable
company identified.
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(iv)

AEBEREEIFRE 2 FEE
RARIDAGFEERRAAE
EBEXfEEEEHFARMER
Wak 2 BIMEREREZDRN
BfE -

AEFEZTISEHBREARN
BERENAREER AR
SHBEEENFEERER
A EERAAEBEAEAR
HHET AEMEE WS 2 ER
BRERE 2 AAEE -

HAMAERREREREZR
AEE ERELIFHABRER
IS ER AR ZRR
& B &R T %5 H b B KA
ite MEEREEREEE
B ERERRBRENE L
RETAR (FA%EE) WHEH
— A& EMEREE - MR
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. 2R IABZARABEEAAEBEEZR

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) FE (&)
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at (a) BRAAREEFENEREERAR
fair value (continued) (&
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AABEER (&)
Notes: (continued) Biat - ()
(iv)  (continued) (iv)  (#&)
Valuation Significant Sensitivity of
technique unobservable input Range fair value to the input
fhE R % EXTAEERAHE #E AAREEHBARBENSRE
Unquoted equity Valuation Median P/S 10.0,1.9 10% increase/decrease in
investments multiples multiple would result in
designated at increase/decrease in fair
FVOCI value by approximately
RMB181,000
BERAAEENE [ERH T 88 s B i 88 10.0 1.9 fEBUEM, R 10% BEE L
BEZHH AHM REBEEN RO DARE
2HE 2 ERE 181,0007C
PRIERE

Discount for lack of 49%,41%
marketability

RIS RAMETTE  49% - 41%

10% increase/decrease in
multiple would result in
decrease/increase in fair
value by approximately
RMB137,000

EHIE I, B 10% BEHA
REERD EINHARYE
137,0007T

The discount for lack of marketability
represents the amounts of premiums and
discounts determined by the group that market
participants would take into account when
pricing the investments.

RZmBRBENEEAEE
EENRERTESE  T5
2EEFELHREETEERFSK
HAZRE -
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Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

38. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 38. 2RITEACAABERAABHEER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) HE (&)

(b) Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed (b) 2AAEEEREZAE

Financial liabilities tRaRk
Other non-current liabilities HEf3ERe 8 & 371,179 = 371,179 =
Total CE 371,179 - 371,179 -
Fair value measurements using
ERUTEBH AN BERNE
Quoted prices
in active Significant Significant
Fair value at markets for ~ observable unobservable
31 December identical assets inputs inputs
2023 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
RZZZ=F HREENEE EXTBER EASTEER
+=ZA=1—H s RE BARR BARE
ZAREE (5—EBR) (5-ER) (5=ER)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®ETT
Financial liabilities TREE
Other non-current liabilities HibERBEE 246,431 = 246,431 =
Total A&t 246,431 = 246,431 =
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38.

39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost were not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
bank loans and other borrowings, other financial liabilities
and cash and bank balances. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade and notes receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. Management reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Foreign currency risk

Substantially all sales and purchase transactions
were denominated in RMB and United States dollars.
Management has assessed the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk, by using a sensitivity analysis on the change
in the foreign exchange rate of the United States dollar, to
which the Group is mainly exposed during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023.

As at 31 December 2024, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the United States dollar with
all other variables held constant, the profit for the year
would have been approximately RMB4,718,000 (2023:
RMB13,259,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains arising from translations of United
States dollar-denominated trade receivables and trade
payables, as well as cash and cash equivalents.

Notes to Financial Statements

38.

39.

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

ERITACZARBERAABEER
HE (&)

() HUFAABEEFEZEMEERSE
Bz nEE

RZZEZOF+—A=+—HBK=%
=+ A=+—8 AEBNE
HRATEEMNERTAFAERED
AEBEEEAER -

MEEREERERBER

FEBENTESRMTASERITERRE M
AR HibeRmAaBURRE RRITHERR -
ZETBRTENTIZERNAAEENER
E8Be AEEBESBREMEREER
BIE - PIINERK A EBEENE SR
BN EWSRIBEIA R E 5N FE -

XEAEESRTANIERRAINER
% FERRMEBDESRER - EEEEM

RpEEREERRNEE - 25 AREL
mF
SR

RYMBEERFIHUUARBRETIIE -
EREECDRAFRAETIINERERE S (KL
BREE—T_NEFR_E_=F+=A=
+—HALEFEFZABRUERE) NHEE
AT A S EEERAINE R

R-ZE-_WFE+_A=+—H HARE
HETHAEBEE5%  MATEH M

RETE  FREANHERD MO A
R#4,718,000c (T -=F : ARK
13,259,0007T) ' WIHhEBZHBEETE
ENESERUFEREZEAFBEUNRRS
RESEBYELENINESIE WS -
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39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with related parties and recognised
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2024

Notes to Financial Statements

39.

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

PREREREBEEREE(E)

FERR

AEEEEBABEITNBEEZNE =X
5 o MRAKBEBE - FIERNAERGRK
ETRHNEP  VEABBEERERRF -
AN - AEBEFEEREBURAEHROER - T
AEBNERRERY AERX -

B = A & F R AR R

TRINTENAEBEERR (TE2ERB
FIHEH  HEMERBENEBZ KA
HBNENABHRIN 2 EEEEREREE
BBRAERRTZA=T—HZ2FREKS
*a -

R-BE-_NE+=-A=t—HZE=AR

Trade receivables® B 5 IR - - - 293699 293,699
Notes receivables BN EE 690,380 - - - 690,380
Financial assets included in ST ATEIFRIE R E A MR

prepayments and other receivables BreRARE

- Normal —E% 14,838 - - - 14,838
Financial assets included in SARMERSEECEREAE

other non-current assets 10,627 - - - 10,627
Restricted cash XRRE 140 - - - 140
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBREZEY 266,789 - - - 266,789
Total I 982,774 - - 293,699 1,276,473
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39.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2023

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

BHEREEBEEREE(E)

BE Rk R ERKRR (Z)
R-B-=F+=-A=+t—-HzE=AE

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f@A
EHEEHE 2HBEHEEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-BE FZREBE FSRBR O BtrE Ch
RMB’000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Trade receivables® BHIEMTE" - - - 350,952 350,952
Notes receivables e E & 399,501 = = - 399,501
Financial assets included in prepayments 5t ATBSFIE R E M EW
and other receivables Bl emEE
- Normal -F% 16,535 - - - 16,535
Financial assets included in SARMERBEEC2REAE
other non-current assets 11,507 - - - 11,507
Restricted cash XBRHE 70,586 = = = 70,586
Cash and cash equivalents RekBREEED 287,441 - - - 287,441
Total CEH 785,570 - - 350,952 1,136,522

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the

simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in Note 19 to the

financial statements.

* HAEEEAEETEELRENE S
M FIEN S - BRARERTEZENR
M HRRMFT19RHKE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024 FE#HR&E

293



Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. BHEEMEEBEEEREEK(£Z)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk RBELRAME

The management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient AEBEEEEEH#RBRARNRCRRESE
cash and cash equivalents and the Group has available By BAEBEBRTENEREEERE
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit HEABSANES - LU EAE -

facilities to meet its commitments.

Due to the Group's supplier finance arrangements, the HARAEBNHENRELTS BHRESE
relevant trade payables are due to a single counterparty RIBTIERT & — ¥ F 75 i SR E R 4L -
rather than individual suppliers. Details of the arrangements AL ER VSRR F24 AKRE -

are disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at AEEcRABERNSREHEARNI BB
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual (REBEEFTHERMIBARETE) 0T

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

Interest-bearing bank and FTRRITREMER

other borrowings* - 125,522 83,733 1,872 - 211,127
Trade payables V) 367,038 20,000 - - - 387,038
Other payables and accruals ~ EfEMFELEFER 555,400 178 - - - 555,578
Other current liabilities HitnEaE - - 3,000 - - 3,000
Other non-current liabilities HibIEn@afE - - - 273,327 127,459 400,786
Total At 922,438 145,700 86,733 275,199 127,459 1,557,529
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Notes to Financial Statements

PR ERAR BT RE

31 December 2024
—EZRF+=ZA=1+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. HIBEREEBZERBEEK(Z)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBELRAM (&)
As at 31 December 2023
RZBZ=F+=ZA=+—H
On  Less than 6to 12 1102 Over
demand 6 months months years 2 years Total
HNMAAE
RERk PRAEA TZEA —SFEMFE  MENE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARE®ETT ARETT ARETR
Interest-bearing bank and STRRITREM AR
other borrowings* - 219,325 86,793 13,165 5,751 325,034
Lease liabilities HEAE - - 234 = 234
Trade payables BHENREB 472,614 - - - - 472614
Other payables and accruals Hit N FIERESER 249,999 - 260 - - 250,259
Other current liabilities Hipn#aE = = 65,102 = 65,102
Other non-current liabilities HihIEnaaE - - - —- 279442 279,442
Total G 722,613 219,325 152,155 13,399 285,193 1,392,685
* Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings include the * HBERTREMESAERS LAEE
principal and the related interests payable. HF 8 o
Capital management BEREE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management AEBEAEENEEHEZAREAERELE
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going WIERE  WHESREENERNL RS

concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

maintain or adjust the capital structure,

EEBRLRESRARREENED -

AEBERBEEMRANES LEBEENR

BUEEREEARBRELAE - RER
FHBERRE  AEBEAHEN TR
BB ~ MBCRERBEARRBEITHAR - NE
IIH EASMBR AN E AR ZRAAR o B
FR-BEEEANBR BRIGBEAEE
) o
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39.

40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital management (continued)

The Group’s strategy was to maintain the gearing ratio at
a healthy capital level in order to support its businesses.
The principal strategies adopted by the Group include,
without limitation, reviewing future cash flow requirements
and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when
they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and

Notes to Financial Statements
P S EL

31 December 2024
—EoNF+=—A=+—H

39. UBEMREEABFEREE(F)

EXEE(#E)

AEENRBABEERBL RGRERE
BANKYE  UXFERE - AEBERRAE
ZRBEEETRREMARAIRASRERR
RN BB MR R ERERHEEN - #5
AEARTRETEAIEKTARARKRET
FLMENE (MFR)  URAEEHSE
BIEKFHEAIFHEER - BEAGBLX

financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has T
a reasonable level of capital to support its business. The
gearing ratios were as follows:
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
TEDNEF ZE=F
T=H=+t-H +-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBFT
Total debt ER A 208,411 317,152
Total equity = BE 1,953,055 2,054,831
Gearing ratio BEEAREEX 10.67% 15.43%

Total debt comprises interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 20 March 2025, Directors recommend a final dividend
of RMBO0.025 per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2024 and the proposal is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the 2024
annual general meeting as set out in note 11.

As of the date of this Report, except for the above event,
the Group had no other significant events after the
reporting period that are required to be disclosed.

TSAKER NEW ENERGY TECH CO., LIMITED ¥ & #8SRERHZ AR A 7
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41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  41.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS SRR M

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

KRB BARR T

AN AR RS B OR A B 5 AR Ut SR AR B B R
FEnT

31 December

2023
—E-=F
t+tZA=t—H
RMB’000
ARBET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary ®E B AT 80,237 80,303
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 80,237 80,303
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JE UM B A R R IE 123,688 176,585
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELEEY 479 1,724
Total current assets MENEERE 124,167 178,309
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals HAhpERIB R FEET B A - 7,020
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 124,167 171,289
Net assets BEFE 204,404 251,592
EQUITY e
Share capital A& A 63,402 65,346
Treasury shares EFRGH (10,438) (16,513)
Reserves G 151,440 202,759
Total equity A 204,404 251,592
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P S EL

31 December 2024
—E-NFE+-_A=+—H

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. ZXARBMBRRE (&)

COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: /]/f/ll?}_ :
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: ZAYNS =Lt R N
At 1 January 2023 R-E-_=F—HF—H 261,158 69,433 (82,251) 298,340
Profit for the year ARE EmF = = (2,598) (2,598)
Exchange differences on translation HMEGINETER)

of foreign operations EH =5 - 3,438 - 3,438
Total comprehensive income for the year  ANFEZ2MHEURSEEE - 3,438 (2,598) 840
Dividend distributed to shareholders BRI TRFEHARE (89,265) - - (89,265)
Cancellation of own shares ERISEE eh) (7,156) = = (7,156)

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 R-ZT-=4+—4

=t+—B%K
—ZT-FE—HF—H 164,737 72,871 (34,849) 202,759
Profit for the year ARE G F - - 38,092 38,092
Exchange differences on translation of HMEGINETER)
foreign operations TE =% - 2,137 - 2,137
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ANFEZ2HEURSEEE - 2,137 38,092 40,229
Dividend distributed to shareholders B2k TR A AL S (67,398) = = (67,398)
Cancellation of own shares TIHE B R, (24,150) - - (24,150)
R HEF
At 31 December 2024 +—A=+—H 73,189 75,008 3,243 151,440

42. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 42, HOEMEEHRE

The financial statements were approved and authorised for HEVRBRRER S _AF=-A=-+H%
issue by the board of directors on 20 March 2025. EEeEUEETNE -
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[BRRBFAE]
“AGM”

[#EE =248 ]
“Articles of Association”

[EnZBe]

“Audit Committee”

[EEeE
“Board”

[BPDA
“‘BPDA”
[E32Ff )
“BSE”

[Cavalli]

“Cavalli”

DARZ=S

“Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy”

[EME2 AR

“Changzhou Xinjin Ruiying
Venture Capital”

Definitions

AAABR_E_AFRAATAHBTORREFAE
the annual general meeting of our Company to be held on 15 May
2025

RATAEBERMR (ETEHEET)
the articles of association of our Company (as amended from time to
time)

EEgERLZES

audit committee of the Board

B8

the board of Directors

3,3, 4,4 — Bt RIMAEE —FF - BIEEESNMHREBERAE
3,3, 4,4-biphenyltetracarboxylic dianhydride, which is used as a
monomer that produces new material polyimides

PRI RE SR S
Beijing Stock Exchange in the PRC

Cavalli Enterprises Inc. * RZE——F = A+ —HBERBRZBESEM
BRIBAERAR - ARFINPITES  EERTHAHKCEE2ERE
Cavalli Enterprises Inc., a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability on 11 March 2011, wholly-owned by Mr.
GE Yi, our executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

BINEREBEBRAR RS __FNA+HBREFBEEZKR IO
RAIRAQAHEFZ2EMNBAR - IWREEFMENMELR - ATEAR
MEEFEIRBIR AR

Cangzhou Tsaker Lithium Energy Co., Ltd.* CAMERELEARAQ
A]), a company established under the laws of the PRC on 15 April
2022, an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company and
a subsidiary of Shandong TNM, formerly known as Cangzhou Tsaker
New Energy Co., Ltd.* (BINFEHEERER A F))

BNESHBAERESGREE (BRAR)  —XNPEKINERER
=4

Changzhou Xinjin Ruiying Venture Capital Partnership (Limited
Partnership)* (BN E2mREIEXRESRLE (BREE)), a limited
partnership established in the PRC
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VNN AR N EARZ- S i

“Company”, “our”, “our Company”,
‘we”, “us” or “Tsaker New Energy”

IPNGIEESEN
“Companies Ordinance”

[DATAI
‘DATA”

[ TERFRE
“Deed of Non-competition”

[DIPS]
‘DIPS”

[E%]
“Directors”

[DMAS ]
“DMAS’

[DMSS
‘DMSS”

[DSDF |

“‘DSD Acid”

[ESGZE®]

“ESG Committee”

[REEINT&EER]
“Group”

[BREA
“herbicides”

Definitions

B

HEFEREBEBERAR  —KRZZE-—NF+A-tLBRFEEST
A BB RA R

Tsaker New Energy Tech Co., Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands with limited liability on 29 October 2014

B AP E 622 % R RIEDH
the Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong

25— ZFAHE —1,4— F_HE - BIEENEREER P
2,5-Dianilinoterephthalic acid, which is used as an intermediate of
quinacridone pigments

RAREX LA K CavalliFTZRHA T —AF KA+ - HONTHRFRE
the deed of non-competition dated 12 June 2015 entered into
between our Company, Mr. GE and Cavalli

TZBR-Z2REE - AREEDPPERIRER
diisopropyl succinate, which is used for the production of DPP
pigments and plastic

AARES

the directors of the Company

BT —B_FEE AREERREEERN - RE - AttRmAME
dimethyl acetylsuccinate, which is used for the production of food
yellow pigments, agricultural chemicals, and other food additives

TR T B9 - AR EEEN IR RS
dimethyl succinylosuccinate, which is used for the production of
quinacridone pigments and photosensitive polymer

44— —REZKZIE —2,2'— ZWERE - BERE - 2B H KRR
Ry B

4,4’-Diaminostilbene-2,2’-disulfonic acid, which is used as an
intermediate of dyes, fluorescent whitening agents and pesticides

EFeRR - HEhERZEE

environmental, social and governance committee of the Board

RN DS SN STl iG]

our Company and our subsidiaries from time to time

PR FOB S D 2 SRAE ) A R A (L B2 BT
a chemical agent used to kill or inhibit the growth of unwanted plants
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(BT[]
“HK$” or “HKD"” or “Hong Kong
dollars” or “HK dollars”

(&
“Hong Kong”

[ &5

“intermediates”

[1SO14001:2015
“1SO14001:2015”

15045001 |
“1SO45001"
1509001 |

“1SO9001”"

[ £
“Listing”

[ AR A
“Listing Rules”

[MNT |

“MNT”

Sl
“Model Code”

[XRREEIHKELE]

“Mr. GE Yi” or “Mr. GE”

Definitions

B

BRLEERET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

HEEESRITTRIE
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

EREEEMILERMERMEHEEY
chemicals that are used as raw materials to produce other chemical
products

RIZ-AFRMNERSECEBRREERFARE
International Organization for Standard|zat|on standard for
environmental management systems as enacted in 2015

B R AR ERRT 2 ERBRRE
Occupational Health and Safety Management System published by
International Organization for Standardization

BIBE (LB ERET - B AE  wRERBFITENESREMBEMR
ME=SEEEBRER
quality management systems model published by International
Organization for Standardization for quality assurance in design,
development, production, installation and servicing

PRt OB 22 PR AR T
listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

B X AT RE S E AR A
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

S-THARRNMMEERE  BEREPHE  BEPMBIUAREN KA
e

3-nitrotoluene or meta-nitrotoluene, which is used as agricultural
chemical intermediates, pharmaceutical intermediates, and dye and
pigment intermediates

ETRBIMERCIAE [ EMBITAESEITESF X HHTESFE ]
the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers” as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

XX BAERERREz —(ERRE EWHRA) - 1TEF - TRFBTHE
£34

GE Yi (X7X), one of our controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules), an executive Director, our Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer
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[—RHEFE]

“mononitrotoluene”

[NEEQ/
“‘NEEQ”

[REZREE]

“Nomination Committee’

[ONTJ

“ONT”

[OT]
“OT"

[PNT]

‘PNT”

[P s [ B |

“PRC” or “China” or “Mainland China”

[ EAE |
“Prospectus”

[HES =]

“Remuneration Committee”

[$EHI] s [ EIEF ]
“Reporting Period” or “Review Year’

Definitions

B

PNT » ONT & MNT
PNT, ONT and MNT

2EFPPDEERNHEZERS
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations

EEgRA%ES

nomination committee of the Board

- WHERRAMHEERE  BEREPHMBHORME - LEARKRER -
EHPMEE - AN KENTHES

2-nitrotoluene or ortho-nitrotoluene, which is used as the raw materials
for intermediates for agricultural chemicals, in particular herbicides,

pharmaceutical intermediates, dye and pigment intermediates, etc.

AR  ONTHTHER  FTZREELE (LERRER) R HEEE
ortho-toluidine, a downstream product of ONT, primarily applied as
an intermediate for agricultural chemicals, especially herbicides

A—- THEARRSEHEERE  BEAHPHERERPBEBORME - 8
FEDSDE:

4-nitrotoluene or para-nitrotoluene, which is used as the raw materials
for dye intermediates and pigment intermediates, including DSD Acid

REARKAME - ERARENS - RIEXRZEMIE  BRUTEESE
B HBURFINRIITRERAE

the People’s Republic of China, which, for the purpose of this report
only, excludes Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region
of the PRC and Taiwan, unless otherwise indicated

RARBHA-Z—HFANA-T=HNHBKRFAE
the prospectus of the Company dated 23 June 2015

ExeyMEES

remuneration committee of the Board

BT _NF-A—BRE-T-_NF+-_A=+—HEH
the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024
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AR
“RMB”

[&

J%:EL
“SFC”

i3

J

[ &7 RSP
“SFO”

[ ¥ 3% T |
“SGD”

[LRF B

“Shandong TNM”

MURF R EE ]

“Shandong TNM Group”

[ &t
“Share(s)”

[A&ER ]
“Shareholder(s)”

[ B 32 P
“Stock Exchange”

[T |

“tonnes”

Definitions

B

FEIEEEB AR

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARARSMESEHERZES

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

BEAEDIEST1 B EF LB R
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong

FTINROE TE B R b3 T

Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of Singapore

IWREZMMBBERLAF - RZZE—MFR A+ HRBHBUEER I
RARARBHEEFZEMBLAR - AIBAR IR (RE) ARAA
Shandong Tsaker New Materials Co., Ltd.* (ILREEFHMABEREA
Al), a company established under the laws of the PRC on 20 May
2014 and an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company,
formerly known as Tsaker Chemical (Dongying) Co., Ltd.* (Z&(LE
(RE)VERRAF)

L3RR S v e LB B8 2 )
Shandong TNM and its subsidiaries

KRR ZREG
the share(s) of the Company

AARPIR

the shareholder(s) of the Company

ERMARSAARRDA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

YN

metric tonnes
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“Tsaker Dongao”

[FEEE]

“Tsaker Hong Kong”

EZ=-

“Tsaker Huayu”

[FER%]

“Tsaker Technology”

[t
“US$” or “US Dollar” or “USD”

- ERHEE

*

For identification purpose only

Definitions

B

WREERBCEFRETAR  R-ZTZNFE=A+HBREPBEER
B ARLARATNEZEEEWE AR

Shandong Tsaker Dongao Chemicals Co., Ltd.* (IUBE¥RER (L EH
[RE{TLA7A]), a company established under the laws of the PRC on 15
March 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

KRB (BB)ERAT  RZE—TFNAZAEEBEMALHBR
RAWAARBEEZEMB AT

Tsaker Chemical (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. (¥EI/ILE(FE)ERA
Al), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on
2 September 2010 and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

HRERICEBBRAR  RZE—=FRALARBFBRIEZRINADF
WARAARARIEZEZEMNB AR - AIBAALEE(ERHBRAF
Tsaker Huayu Chemical Co., Ltd.* (¥ RZERK{LEHFRAE]), a company
established under the laws of the PRC on 7 May 2013 and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company, formerly known as Hebei
Tsaker Chemical Co., Ltd.* (A4t BIL 2D ER A7)

IR BEFVRREROERAT  RZETERFNAZ T =ZHREFRE
ERRUMARNARARIMEIIZEMBE AR - AIBATELE CBM)
AR AA

Hebei Tsaker New Materials Technology Company Limited* (Jf[3t%
BRI BR AR, a company established under the laws
of the PRC on 23 September 2005 and an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company, formerly known as Tsaker Chemical
(Cangzhou) Co., Ltd.* (XE(LE(AIN)BRAR])

EBVEERMET
United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of
America
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